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BUSINESS

Planar Systems, Inc. is a provider of flat-panel display solutions for customers in medical, industrial,
commercial and retailing markets. Products include several flat-panel display technologies and range from
stand-alone solutions consisting of a display, computer hardware and software, to display components sold to
manufacturers for incorporation into their products. The Company has a global reach with sales offices in North
America, Europe and Asia. : :

The electronic display industry is driven by people the world over demanding products that belp them
connect with information. The proliferation of networked devices is likely to increase demand for these
connections, driving demand for flat-panel display solutions far into the future.

Planar is organized around three business segments—Medical, Industrial and Commercial.

Business Units and Markets
Medical

Currently the driving force of demand in this market is for digital imaging systems for radiology, followed
by display and computing solutions for use within hospitals at the point of care. In a 2004 survey of hospital
administrators, digital imaging topped the list of areas targeted for capital expenditures in the next five years,
followed by systems that enable electronic patient record-keeping at the point of care. Planar’s display solutions
consist of displays and hardware suitable for the healthcare environment, plus necessary software to run the
displays. Beyend those two product classes, Planar provides display components to medical OEM’s for
incorporation into a wide range of diagnostic and therapeutic equipment. The Company’s long-term strategy in
this market is to identify display-based needs in the healthcare environment and deploy superior industry
knowledge and product engineering to provide targeted solutions.

Industrial

Product offerings from this business unit consist of liquid-crystal display (LCD) and electroluminescent
(EL) display téchnology and modules sold to OEMs for integration into various systems, as well as value-added
display solutions consisting of various display technologies, computer hardware and software. Planar adds value
through engineering expertise, designing specialized displays to meet the specific needs of customers with such
attributes as témperature tolerance, sunlight readability, custom form factors and reliability. Overall economic
activity tends to be the primary driver in industrial markets, and the ongoing need for people to connect with
information indiverse environments contributes to the demand for specialized, rugged displays will continue.

Planar’s activities in the retailing market are also included in the Industrial segment. The Company develops
display solutions for unmet needs in the modern retail environment, where digital technology has revolutionized
back-office operations but has yet to evolve into front-office solutions that directly serve customers. The
Company’s offerings are aimed at the needs of consumers seeking product information, as well as retailers and
product manufacturers who seek to reliably deliver such information at the point of purchase.

Commercial

LCD desktop monitors and plasma and LCD televisions comprise the product offerings in the Company’s
commercial business unit. The predicted slowing of growth in the desktop monitor market is being reflected in
this business unit as efforts are shifted from top-line growth to bottom-line profit. The majority of products are
sold to business buyers, with increasing consumer sales resulting from additional channel partners and branding
efforts. The Company’s strategy going forward will be to protect hard-won market share while improving
profitability.
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Research and Product Development‘

Planar makes investments in targeted research, development and product development activities. Research
and development expenses are primarily related to the commercialization of display technologies, new system
architectures and fundamental process improvements. Product development expenses are directly related to the
design, prototyping and release-to-production of new products. Expenses consist primarily of salaries, project
materials, outside services, allocation of facility expenses and other costs associated with the Company's ongoing
efforts to develop new products, processes and enhancements. The company spent $11.1 million, $13.5 million,
and $15.1 million on research, development and product engineering for the fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. These expenses were partially offset by contract funding from both government agencies and
private sector companies of $0.3 million, $2.3 million, and $2.2 million in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Intellectual Property

The company holds a number of patents, trade secrets, trademarks, copyrights and other elements of
intellectual property, and uses nondisclosure agreements and other measures to protect its proprietary rights.
However, the Company’s operations are not reliant on these items. A primary success factor in our markets is
developing in-depth familiarity with the needs of the end users of our products. The continual product
development, exclusive product features and technical expertise that result from this knowledge drive the results
of our products in the marketplace. Increasingly, the Company’s competitive advantage is characterized by
operational systems and knowledge, outside of the traditional intellectual property definitions.

Branding, Marketing and Sales

Efforts to raise market awareness and competitive advantage from the Planar brand are continuous.
Marketing efforts focus on uncovering prospects and communicating the attributes foremost in the minds of
purchasing decision-makers. This approach is intended to ensure the highest possible return on investment for
our marketing expense.

The Company employs a worldwide sales force selling through direct and reseller channels. Sales offices
were expanded in Germany and opened in China during fiscal 2004 to extend global reach. Planar’s
vertically-integrated Medical segment sales team is headquartered in Waltham, Massachusetts, with additional
sales and marketing staff stationed in Oregon, Germany and China. The Company’s Industrial segment manages
sales and operations from its Oregon headquarters, with additional staff in Finland also managing a network of
independent sales representatives and distributors for certain European markets. The Company’s Commercial
segment is run from its Oregon headquarters office.

Products sold to Dell comprised 19% of total consolidated sales in each of fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002.
Products sold to CDW comprised 12% of total consolidated sales in fiscal 2004.

Backlog

The Company believes the backlog metric is of limited utility in predicting future sales because its
Commercial segment and a growing portion of its Medical segment operate on a ship-to-order basis with very
little backlog.

As of September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003, the Company’s backlog of domestic and international
orders was approximately $48.3 million and $43.2 million, respectively. As of September 24, 2004, the Company
included all accepted contracts or purchase orders in its backlog. Backlog includes orders of approximately $13.5
million related to end-of-life products which are scheduled to ship over the next several years. Variations in the
magnitude and duration of contracts and customer delivery requirements may result in substantial fluctuations in
backlog from period to period.




Manufacturing and Raw Materials

Planar Systems, Inc. contracts with offshore partners for its manufacturing and assembly capacity, with the
exception of an EL manufacturing facility in Finland and an assembly operation in Beaverton. The company
believes that its effective management of these partners and its global supply chain is an important competency
and competitive advantage.

Quality and reliability are emphasized in the design, manufacture and assembly of all the Company’s
products. All of Planar’s facilities have active operator training/certification programs and regularly use
advanced statistical process control techniques. The Company’s products undergo thorough quality inspection
and testing throughout the manufacturing process. All of the Company’s operating units have received and
maintain their ISO9001 certification. This certification requires that a company meet a set of criteria established
by an independent, international quality organization that measures the quality of systems, procedures and
implementation in manufacturing, marketing and development of products and : servxces

The Company’s EL manufacturing facility in Finland produces a wide range of display types and sizes.
Manufacturing operations consist of the procurement and inspection of components, manufacture of EL displays,
final assembly of some components and extensive testing of finished products. -

The Company currently procures from outside suppliers all of its raw materials, including glass substrates,
driver integrated circuits, electronic circuit assemblies, power supplies and high-density interconnects. A
significant raw-material supply risk to the Company’s operations is LCD panel glass. The Company strives to
buy this material from multiple partners and forecast demand as accurately as possible to effectively manage this
risk and ensure supply of these companents.

. Competition

Holding a strong competitive position in the market for flat-panel displays requires maintaining a diverse
product portfolio addressing opportunities at all stages of the product life cycle. In such a highly competitive
market, average selling prices are likely to continue to decrease over time as products gain market acceptance,
volumes increase, and more competitors enter the market. In these situations, the Company strives to maintain
operating margins by increasing unit volumes, increasing value-added contributions to each unit, providing
additional value to its customers through system integration and services, reducing material costs and managing
expenses in a ﬁscally disciplined manner. To drive success at the other end of the product life cycle, the company
maintains a customer-centric focus to guide targeted research, development and product engineering efforts to
meet the needs of end users, leading to profitable growth.

In addition to the product portfolio, the Company competes with other display manufacturers based upon
commercial availability, price, visual performance (e.g., brightness, color capabilities, contrast and viewing
angle), size, design flexibility, power usage, durability, ruggedness and customer service. The Company believes
its total-quality: program, wide range of product offerings, flexibility, responsiveness, technical support and
cu$tomer satisfaction programs are important to its competitive position. ’ .

The Company’s direct competitors are numerous and diverse. For products based on EL technology, Planar
competes mainly with Sharp Electronics Corporation. In display systems including LCD components sourced
from manufacturers, Planar’s value-added products compete against those of Barco, Totoku, NDS and others in
the medical market; and NEC-Mitsubishi, Viewsonic, Dell and others in the commercial market. In the industrial
market, the Company sometimes competes against the internal engineering" functions of some of its OEM
customers. In addition, other industrial display systems specialists include Global Display Solutions, Three-Five
Systems, White [Electronic Designs Corporation and a variety of small, highly specialized producers.
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Employees

Human capital is considered to be a key element for success by the Company. Planar’s future success will-
depend largely on its ability to continue to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled and qualified personnel. The
company’s philosophy is to focus employee recruiting and retention efforts on those from the top quartile of their
professions, believing that top pay for top performance is a very good investment.

The Company’s U.S. employees are not represented by any collective bargaining units and the Company has
never experienced a work stoppage in the U.S. The Company’s Finnish employees are, for the most part, covered
by national union contracts. These contracts are negotiated annually between the various unions and the
Employer’s Union and stipulate benefits, wage rates, wage increases, grievance and termination procedures and
work conditions.

As of September 24, 2004, the Company had 433 employees worldwide; 262 in the United States and 171 in
Europe. Of these, 71 were engaged in marketing and sales, 55 in research and product development, 62 in finance
and administration, and 245 in manufacturing and manufacturing support.

Available Information

The Company’s Internet website address is www.planar.com. Planar’s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, cutrent reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, are available through the Internet website
as soon as reasonably practicable after it is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Company’s Internet website and the information contained therein or connected thereto are not
intended to be incorporated into the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Properties

The Company leases its primary manufacturing facilities and various sales offices in the United States and
Europe. The Company leases 37,000 square feet of custom-designed space, including 15,000 square feet of
cleanroom in Beaverton, Oregon for assembly operations. The European facility, located in Espoo, Finland, is a
custom-designed facility in which Planar leases 85,000 square feet, including approximately 15,000 square feet
of cleanroom.

The Company entered into a new lease in August 2001 for approximately 72,000 square feet of class A
office space in Beaverton, Oregon. The construction of this facility was completed in June 2002 and it is now
used for administrative office space, design engineering and associated lab and research and development
activities.

In 1994, the Company acqﬁired a 21,000 square-foot facility, with approximately 6,000 square feet of
cleanroom, also located in Beaverton, Oregon. This facility is being used for research and development activities.

The Company’s Lake Mills, Wisconsin, facility, formerly the site of the Company’s passive-matrix LCD
manufacturing operation, includes a 70,000 square-foot facility with approximately 7,500 square feet of
cleanroom. This property has been listed for sale.

In April 2002, the Company acquired DOME imaging systems, inc. located in Waltham, Massachusetts. The
Company has retained a lease on approximately 31,000 square feet, formerly leased by DOME, which is used for
sales and administration office space, design engineering and associated lab and research and development
activities and quality testing.

The Company has field sales offices in key U.S. metropolitan areas and four sales offices in Europe and
Asia. The offices are located in the Boston, Portland, Helsinki, Munich, Paris and Shanghai métropolitan areas.
Lease commitments for most of these facilities are typically six to twelve months. None of these sales offices has
significant leasehold improvements nor are any planned. ’

The Company believes that its facilities are adequate for its immediate and near-term requirements and does
not anticipate the need for significant additional expansion in the near future. ‘
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits ¢f Operations

FORWARD-LOOKING SFATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and other
sections of this Report contain statements that are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are based on current expectations, estimates and
projections about the Company’s business, management’s beliefs and assumptions. Words such as “expects”,
“anticipates”, “intends”, “plans”, “believes”, “‘seeks”, “‘estimates” and variations of such words and similar
expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of
future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict.
Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such
forward-looking staterments due to numerous factors including the following: domestic and international business
and economic ¢onditions, changes in growth in the flat-panel monitor industry, changes in customer demand or
ordering patterns, changes in the competitive environment including pricing pressures or technological changes,
continued success in technological advances, shertages of manufacturing capacities from our third party partners,
final settlement of contractual liabilities, future production variables impacting excess inventory and other risk
factors described below under “Outlook: Issues and Uncertainties”. The forward-looking statements contained in
this Report speak only as of the date on which they are made, and the Company does not undertake any
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this
Report. If the Company does update one or more forward-looking statements, it should not be concluded that the
Company will make additional updates with respect thereto or with respect to other forward-looking statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based
upon the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires the
Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates-
its estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, bad debts, inventories, warranty obligations,
intangible asset valuation and income taxes. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The
Company believes the following critical accounting policies and the related judgments and estimates affect the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. The Company’s policy is to recognize revenue for product sales when title transfers
and risk of loss! has passed to the customer, which is generally upon shipment of our products to our customers.
The Company defers and recognizes service revenue over the contractual period or as services are rendered.
Some distributor agreements allow for potential return of products and pre-established contractual obligations for
price protection under certain conditions within limited time periods. Such return rights are generally limited to
contractually défined short-term stock rotation. The Company estimates sales returns and price adjustments based
upon historical experience and other qualitative factors. The Company estimates expected sales returns and price
adjustments and records the amounts as a reduction of revenue at the later of the time of shipment or when the
pricing decision is made. Each period, price protection is estimated based upon pricing decisions made and
information received from customers as to the amount of inventory they are holding. The Company’s policies
comply with the guidance provided by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition, issued by the
Securities and :Exchange Commission. Judgments are required in evaluating the credit worthiness of our
customers. Credit is not extended to customers and revenue is not recognized until the Company has determined
that the risk of uncollectibility is minimal. ' '




Allowance for Doubtfui Accounts. The Company’s policy is to maintain allowances for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. Credit limits are established through a
process of reviewing the financial history and stability of each customer. Where appropriate, the Company
obtains credit rating reports and financial statements of the customer when determining or modifying their credit
limits. The Company regularly evaluates the collectibility of its trade receivable balances based on a combination
of factors. When a customer’s account balance becomes past due, the Company initiates dialogue with the
customer to determine the cause. M it is determined that the customer will be unable to meet its financial
obligation to the Company, such as in the case of bankruptcy, deterioration in the customer’s operating results or
financial position or other material events impacting their business, the Company records a specific allowance to
reduce the related receivable to the amount the Company expects to recover.

The Company also records an allowance for all customers based on certain other factors including the length
of time the receivables are past due, the amount outstanding, and historical collection experience with customers.
The Company believes its reported allowances are adequate. However, if the financial condition of those
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to make payments, the Company may need to record
additional allowances which would result in additional general and administrative expenses being recorded for
the period in which such determination was made.

Inventory. The Company is exposed to a number of economic and. industry factors that could result in
portions of its inventory becoming either obsolete or in excess of anticipated usage, or subject to lower of cost or
market issues. These factors include, but are not limited to, technological changes in the Company’s markets, the
Company’s ability to meet changing customer requirements, competitive pressures in products and prices, new
product introductions, product phase-outs and the availability of key components from the Company’s suppliers.
The Company’s policy is to reduce the value of inventory when conditions exist that suggest that its inventory
may be in excess of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon its assumptions about future demand for its
products and market conditions. The Company regularly evaluates its ability to realize the value of its inventory
based on a combination of factors including the following: historical usage rates, forecasted sales or usage,
product end-of-life dates, estimated current and future market values and new product introductions. Purchasing
practices and alternative usage avenues are explored within these processes to mitigate inventory exposure.
When recorded, the Company’s adjustments are intended to reduce the carrying value of its inventory to its net
realizable value. If actual demand for the Company’s products deteriorates or market conditions become less
favorable than those that the Company projects, additional inventory adjustments may be required.

Product Warranties. The Company’s products are sold with warranty provisions that require it to remedy
deficiencies in quality or performance over a specified period of time, generally between 12 and 36 months, at no
cost to the Company’s customers: The Company’s policy is to establish warranty reserves at levels that represent
its estimate of the costs that will be incurred to fulfill those warranty requirements at the time that revenue is
recognized. The Company believes that its recorded liabilities are adequate to cover its future cost of materials,
labor and overhead for the servicing of its products. If there is an actual product failure, or material or service
delivery costs differ from the Company’s estimates, its warranty liability would need to be revised accordingly.

Intangible assets. The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statements
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets” on accounting for business combinations and goodwill as of the beginning of fiscal
year 2002. Accordingly, the Company no longer amortizes goodwill from acquisitions, but continues to amortize
other acquisition-related intangibles and costs.

As required by these rules, the Company performs an impairment review of goodwill annually, or earlier if
indicators of potential impairment exist. This annual impairment review was completed during the second quarter
of fiscal year 2004, and no impairment was found. The impairment review is based on a discounted cash flow
approach that uses estimates of future market share and revenues and costs for the relevant segments as well as
appropriate discount rates. The estimates used are consistent with the plans and estimates that the Company uses
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to manage the tnderlying businesses. However, if the Company fails to deliver new products for these groups, if
the products fail to gain expected market acceptance, or if market conditions in the related businesses become
unfavorable, revenue and cost forecasts may not be achieved and the Company may incur charges for impairment
of goodwill. ‘

For identifiable intangible assets, the Company amortizes the cost over the estimated useful life'and assesses
any impairment by estimating the future cash flow from the associated asset in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. If the estimated cash flow related to these
assets decreases in the future or the uvseful life is shorter than originally estimated, the Company may incur
charges for impairment of these assets. The revised value is based on the new estimated discounted cash flow
associated with the asset. Impairment could result if the underlying technology fails to gain market acceptance,
the Company fails to deliver new products related to these technology assets, the products fail to gain expected
market acceptance or if market conditions in the related businesses become unfavorable.

Income Taxes. The Company records a valuation allowance when necessary to reduce its deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. The Company assesses the need for a valuation
allowance based upon its estimate of future taxable income covering a relatively short time horizon given the
volatility in thé markets the Company serves and its historic operating results. Tax planning strategies to use the
Company’s recorded deferred tax assets are also considered. If the Company is able to realize the deferred tax
assets in an amount in excess of its reported net amounts, an adjustment to decrease the valuation allowance
associated with deferred tax assets would increase earnings in the period such a determination was made.
Similarly, if thie Company should determine that its net deferred tax assets may not be realized to the extent
reported, an adjustment to increase the valvation allowance associated with the deferred tax assets would be
charged to income in the period such a determination was made.

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

In April 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of DOME imaging systems, inc. (“DOME"). DOME
designs, manufactures and markets computer graphic imaging boards, flat-panel displays and software for
original equipment manufacturers in the medical field and other advanced image processing applications. As a
result of the acquisition, the Company is able to offer a broader range of medical display solutions, which
complements our medical product line. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the
operations of DOME have been included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.
The total consideration paid was $65.7 million which consisted of $52.2 million of cash, stock options assumed
which were valued at $11.3 million, cash to be paid for stock options of $1.2 million and closing and related
costs of $1.0 million. The Company recorded a non-recurring charge of $2.3 million in the third quarter of fiscal
2002 for in-process research and development costs. See Note 3 ~ Business Acquisitions in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements which is included in Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
in this report. - :




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage of sales of certain items in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company. The table and the discussion below should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes therelo.

Fiscal Years Ended
Sept, 24, Sept. 26, Sept. 27,
2004 2003 2002
Sales ....... e e e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofsales ......oouiiiiir ittt 76.8 69.7 70.7
Grossprofit ... .o 232 303 293
Operating expenses:
Research and development,net ................... 4.2 44 6.3
Salesand marketing . ....... ..., 7.1 7.8 74
General and administrative ... ..................., 6.1 6.8 6.6
Amortization of intangibles ...................... 1.0 1.2 0.5
Impairment, restructuring and in-process research and
development charges ......................... (0.2) 0.2 10.1
Total OPErating XPenses ... ...............eeevvnnnn. 18.2 204 30.9
Income (loss) from operations ........................ 5.0 9.9 (1.6)
Non-operating income (expense): y
Interest,met ... ... it e e 0.2) (0.5) 0.7
Foreignexchange,net............ ... ... .. ... ... — — 0.0
Other, Net ... i i i e e e 0.2 — —
Net non-operating income (eXpense) ................... —_ (0.5) (0.8)
Income (loss) before income taxes . .................... 5.0 9.4 2.4)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ................... 1.4 34 0.9)
Netincome (JoSS) ..o vttt e e 3.6% 6.0% 1.5%
Overview

Our results for fiscal 2004 were below our original expectations. Sales of $256.2 million were up
sequentially $4.3 million or 1.7% due to strong growth in our Commercial business offset by declines in our
Industrial and Medical businesses. Net income per diluted share was $0.62 in fiscal 2004 down from $1.04 in the
prior year. Net income suffered from the higher-than-expected costs in the Medical segment associated with the
offshore transfer of digital imaging production, a strategy shift for our digital imaging products and weak
profitability in our Commercial segment. We also took a $0.6 million non-operating charge this year to reduce
the carrying value of an equity investment. Fiscal 2004 benefited from a change in our expected tax rate and a
non-operating gain of $1.0 million on sale of an investment.

Our Medical business went through a significant strategic change this year. In the first quarter demand for
digital imaging products was softer than expected. Early in the second quarter, the Company declared a strategy
of maintaining its product leadership position while also establishing a price leadership position. We also
increased our emphasis on altemnative distribution channels, leveraging existing relationships in our Commercial
business. These strategic changes showed positive results in the second half of the year. Part of the gains in the
latter half of the year were offset by weaknesses in our point-of-care business.

In our Industrial business we have been redirecting our investment focus away from components toward
fully integrated-solutions in chosen markets. We have identified front-office applications in retail establishments
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as a market opportunity with considerable potential growth. We believe digital technology, catalyzed by flat-
panel displays; will increasingly be used to inform and interact with customers in retail establishments.

Our Commercial business enjoyed strong growth and improved diversification of distribution partners
during the year. In the first half of the year the business was significantly impacted by difficult panel supply
conditions. Inithe second half of the year, panel supplies shifted rapidly from scarcity to surplus and we took in
more inventory than needed. During the fourth quarter, there was a sharp drop in retail prices which resulted in
sales at below-target margins. Our value proposition and brand continue to resonate with our channel partners
and their customers. We are building a strong brand around customer satisfaction that will benefit this segment
and the entire; company over the long term. Our success growing sales of our medical products through this
channel demonstrates an important synergistic benefit.

Turning back to Planar as a whole and looking forward, fiscal 2005 is expected to be a year of investments
to create profitable growth. We intend to make additional sales and marketing investments over the coming
quarters in Europe and China. We have deployed one of our senior executives to drive growth in Europe, hired
new sales and marketing professionals in Germany and have established a stronger presence in China. We
believe we can achieve significant market share gains through targeted investments in these markets. As
mentioned abave, we are pursuing opportunities in front-office retail applications. Our strategy is to serve these
emerging applications by providing total solutions that include hardware, software and associated services. We
will also be making investments in the development of significant software addressing these retail applications.
Going forward, software functionality in our products is expected to form a key component of value addition and
differentiation. These investments in geographic expansion and pursuit of emerging markets in retail applications
will increase our operating expenses in fiscal 2005. We believe these are prudent investments that will serve the
shareholders in the long Tun.

Sales

Sales of $256.2 million in 2004 increased $4.3 million or 1.7% as compared to sales of $251.9 million in
2003. The increase in sales was due to higher sales in the Commercial segment offset by decreases in both the
Industrial and Medical segments. Sales in the Commercial segment increased $24.6 million or 25.3% to $121.8
million in 2004 from $97.3 million in 2003. This increase in the Commercial segment was due to market growth,
the introduction of new products, higher volumes sold through a broader distribution network and increased
market penetration. Sales in the Industrial segment decreased by $11.2 million or 17.0% year over year. This
decrease in the Industrial segment was driven by product consolidation across the business. Sales in the Medical
segment decreased $9.1 million or 10.2% 10 $79.6 million in 2004 from $88.6 million in 2003. The decrease in
Medical segment sales was due to decreases in sales of digital imaging, point-of-care and components product
lines. ‘ '

Sales of $251.9 million in 2003 increased $46.0 million or 22.3% from $205.9 million in 2002. The increase
in sales was principally due to higher sales in both the Commercial and Medical segments, offset by lower sales
in the Industrial segment. Sales in the Commercial segment increased $42.4 million or 77.3% to $97.3 miilion in
2003 from $54.9 million in 2002. This increase in the Commercial segment was due to new product
introductions, a broader distributor network, increased market penetration, and growth in the overall market.
Sales in the Medical segment increased by $9.7 million or 12.2% year over year. This increase in the Medical
segment was primarily due to revenues associated with the acquisition of DOME, which were only included in
the ‘results of operations for five months in fiscal 2002, offset by decreases in revenues associated with EL and
AMLCD products. Increases in sales in the Commercial and Medical segments were offset by a decrease in sales
of $6.1 million or 8.4% in the Industrial segment. Sales in the Industrial segment were lower due to the
Company’s streamlining of the product portfolio to increase profitability. and support the manufacturing
consolidation. ' :

Sales outside the United States decreased by 19.0% to $38.8 million in 2004 as compared to $47.9 million
recorded in 2003, and decreased by 1.4% in 2003 from 2002 sales of $48.6 million. In fiscal 2004, the decrease
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in international sales was due primarily to decreased sales in both the Medical and Industrial segments. In fiscal
2003, the decrease in international sales was due primarily to decreased sales in the Medical segment. As a
percentage of total sales, international sales decreased to 15.1% in 2004 and decreased to 19.0% in 2003 from
23.6% in 2002. In fiscal 2004, the decline in international sales as a percentage of total sales was mainly
atiributable to the higher volumes of Commercial segment sales, which are to U.S. customers almost exclusively.
In fiscal 2003, the decline in international sales as a percentage of total sales was mainly attributable to the
increased sales of commercial and digital imaging products in the United States.

Gross Profit

Gross margins as a percentage of sales decreased to 23.2% in 2004 as compared to 30.3% in 2003. The
decrease in gross margin was due to the increased percentage of sales from our Commercial segment in 2004 as
compared to 2003 and the substantially lower gross margins of these products have reduced overall gross margin.
In addition, higher costs incurred in the Medical segment related to the transition of certain products to offshore
manufacturers and the shipment of higher-cost inventory built domestically negatively impacted gross margins.
Gross margin as a percentage of sales increased to 30.3% in 2003 from 29.3% in 2002. The increase was
primarily due to the benefits of the EL plant consolidation, the negative impact related to $1.5 miilion of
restructuring charges recorded in 2002 and changes in product mix including the incremental impact related to
the DOME line of products. These increases were offset by a higher percentage of total sales coming from the
commercial market, which have lower gross margins.

Research and Development

In 2004, research and development expenses of $10.7 million decreased $405,000 or 3.6% from $11.1
million in 2003. This decrease was due to lower product development costs and lower personnel costs associated
with reductions in variable compensation, offset by lower contract funding and higher spending on research and
Quantum Programs compared to the prior year. Quantum Programs are “intrapreneurial” efforts launched with
the intent of developing new potential business opportunities. As a percentage of sales, research and development
expenses decreased to 4.2% in 2004 compared to 4.4% in 2003. The change in segment mix drove the decrease
in percentage, as research and development spending primarily supports the Medical and Industrial segments and
the Quantum programs -and will tend to follow the business level of those segments while the Commercial
segment incurs essentially no research and development spending. Net research and development expenses of
$11.1 million in 2003 decreased $1.8 million or 13.6% from $12.9 million in the prior year primarily due to
lower spending on new projects and lower personnel costs. As a percentage of sales, research and development
expenses decreased to 4.4% in 2003 from 6.3% in 2002. These changes were primarily due to higher revenues in
the Commercial segment in 2003. :

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses decreased $1.5 million or 7.7% to $18.1 million in 2004 from $19.7 million in
2003. The decrease was primarily due to lower personnel costs associated with reductions in variable
compensation. As a percentage of sales, sales and marketing expenses decreased to 7.1% in 2004 as compared to
7.8% in 2003. The Commercial segment sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of sales is far below that
of the other segments. The change in segment mix along with the reduction in variable compensation expense
drove the decrease as a percentage of sales. Sales and marketing expenses increased $4.4 million or 28.6 % to
$19.7 million in 2003 from $15.3 million in 2002 primarily due to higher sales and marketing expenses due to
the acquisition of DOME, higher advertising expenses associated with our Commercial segment, higher
personne!l costs and higher marketing expenses due to a brand development project. As a percentage of sales,
sales and marketing expenses increased to 7.8% in 2003 as compared to 7.4% in 2002. These percentage
increases were primarily due to higher revenues in 2003. '
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General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses decreased $1.6 million or 9.2% to $15.6 million in 2004 from $17.2
million in 2003. The decrease in general and administrative expenses was primarily due to lower personnel costs
associated with reductions in variable compensation. As a percentage of sales, general and administrative
expenses decreased to 6.1% in 2004 from 6.8% in 2003 primarily due to the reasons noted above. General and
administrative expenses increased $3.5 million or 25.8% to $17.2 million in 2003 from $13.6 million in 2002
primarily due ito higher personnel costs, higher professional services costs, and the inclusion of DOME’s
expenses for a full year. As a percentage of sales, general and administrative expenses increased to 6.8% in 2003
from 6.6% in 2002. These changes in 2003 as compared to 2002 were primarily due to the acquisition of DOME
and higher personnel costs.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

On April 22, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of DOME. $14.6 million of the purchase price
was allocated to identifiable intangible assets. The identifiable intangible assets consist primarily of developed
technology andi are being amortized over their estimated useful lives. The weighted-average amortization period
was approximately four years at the date of acquisition. During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company
recorded amortization of intangible assets of $2.7 million, $2.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

Impairment and Restructuring Charges
2003 Severance Charges

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company decided to reduce its workforce by 28 employees in
order to align operations with current market conditions, improve profitability, and close a European sales office.
As a result of this decision, the Company recorded severance charges of $898,000, which have been recorded as
restructuring charges in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. Cash of
$898,000 was expected to be used in connection with these severance costs. This action was completed during
fiscal 2004.

LCD, EL and Photonics Charges

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company decided to transition its passive-matrix LCD product
manufacturing from Wisconsin to China, consolidate its EL product manufacturing into a single factory in
Finland and terminate the photonics Quantum programs that were directed at the optical telecommunication
markets. These actions were intended to align operations with current market conditions and to improve the
profitability of the Company’s operations. The Company completed its transition of PMLCD product
manufacturing to China at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2003. The consolidation of its EL manufacturing
facilities into oge facility in Finland was completed by the end of fiscal 2003. The termination of the photonics
Quantum programs was completed by the end of fiscal 2002. As a resuit of these decisions, the Company
recorded charges of $20.0 million, including charges primarily for impairment of fixed assets, workforce
reductions of 236 employees, excess inventory and lease cancellation and restoration costs. Cash of $4.1 million
was expected to'be used in connection with severance and lease cancellation and restoration costs.

The Company recorded fixed asset impairment charges of $14.3 million as a-result of these decisions. The
majority of these charges were for equipment and machinery and includes estimates for the sales proceeds based
upon prices for similar assets in the used equipment market. There were also amounts included in the impairment
charge for the building and land at the Wisconsin manufacturing facilities, which are based upon quoted real
estate market prices. This facility is currently listed for sale. The Company also recorded charges of $1.5 million
for excess and obsolete inventory, which has been identified as a direct result of the decision to' consolidate
facilities or transition the products to offshore manufacturers resulting in the exit of certain product lines. The
Company has also recorded a charge of $1.7 million for lease cancellations and restoration. In addition, the
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Company has recorded severance charges of $2.4 million. The charges of $1.5 million related to inventory have
been recorded as cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002,
The remaining charges of $18.5 million have been recorded as impairment and restructuring charges in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company recorded an additional charge of $335,000 for fixed
asset impairment charges. This additional charge was due to changes in the original estimates of expected cash
proceeds from the sale of fixed assets. In addition, the Company determined that $738,000 of the original $20.0
million charge was not required. The original estimates changed due to lease cancellation, restoration and
severance costs being less than originally anticipated as employees left voluntarily or filled other vacant positions
within the Company. These changes in estimates from the original reserve were not anticipated and resulted in a
non-recurring gain of $403,000 which has been recorded as impairment and restructuring charges in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of 2003.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company determined that $466,000 of the original $20.0
million charge was not required. The original estimates changed due to lease restoration costs being less than
originally anticipated as the Company and the landlord found a suitable tenant to lease the property as is and the
Company did not have to restore the facility to its original state. The Company also recognized $174,000 of gains
on the sale of assets which had previously been impaired. These changes in estimates from the original reserve
were not anticipated and resulted in a non-recurring gain of $640,000 which has been recorded as impairment
and restructuring charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.

Current-Year Activity

During fiscal year 2004, the Company paid cash of $1.4 million related to contractual liabilities, severance,
and lease termination costs. The remaining amounts are expected to be paid during fiscal 2005.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased $4.7 million or 9.2% to $46.6 million in 2004 from $51.3 million in 2003.
The decrease was primarily due to lower personnel costs associated with reductions in variable compensation
which were not earned in 2004 but were earned in 2003. As a percentage of sales, operating expenses decreased
to 18.2% in 2004 from 20.4% in 2003. Operating expenses decreased $12.4 million or 19.5% to $51.3 million in
2003 from $63.7 million in 2002. As a percentage of sales, operating expenses decreased to 20.4% in 2003 from
30.9% in 2002 primanly due to the impact of recording the $20.7 million of impairment, restructuring and
in-process research and development charges, offset by higher operating expenses primarily associated with the
acquisition of DOME and the payment of variable compensation in 2003.

Non-operating Income and Expense

Non-operating income and expense includes interest income on investments, interest expense, net foreign
currency exchange gain or loss and other income or expenses. Net interest expense decreased to $444,000 in
2004 from $1.3 million in 2003 primarily due to decreased borrowings as the Company paid the amounts due.
Net interest expense was $1.3 million in both 2003 and 2002. During 2004, the Company reduced the camrying
value of an investment in a publicly traded Taiwanese company, Topvision Technology, from $1.5 million to
approximately $900,000 due to a sustained decline in that company’s market value that was determined to be
other than temporary. The Company may incur additional charges in the future if Topvision’s market value
continues to decline. The Company also recognized a gain of $1.0 million on the sale of an investment in a
privately held company during 2004. These amounts have been recorded as other non-operating income in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Foreign currency exchange gains and losses are related to timing differences in the receipt and payment of
funds in various currencies and the conversion of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable denominated in
foreign currencies to the applicable functional currency. Foreign currency exchange gains and losses amounted to
net losses of $29,000, $40,000 and $154 000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company currently realizes less than one-fifth of its revenue outside the United States and expects this
to continue in the future. Additionally, the functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiary is the Euro
which must be|translated to U.S. Dollars for consolidation. The Company hedges its Euro exposure with foreign
exchange forward contracts. The Company believes that this hedging mitigates the risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations.

Provision (Beneﬁt) for Income Taxes

- The Company recorded a tax provision of $3 5 million in 2004, and $8.6 million in.2003, and a tax benefit
of $1 9 million in 2002. For fiscal 2004, the differences between the effective tax rate and the federal statutory
rate were due to state income taxes, federal and state settlements, changes in the valuation allowance and the
effects of the Company’s foreign tax rates. For fiscal 2003, the differences between the effective tax rate and the
federal statutory rate were due to state income taxes, research credits, changes in the valuation allowance, and the
effects of the Company’s foreign tax rates. For fiscal 2002, the differences between the effective tax rate and the
federal statutory rate were due to state income taxes, permanent differences resulting from purchase accounting
adjustments, research credits, changes in the valuation allowance, federal and state settlements and the effects of
the Company’s:foreign tax rates.

Net Income (L"bss)

In 2004, net income was $9.3 million or $0.62 per diluted share. In 2003, net income was $15.2 million or
$1.04 per diluted share. In 2002, net loss was $3.1 million or $0.24 per share.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Net cash provided by operating activities was $7.2 million, $28.7 million, and $23. 7 million in fiscal years
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Net cash provided by operations in 2004 was primarily due to net income,
depreciation and amortization, deferred taxes and a decrease in accounts receivable- offset by an increase in
inventories and, decreases in other current liabilities and accrued compensation. Net cash provided by operations
in 2003 was primarily due to net income, depreciation and amortization, and changes in accounts payable and
other current liabilities, offset by the changes in inventories and accounts receivable. Net cash provided by
operations in 2002 was primarily due to the impairment, restructuring and in-process research and development
charges, depreciation and amortization and the change in accounts receivable offset by the net loss and the
changes in inventories, accounts payable and other current liabilities.

Working capital increased $17.2 mitlion to $90.6 million at September 24, 2004 from $73.4 million at
September 26, 2003. Current assets decreased $1.1 million in ﬁscz_il 2004. Accounts receivable decreased $5.9
million due to' reductions in days sales outstanding. Inventories increased $12.5 million primarily due to
increased inventory levels ‘and requirements related, to the growth in the Commercial and Medical segments.
Current liabijlities decreased $18.2 million in fiscal 2004. Other current liabilities decreased $4.4 million
primarily due to decreases in income taxes payable and payments of contractual liabilities. Accrued
compensation decreased $2.6 million due to payments of variable compensation related to fiscal 2003. During
2004, the Company also reduced its outstanding long-term debt and capitalized lease balances through payments
of $21.5 million.

14




Additions to plant and equipment were $5.2 million, $2.7 million and $5.7 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. In 2004, expenditures for plant and equipment primarily related to-new software applications that
enable efficiency improvements and support the Company’s growth. In 2003, expenditures for plant and
equipment primarily related to manufacturing equipment and upgrades to computer hardware and software. In
2002, expenditures for plant and equipment primarily related to additional costs associated with the ERP
implementation, the leasehold improvements in a new office and improvements to information systems. Cash
used in the acquisition of DOME was provided by increased long-term borrowings and the proceeds from the
issuance of common stock.

In December 2003, the Company entered into a $50.0 million credit agreement, replacing the Company’s
prior credit agreement. The Company had no borrowings against the credit agreement at September 24, 2004.
The agreement expires December 1, 2008, and is secured by substantially all assets of the Company. Total
unused and available borrowing capacity under the credit agreement as of September 24, 2004 was $50.0 million.
The interest rate can fluctuate quarterly based upon the actual funded-debt-to-EBITDA ratio and the LIBOR rate.
The agreement includes the following financial covenants: a fixed-charge ratio, minimum EBITDA, minimum
net worth, and a funded-debt-to-EBITDA ratio. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of
September 24, 2004. Borrowings outstanding under certain equipment financing loans were $0 and $2.6 million
as of September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003, respectively. The Company also entered into a capital lease
duririg the third quarter of 2002 for leasehold improvements in new offices. The total minimum lease payments
are $1.2 million which are payable over the next five years. The Company believes its existing cash and
investments, together with cash generated from operations and existing borrowing capabilities will be sufficient
to meet working capital requirements for the foreseeable future.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company completed the sale of approximately 463,000 shares of
newly issued common stock in a private placement transaction. The purchase price was $21.60 per share and
resulted in net proceeds of $9.5 million.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The Company is contractually obligated to make the following payments as of September 24, 2004:

Payments due by period
Less than 1-3 3.5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Capital leases .........0 .. it $1,191 § 246 $ 492 § 453 § —
Purchase obligations .. ........oov it 46,200 46,129 71 —_— -
Operating 1eases . ..........ooviiiiiiiniinnn .. 19,559 3,040 6,010 3974 6,535
Total contractual obligations .......................... $66,950 $49,415 $6,573 $4,427 $6.535
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The table below presents unaudited consolidated financial results for each quarter in the two-year period
ended September 24, 2004. The Company believes that all necessary adjustments have been included to present
fairly the quarterly information when read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future
period.

Three months ended

Sept. 24, June25, Mar.26, Dec.26, Sept.26, June27, Mar.28, Dec 27,
2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003 2003 2002

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Sales ........ e $68,020 $66,663 $58,614 $62,899 $72,210 $62,870 $60,104 $56,743
Gross profit .................. 14,311 15309 13,284 16,461 20,195 20,001 19,378 16,766
Income from operations . ........ 2476 3720 1,543 5065 7,697 6983 5778 4,604
Netincome .................. 2,782 2,653 744 3,099 4548 4393 3551 2710
Diluted net income per share . . .. . $ 0198 018 % 005 % 021 $ 030 % 0308 025 8 0.19
Average shares

outstanding-diluted .......... 14,791 14,785 14,852 . 15053 14,983 14,524 14,391 14,429

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its investment
portfolio and short-term and long-term debt obligations. The Company mitigates its risk by diversifying its
investments among high-credit-quality securities in accordance with the Company’s investment policy.

The Company believes that its net income or cash flow exposure relating to rate changes for short-term and
long-term debt obligations are not material. The Company primarily enters into debt obligations to support
acquisitions, capital expenditures and working capital needs. The Company does not hedge any interest rate
exposures.

Interest expense is affected by the general level of U. S. interest rates and/or LIBOR. Increases in interest
expense resulting from an increase in interest rates would be at least partially offset by a corresponding increase
in interest earned on the Company’s investments.

The Euro 1s the functional currency of the Company’s subsidiary in Finland. The Company enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain balance sheet exposures and intercompany balances against
future movements in foreign exchange rates. The forward exchange contracts are settled and renewed on a
monthly basis in order to maintain a balance between the balance sheet exposures and the contract amounts. The
Company maintained open contracts of approximately $13.8 million at September 24, 2004. If rates shifted
dramatically, thé Company believes it would not be materially impacted. In addition, the Company does maintain
cash balances dénominated in currencies other than the U. S. Dollar. If foreign exchange rates were to weaken
against the U. S. Dollar, the Company believes that the fair value of these foreign currency amounts would not
decline by a material amount.

Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO") and Chief Financial Officer (“CF0"), the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and
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CFO have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. Subsequent to the date of their evaluation, there were no
significant changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting or in other factors that could
significantly affect the disclosure controls, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies
and material weaknesses.
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Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Report

The Board of Directors
Planar Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries: .

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Planar Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of September :24, 2004 and September 26, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 24, 2004.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based upon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidencé supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects,
the financial position of Planar Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003,

and the results of their operations, and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
September 24, 2004 in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
October 18, 2004
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents . ........ ... .. i,
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $529 at 2004 and
3790 at 2003 (NOtE 2) ..ottt i e
Inventories . ... .. e

Total CuITent assets . ..........ovviiririreniner s e
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 5) ...,
Goodwill ..o e
Intangible assets, MEt . ... ..ot e e
Otherassets (NGt ) .. ... iii ittt e e e e e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... ...
Accrued COMPENSALION - ... ..ttt it iiiian et e e
Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases (Note 6) ...................
Deferred IeVENUE ... ..o e

Total current liabilities ....... ... .. .. .. ... i e
Long-term debt and capital leases, less current portion (Note 6) .....................
Other long-term liabilities (Notes 8and 9) ......... ... .. ... i i,

Total liabilities . ... i e e

Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 10,000,000 shares, no shares issued . .. .. :

Common stock, no par value. Authorized 30,000,000 shares; issued 14,638,302 and
14,391,880 shares at 2004 and 2003, respectively ..................... e

Retained earnings .........c. ittt

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 14) . ................ oot

Total shareholders’ equity . ... ... ... i

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

19

Sept. 24, Sept. 26,
2004 2003

(In thousands, except
share data)

$ 30,265 S 37,424

31,221 37,148
51,802 39,255
11,005 11,536

124,293 125,363
17,860 19,898
49,001 49,001

7815 10,547
7,455 5,027

$206,424 $209,836

$ 19,946 §$ 20,076
3,007 5,560
193 12,373
1,413 410
9,114 13,498

33673 51917
847 3217
6376 3,863

40,896 58,997

130,924 126,947
39,786 30,621
(5,182)  (6,729)

165,528 150,839
$206,424 $209,836




PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal year ended
Sept. 24, Sept. 26, Sept. 27,
2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per
share amounts)
Sales ........ e e e e e e e e e $256,196 $251,927 $205,929
Cost Of SA1ES ... v ittt e e 196,831 175,587 145,599
Gross PrOfit . . oot e e e e e 59,365 76,340 60,330
'Operating expenses: '
Research and development,net ................coiiiiiiii, 10,737 11,142 12,895
Salesand MArKElNg .. ... vv'virtt e ettt et 18,146 19,651 15,286
General and administrative . ......ccovii i 15,586 17,158 13,638
Amortization of intangible assets ............. ... ... ool _ 2,732 2,832 1,180
Impairment, restructuring and in-process research and development :
charges(Notes 3and4) ... ...ttt (640) 495 20,710
Total Operating eXpenses .......c.vvvvunrererinrnneneennnens 46,561 51,278 63,709
Income (105S) fIOM OPETALIONS .. v et vvv et eetenenereneerinenenens. 12,804 25,062 (3,379)
Non-operating income (expense): _
Interest INCOME .. ... i i ittt i it et s 228 446 479
INterest eXPEnSe . .. .ot e e e 672) (1,710) (1,747)
Foreignexchange,met ................ 0o i 29) (40) (154)
Other, Ret o e e 471 .21 (140)
Net non-operating €Xpense . ... .vvviereinennnnrnnaenaren. .. 2) (1,283) (1,562)
Income (loss) before income taxes . ......oooiiiin i 12,802 23,779 (4,941)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (Note 9) .......................... 3,524 8,577 (1,879)
NEt iNCOME (I0SS) + .+ o e v vv e et eetiee et $ 9278 $ 15202 $ (3,062)
Basic net income (108S) PEr Share . ... .....oouirvinininenenneeenen... $§ 064 $ 108 $ (024
Average sharesoutstanding—basic ........... ... ... . oo, 14,597 14,016 12,937
Diluted net income (loss) pershare ............coooiiveeaeinn. .. S $§ 062 $§ 104 $.(0.24)
Average sharesioutstanding—diluted ........ ... .. ... o L 14,860 14,572 12,937

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal year ended
Sept. 24, Sept. 26, Sept. 27,
2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Netincome (JOSS) -« oot vttt et et e e e $ 9,278
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating

activities :

$ 15202 § (3,062)

9,757 9,358

495 22,221
1279 1,594
2,697 2,535

(6,401) 9,466

(10,328)  (7.494)

603  (2,412)
13917 (3257
(359) (787
(199) 125
2,067  (4,603)

28,730 23,684

(2,702)  (5,706)

C— (52.216)
(57) 223
330 19

(2,429) (57,680)

(35,615)  (3.922)
— 40,000
(519)  (554)
6,730 15,906

(29,404) 51,430
3,076 (1,990)

27) 15,444
37,451 22,007

Depreciation and amortization . .............. ..o, 8,882
Impairment, restructuring and in-process research and development
charges ... ... (640)
Deferred taxes ....... ...t e 3,478
Tax benefit of stock options exercised ............. ... i, 338
Gain oninVveStMENntsS, MEL . ... . ... . .'vtvrn et anaanennns (379)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable ......................... 6,199
{(Increase) decrease ininventories .. ........cveviiiiiiinaiaanaa.. (12,145)
{Increase) decrease in othercurrent assets .. .........covvvinunn.n, 1,156
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ............. ... ... o (511)
Decrease in accrued COmMpensation .. .......c.eviunerenennennenn.. (2,859)
Increase (decrease) indeferredrevenue . ............ .. ... ... 906
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities . ...................... (6,520)
Net cash provided by operating activities ............c.oviiiiiiiinnnn.. 7,183
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment .................... ... ... L. (5,155)
Investmentinabusiness . ....... .. ... .. .. L i i, —
Proceeds from sale of investment .. ... ... .. e 1,000
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilittes .. .................... ... —
{Increase) decrease inlong termassets ............... ..o )
Net cash used in investing activities . .........c. i envennenenen (4,254)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations . ............. ... (21,486)
Proceeds from long-termdebt ... ... ... ... ... . . . . ..., 6,936
Stock repurchase ... ...... ... (113)
Net proceeds from issuance of capital stock ........... ... .............. 3,639
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ...................... (11,024)
Effect of exchange ratechanges . . ............. e, 936
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..................... (7,159
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ........................ 37,424
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period .................... ... .. ... $ 30,265

$37424 § 37451

Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cashpaid forinterest ........... ... .. ... i, $§ 6712
Cashpaid forincometaxes ...............ooviiiiiiinineenonn... 2,478
Acquisition of assets under capitai leases ............. ... ...l —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 1,885 $ 1,693
1,820 378
— 1,422




PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Common Stock Retained Com;?::}f:nsive Shérzg::iem’
Shares Amount Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
(In thousands, except share amounts)
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 28,2001 .......... 12,533,823 $ 87,803 $19,554  $(11,268) $ 96,089
Components of comprehensive loss (Note 14):
Netloss oovviieie i et —_— — (3,062) — (3,062)
Currency translation adjustment, net ...... — — — 2,312 2,312
Unrealized loss on investments, net ....... — — — (143) (143)
Total comprehensive loss ........... (893)
Proceeds from/issuance of common stock ...... 1,094,498 15,906 — — 15,906
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
(Note9) ............ e e — 2,335 — — 2,535
Value of stock-options assumed in acquisition
(Note3) ... oo i —_ 11,276 — — 11,276
Stockrepurchase ........... ... ... o .. (26,946) — (554) — (559)
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 27,2002 .......... 13,601,375 117,520 15,938 (9,099) 124,359
Components of comprehensive income (Note 14):
Netincome .............ooiiisiinnn, — — 15,202 — 15,202
Currency translation adjustment, net ...... — — — 2,618 2,618
Unrealized loss on investments, net ....... : — — — (248) (248)
Total comprehensive income . ....... 17,572
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...... 814,606 6,730 — —_ 6,730
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
NOte ) ..ot e — 2,697 — - 2,697
Stock repurchase ....... P (24,101) — (519) — (519)
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 26,2003 .......... 14,391,880 126,947 30,621 (6,729) 150,839
Components of comprehensive income (Note 14):
NEtINCOME .+t ii e it iiienennenns — — 9,278 — 9,278
Currency translation adjustment, net ...... — — — 1,319 1,319
Unrealized gain on investments, net .. .. ... —_ — — 228 228
Total comprehensive income ........ 10,825
Proceeds from issuance of common stock .. .... 251,422 3,639 — — 3,639
Tax benefit of stock options exercised -
NOTE D) oo et — 338 — — 338
Stockrepurchase ........... ... oot (5,000) — (113) — (113)
BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 24,2004 .......... 14,638,302 $130,924 $39,786 § (5,182) $165,528

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THREE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 24, 2004
(Dollars _in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . -
Operations

Planar Systems, Inc. was incorporated on April 27, 1983 and commenced operations in June 1983. Planar
Systems, Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) are engaged in developing,
manufacturing and marketing electronic display products and systems. These display products and systems are
primarily electroluminescent displays (EL), active matrix liquid crystal dxsplays (AMLCD) and plasma display
panels (PDP).

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Planar Systems, Inc. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Planar International Lid.,, and DOME imaging systems, inc. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Friday in September. The last days of fiscal 2004, 2003, and
2002 were September 24, September 26, and September 27, respectively. Due to statutory requirements, Planar
International’s fiscal year-end is September 30. All references to a year in these notes are to the Company’s fiscal
year ended in the period stated which includes the fiscal year results of Planar International.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the:
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Foreign currency translation

The local currency is the functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiary. Assets and liabilities' of
the foreign subsidiary are translated into U.S. Dollars at current exchange rates, and sales and expenses are
translated using average rates. Gains and losses from translation of net assets are included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included as a component of non-
operating income (expense).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposits in banks and highly liquid instruments with maturities of
three months or less from the time of purchase.

Investments

Debt securities for which the Company does not have the intent or ability to hold to maturity are classified
as available for sale, along with the Company’s investment in equity securities. Securities available for sale are
carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in accumulated other comprehensive
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loss. At September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003, the Company had no investments that qualified as trading
or held to maturity.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company has
established an allowance for doubtful accounts which represents the Company’s best estimate of the amount of
the probable credit losses in the Company’s existing accounts receivable. The Company determines the
allowance by performing ongoing evaluations of its customers and their ability to make payments. The Company
determines the adequacy of the allowance based on length of time past due, historical experience and judgment
of economic conditions. Additionally, the Company has a credit policy that is applied to its potential customers.
Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all options have been exhausted and the potential
recovery is considered unlikely.

Inventories

Inventories. are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market, net of adjustments for
estimated inventory obsolescence based upon the Company’s best estimate of future product demand. Inventories
consist of:

2004 2003
Raw MAEHals ..\t vettee it cnner et iecrineenineananres  $13,990 11,308
WOrkft Progress . . .ovv vttt ettt e 1,942 2,891
Finished 200dS . .. .......oveuvnn.. P 35870 25,056

$51,802  $39,255

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of equipment is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
generally three [to seven years. Capitalized leases and leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the lesser of the life of the leases or the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of the
buildings is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the buildings, estimated to be 39
years,

Other assets

Included in other assets of $7,455 and $5,027 as of September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003,
respectively, are assets associated with equipment which had not been placed in service as of September 24, 2004
and September 26, 2003 in.the amounts of $3,379 and $1,615, respectively.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis.and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates expected to be in
effect when such amounts are realized or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when
it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for product sales when title transfers and risk of loss has passed to the
customer, which is generally upon shipment of our products to our customers. The Company defers and
recognizes service revenue over the contractual period or as services are rendered. Some distributor agreements
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allow for potential return of products and pre-established contractual obligations for price protection under
certain conditions within limited time periods. Such return rights are generally limited to contractually defined
short-term stock rotation. The Company estimates sales returns and price adjustments based on historical
experience and other qualitative factors. The Company estimates expected sales returns and price adjustments
and records the amounts as a reduction in revenue at the later of the time of shipment or when the pricing
decision is made. Each period, price protection is estimated based upon pricing decisions made and information
received from customers as to the amount of inventory they are holding. Judgments are required in evaluating the
credit worthiness of our customers. Credit is not extended to customers and revenue is not recognized until the
Company has determined that the risk of uncollectibility is minimal.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The Company periodically enters into research
and development contracts with certain governmental agencies and private-sector companies. These contracts
generally provide for reimbursement of costs. Funding from research and development contracts is recognized as
a reduction in operating expenses during the period in which the services are performed and related direct
expenses are incurred, as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Research and development expense .................. $11,063 313,467 $15,143
Contractfunding . ..........covii i, (326) (2,325) (2,248)
Research and development,net ..................... $10,737  S11,142  $12,895

Warranty

The Company provides a warranty for its products and establishes an allowance at the time of sale to cover
estimated costs during the warranty period. The warranty period is generally between 12 and 36 months. This
reserve is included in other current liabilities (Note 7).

Intangible assets

The intangible assets consist primarily of developed technology and are being amortized over their
estimated useful lives. The weighted-average amortization period was approximately four years. As of
September 24, 2004, and September 26, 2003, the Company had recorded accumulated amortization of $6,744
and $4,012, respectively. The amortization expense is estimated to be $2,213, $1,680, $1,226, $589 and $589 in
fiscal 2005 through 2009, respectively.

Goodwill

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, (“FAS 142”), which changes the accounting for
goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only approach. The Company accounts for goodwill
using an impairment-only approach. Goodwill is tested annually and whenever events or circumstances accur
indicating that goodwill may be impaired. Based upon the Company’s impairment analysis completed in the
second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company concluded there was no impairment of goodwill under FAS 142.
Goodwill of $45,573 has been assigned to the Medical Segment and $3,428 has been assigned to the Industrial
Segment.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate
costs may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of the asset is greater than the
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undiscounted future cash flows expected to be provided by the asset. If impairment exists, the asset is written
down to its fair value. Fair value is determined through quoted market values or through the calculation of the
present value of future cash flows expected to be provided by the asset. See additional discussion in Footnote 4,
Impairment and restructuring charges.

Advertising expenses

All advertising expenditures are expénsed as incurred and were $3,487, $3,134 and $2,033 in fiscal 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Net income (loss) per share

Basic net income (loss} per share was computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average
number of common shares plus dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Incremental
shares of 263,000, 556,000, and O for the fiscal years ended September 24, 2004, September 26, 2003, and
September 27, 2002, respectively, were used in the calculations of diluted earnings per share. In years in which a
net loss is incurred, no common stock equivalents are included since they are antidilutive. Potential common
equivalent shares related to stock options excludes 1,909,762, 1,600,687 and 900,321 shares not included in the
computation of diluted net income (loss) per share because the options’ exercise price was greater than the
average market price of the common shares for the years ended September 24, 2004, September 26, 2003 and
September 27,2002, respectively.

Financial instiruments

For shortsterm financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term
debt, accounts;payable and accrued compensation, the carrying amount approximates the fair value because of
the immediate short-term nature of those instruments. The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based upon
quoted market prices for similar instruments or by discounting expected cash flows at rates currently available to
the Company for instruments with similar risks and maturities. The differences between the fair values and
carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments at September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003 were
not material.

Derivative instruments

In January 2001, the Company began using forward exchange contracts to hedge the fluctuations in the
doliar value of its foreign currency accounts receivable and payables related to its Finnish operations which are
denominated in Euros. In the years ended September 24, 2004, September 26, 2003, and September 27, 2002, the
net loss on foreign currency exchange transactions was $29, $40 and $154, respectively, which has been recorded
as foreign exchange, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The forward exchange contracts are
settled and renewed on a monthly basis in order to maintain a balance between the balance sheet exposures and
the contract amounts. The fair value of the contracts are inconsequential due to the short duration of the
contracts. The Company maintained open contracts of approximately $13,800 as of September 24, 2004.

Steck-based compensation plans

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation plans under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”.
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If the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation plans in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, the Company’s net income {loss)
and net income (loss) per share would approximate the pro forma disclosures below:

Fiscal year ended
Sept. 24,2004 Sept. 26, 2003 Sept. 27, 2002
Net income (loss), asreported ................... $9,278 $15,202 $(3,062)
Less total stock based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based method
for all awards, net of related tax effects .......... (2,941) (4,070) 4,731)
Pro forma netincome (loss) ..................... $ 6,337 $11,132 $(7,793)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic—asreported .......... .. i iehan... $ 0.64 $ 1.08 $ (0.24)
Basic—proforma .............c.ciiiii.an, $ 043 $ 079 $ (0.60)
Diluted—asreported . .. .............oouunn. $ 062 $ 1.04 $ (0.24)
Diluted—proforma ....................... $ 043 $ 076 $ (0.60)

The effects of applying FAS No. 123 in this proforma disclosure are not indicative of future amounts. FAS
No. 123 does not apply to awards prior to January 1, 1995 and additional awards are anticipated in future years,

Reclassification

Certain balances in the 2003 and 2002 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with 2004
presentations. Such reclassifications had no effect on results of operations or retained earnings.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On March 31, 2004, the FASB issued a proposed Statement, Share-Based Payment, that addresses the
accounting for share-based payment transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange
for (a) equity instruments of the enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s
equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. The proposed Statement
would eliminate the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using APB Opinion No. 25 and
generally would require instead that such transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based method. If
adopted in its current form, the proposed Statement would be effective for any interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2005.

NOTE 2 CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally
of trade receivables and investments. The risk in trade accounts receivable is limited due to the credit worthiness
of the companies comprising the Company’s customer base and their dispersion across many different sectors of
the electronics industry and geographies. The risk in investments is limited due to the credit worthiness of
investees comprising the portfolio, the short-term duration of the investments and the diversity of the portfolio.
At September 24, 2004, the Company does not believe it had any significant credit risks.

Supplier risks

The Company relies on third party manufacturers for a significant portion of its product components.
Reliance on suppliers raises several risks, including the possibility of defective parts, reduced control over the
availability and delivery schedule for parts, and the possibility of increases in component costs. The Company’s
supply of products and profitability can be adversely affected by each of these risks.

27




The Company also purchases other single-source components for which it has no guaranteed altemative
source of supply, and an extended interruption in the supply of any of these components could adversely affect
the Company’s'results of operations. Furthermore, many of the components used in the Company’s products are
purchased from suppliers located outside the United States. Trading policies adopted in the future by the United
States or foreign governments could restrict the availability of components or increase the cost of obtaining
components. Ay significant increase in component prices or decrease in component availability could have an
adverse effect on the Company's results of operations.

The risks mentioned above related to reliance on suppliers will also impact the Company’s contract
manufacturers. In addition, the Company is reliant on its contract manufacturers’ ability to maintain suitable
manufacturing 'facilities, train manufacturing employees, manage the supply chain effectively, manufacture a
quality product, and provide spare parts in support of the Company’s warranty and customer service obligations.
Failure of the Company’s contract manufacturers to deliver in any one of these areas could have an adverse effect
on its results of operations.

NOTE 3 BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

On April 22, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of DOME imaging systems, inc. (‘DOME”), a
designer, manufacturer and marketer of computer graphic imaging boards, flat-panel displays and software for
original equipment manufacturers in the medical field and other advanced image processing applications. As a
result of the dcquisition, the Company is able to offer a broader range of medical display solutions which
complements our medical product line. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the
operations of DOME are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

The total ¢onsideration paid was as follows:

CCashy $52,216
Value of stock options assumed . . .......... ... ... il 11,276
Cash 10 be paid for stock options . ..........o it 1,232
Closing andrelated COStS ....... ... .. i 972

1 $65,696

The Company assumed options to purchase approximately 621,000 shares of DOME stock. The options
were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: expected life of 2 to 4
years; 0% dividend yield; 76.6% volatility and risk free interest rate of 5.1%. The cash to be paid for stock
options related to certain stock options that were assumed by the Company but which were not converted into a
right to receive the Company’s stock upon exercise. These options were valued based on the number of such
options multiplied by $7.38 per share, which was the purchase price per share in the acquisition.

The total purchase price of the acquisition was allocated as follows:

Net tangible assets aCquired . .. ......vo ittt i e e e $ 9,130
Identifiable intangible assels ... .. .. ... ...t e e e 14,559
In-process research and development costs . ........ ... ...ttt 2,258
Goodwill . ... e e 45,573
Deferreditax Habilities .. ...t e e e e (5,824)
8 P $65,696
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The net tangible assets were comprised of the following:

Cash o e $ 504
ACCOUNTS TECRIVADIE . ottt et i it e e 8,361
IVENOTIES . .ttt e e e 6,571
Other CUITENT @SSELS .« o o\ttt e e ettt e et e e et e e et et 1,254

Ot CUITEM ASSES « & ottt ettt et e e e e 16,690
Property, plant and equipment ............ ... . 919
O AS5BES & ot ittt e e e e 149

TOta] 888 .« . vttt e e e 17,758
Accounts payable ... ... e e 4,648
ACCIUBA EXPEIISES . . o . ot ittt ettt e e e 3,949

Total current Habilities .. ..ot i e e 8,597
Other long-term habilities ........... . i e 31

Total Habilities . ..o i e e 8,628
Nettangible assets .. ... ittt e $ 9,130

The identifiable intangible assets consisted primarily of developed technology and are being amortized over
their estimated useful lives. The weighted average amortization period was approximately four years.

The in-process research and development costs of $2,258 were recorded in the fiscal 2002 Consolidated
Statement of Operations. These in-process research and development costs weré written off at the date of
acquisition in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 4, “Applicability of
FASB Statement No. 2 to Business Combinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method.” These costs primarily
related to the development of a flat-panel interface controller which was approximately 60% complete and has
now been completed. The value was determined by estimating the net cash flows from the sale of products from
2002 through 2011 resulting from the completion of the project, and discounting the net cash flows back to their
present value using a risk adjusted discount rate of 25%. The estimated net cash flows from these products were
based upon management’s estimates of related revenues, cost of sales, R&D costs, selling and marketing costs,
general and administrative costs and income taxes. .

Goodwill of $45,573 was recorded as a result of consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net tangible
and intangible assets acquired, principally due to the fair value of the revenue expected to be derived from future
products and the value of the workforce acquired. Goodwill will not be amortized, but will be reviewed
periodically for potential impairment. No amount of goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The
goodwill has been assigned to the Medical segment.

The following table reflects the unaudited combined results of the Company and DOME, as if the merger
had taken place at the beginning of each period presented. The proforma information includes adjustments for the
amortization of the intangible assets, the increased interest expense and the related tax effect of these
adjustments. All periods exclude the $2,258 charge for in-process research and development costs. The proforma
information does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred nor is it necessarily indicative
of future results of operations of the combined companies.

Year ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28,
2002 2001
REVEMUE & oottt et e e $227,246  $233,360
NeELINCOME ittt ittt it ettt e $ 708 % 16,130
Basic netincome pershare .................. .. ... ... ..., § 005 § 133
Diluted netincome pershare . . .....oovii i $ 005 $ 120

In October 2000, the Company acquired a 12.5% interest in TopVision Technologies, a Taiwanese
manufacturing Company. TopVision manufactures and sells flat-panel monitors. The Company paid $1,533 for
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its interest in ToppVision. This investment was accounted for using the cost method until TopVision became a
publicly traded company at which time the investment was classified as available for sale. During fiscal 2004, the
Company reduced the carrying value by $621 due to a sustained decline in the market value of that investment
that was determined to be other than temporary. During the years ended September 24, 2004, September 26,
2003, and September 27, 2002, the Company purchased $34,125, $21,784 and $45,623 of materials from
TopVision, respectively. The Company had accounts payable of $1,874 due to TopVision on September 24,
2004. ) '

NOTE 4 KMHAIRMEN T AND RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

Impairment, restructuring and in-process research and development charges consist of:

Year ended
2004 2003 2002
Impairment charges . ... ...ttt e $(174) $335 $14,338
Restructuring charges . ........ ... oo 466) 160 5,625
In-processiresearch and development charges (Note 3) ............... — — 2,258
Less amounts included incostofsales ............ ..., - —_ (1,511)
Total . e e oo 3(640) 3495 $20,710

LCDB, EL and Photonics Charges
2003 Severance Charges

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company decided to reduce its workforce by 28 employees in
order to align operations with current market conditions, improve profitability, and close a European sales office. As
a result of thi§ decision, the Company recorded severance charges of $898, which have been recorded as
restructuring charges in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. Cash of $898
was expected to be used in connection with these severance costs. This action was completed during fiscal 2004.

LCD, EL and Photonics Charges

During thé fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company decided to transition its passive-matrix LCD product
manufacturing :from Wisconsin to China, consolidate its EL product manufacturing into a single factory in
Finland and terminate the photonics Quantum programs that were directed at the optical telecommunication
markets. These actions were intended to align operations with current market conditions and to improve the
profitability of the Company’s operations. The Company completed its transition of PMLCD product
manufacturing to China at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2003. The consolidation of its EL manufacturing
facilities into one facility in Finland was completed by the end of fiscal 2003, The termination of the photonics
Quantum programs was completed by the end of fiscal 2002. As a result of these decisions, the Company
recorded charges of $19,963, including charges primarily for impairment of fixed assets, workforce reductions of
236 employees, excess inventory and lease cancellation and restoration costs. Cash of $4,114 was expected to be
used in connection with severance and lease cancellation and restoration costs.

The Company recorded fixed asset impairment charges of $14,338 as a result of these decisions. The
majority of these charges were for equipment and machinery and includes estimates for the sales proceeds based
upon prices for similar assets in the used equipment market. There were also amounts included in the impairment
charge for the building and land at the Wisconsin manufacturing facilities, which are based upon quoted real
estate market prices. This facility is currently listed for sale. The Company also recorded charges of $1,511 for
excess and obsolete inventory, which has been identified as a direct result of the decision to consolidate facilities
or transition the products to offshore manufacturers resulting in the exit of certain product lines. The Company
has also recorded a charge of $1,729 for lease cancellations and restoration. In addition, the Company has
recorded severance charges of $2,385. The charges of $1,511 related 1o inventory have been recorded as cost of
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sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. The remaining charges of
$18,452 have been recorded as impairment and restructuring charges in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company recorded an additional charge of $335 for fixed asset
impairment charges. This additional charge was due to changes in the original estimates of expected cash
proceeds from the sale of fixed assets. In addition, the Company determined that $738 of the original $19,963
charge was not required. The original estimates changed due to lease cancellation, restoration and severance
costs being less than originally anticipated as employees left voluntarily or filled other vacant positions within
the Company. These changes in estimates from the original reserve were not anticipated and resulted in a
non-recurring gain of 3403 which has been recorded as impairment and restructuring charges in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations in the fourth quarter of 2003.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company determined that $466 of the original $19,963 charge
was not required. The original estimates changed due to lease restoration costs being less than originally
anticipated as the Company and the landlord found a suitable tenant to lease the property as is and the Company
did not have to restore the facility to its original state. The Company also recognized $174 of gains on the sale of
assets which had previously been impaired. These changes in estimates from the original reserve were not
anticipated and resulted in a non-recurring gain of $640 which has been recorded as impairment and restructuring
charges in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.

The restructuring charges incurred affected the Company’s financial position as follows:

Accrued Other

Compensation  Liabilities

.Balance as of September 28,2001 .......... ... .. .ol $ 397 $ 396

Additional charges ... ... . . . . e 2,385 1,729
Cashpald OUt .. ...t (703) (385)
Balance as of September 27,2002 ... ... ... i 2,079 1,740
Additional charges (adjustments) . .............vuiiiniiia... 513 (353)
Cashpaidout ......... e (1,696) (219)

Balance as of September 26,2003 . ... ... ....ooti i 896 1,168
Additional charges (adjustments) ........... ... ... . —_ (466)
Cashpald Ut ..ot e (896) (533)

Balance as of September 24,2004 ... ... ... .. $ — $ 167

During fiscal year 2004, the Company paid cash of $1,431 related to contractual liabilities, severance, and
lease termination costs. The remaining amounts are expected to be paid during fiscal 2005.

NOTE S5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, at cost, consists of:

2004 2003
Land ... S 115 $ 115
Buildings ............ R e 1,891 2,651
Machinery and equipment . ........ ... i 47,111 54,359
Total property, plant and equipment ..................... 49,117 57,125
Less accumulated depreciation . .................. 31,257y (37,227

Net property, plant and equipment . ...................... $17,860 $ 19,898




NOTE 6 BORROWINGS
Credit Facility

The Company entered into a $50,000 credit agreement on December 16, 2003. This agreement replaced the
Company’s prior credit agreement. The Company had no borrowings outstanding as of September 24, 2004. The
agreement expires December 1, 2008 and the borrowings are secured by substantially all assets of the Company.
The interest rates can fluctuate quarterly based upon the actual funded debt to EBITDA ratio and the LIBOR rate.
The agreement includes the following financial covenants: a fixed charge ratio, minimum EBITDA, minimum
net worth and'a funded-debt-to-EBITDA ratio. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of
September 24,2004.

Long-term debt

The Company had entered into credit facilities with financial institutions to finance equipment purchases.
As of September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003, the Company had $0 and $2,618 outstanding under these
loans. '

Capitalized Leases

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company entered into a capital lease for the leasehold
improvements! in its new offices. Included in property, plant and equipment was $1,422 of assets as of September
24, 2004, andSeptember 26, 2003. Accumulated depreciation was $457 and $254 related to capitalized leases as
of September 24, 2004 and September 26. 2003, respectively. Future minimum payments under capital lease
obligations at September 24, 2004 are as follows:

2005 o e e $ 246
008 . 246
2007 e e 246
2008 L e 246
200 e 207
Total minimum lease Payments ..........urennrner e 1,191
Less amounts representing interest . ...t . 151
Present value of net minimum lease payments ............ ... .. ... ... .. ... 1,040
LeSs CUrTent POTHOM . . ..ottt ittt ettt et e e e e 193
Long-term portion of obligations .. ............ ... e L% 847

NOTE7 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other current liabilities consist of:

2004 2003

Warranty r8SEIVE . . .. ..ttt e e $2,715 % 2372
Contractual Babilities ... ... ... .ttt e e 473 1,792
Incometaxespayable ........... ... 2,883 5,277
01T PR 3,043 4,057

TOtal L e e e $9,114 313,498

The Company provides a warranty for its products and establishes an allowance at the time of sale to cover
estimated costs during the warranty period. The warranty period is generally between 12 and 36 months. This
reserve is inclided in other current liabilities.
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The reconciliation of the changes in the warranty reserve is as follows:

2004 2003
Balance at beginning of period . .. .. ... i . $2372 §$2,538
Cash paid for WarTanty TEPaIIS ... ... v ottt et ettt et (3,761) (2,905)
Provision for current period sales . .. ... ... i e e 3,710 2,489
Provision for prior period sales ....................... e 394 250
Balance atend of period . ... ... i $2715 $2,372
NOTE8 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Other long-term liabilities consist of:
. 2004 2003
Deferred income tax liability .............. it $3,692 $2,121
Deferred compensation plan liabilities ........... ... ... . . i 2,684 1,742
5 o Y PP $6,376 33,863

The Company has a deferred compensation plan wherein eligible executives may elect to defer up to 100%
of their regular compensation and incentive awards, and non-employee Board members may elect to defer up to
100% of their directors compensation. The compensation deferred under this plan is credited with earnings and
losses as determined by the rate of return on investments selected by the plan participants. Each participant is
fully vested in all deferred compensation and those earnings that have been credited to their individual accounts.
The Company’s promise to pay amounts deferred under this plan is an unsecured obligation.

NOTE9 INCOME TAXES

The components of income {loss) before income taxes consist of the following:

2004 2003 2002
DOMIESHC .« . vttt ittt e e e $10,324 $25,634 $(6,852)
FOreIgN ..ttt e e B, 2,478 (1,855) 1,911
Total ... . JRP $12,802 $23,779 $(4,941)

The following table summarizes the provision (benefit) for US federal, state and foreign taxes on income:

2004 2003 2002

Current:
Federal ... ... o e $ 734 $6,373 $2422
] - €< @21 925 659
Foreign ... (267) —_ 517
46 7,298 3,598
Deferred:
Federal ..o e e e 2,794 1461  (4,820)
] 7 - 5 U U 359 388 (620)
FOreign . o e 325 (570) (€X))

3478 1,279 (5477
$3,524 $8,577 3(1,879)
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The differences between the U.S. federal statutory tax rate and the Company’s effective rate are as follows:

. 2004 2003 2002
Computed StatutOLY TAte . ... .ottt e e e 35.0% 35.0% (35.00%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits ........................ 4.5 4.5 4.5)
Effect of foreigntaxrates ... ..ottt 2.0) 1.2) (1.4)
Permanent differences resulting from purchase accounting .............. — — 16.0
Federal and state SEIIEMENtS . .. ... oo ievr i et 5.3) — (20.2)
Change in valuation allowance ........... ..o, 20 4.2) 20.0
Researchandothercredits . . . ...ov vttt ii et i oo 3.6) 1.3) 127
Exporttax inCentives . ... ... ... ..ottt 3.6) 0.2) —
Benefit of tax exempt interestearned ........... ... oL, — — Q.
L1472 00 T3 P 05 35 _19
Effective taX Fate o .. ..ottt i e e e e e 27.5% 36.1% (38.0)%

The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards which gave rise to significant portions of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of September 24, 2004, and September 26, 2003 were as follows:

2004 2003

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory basis differenCe .. ...\ vv ettt e e $ 3022 $ 2,107
Otherreserves and Habilities . . .. ... . i i i i i e e 3,214 3,357
Impairment and restructuring Charges . . ...t T 2,447 4,873
Net operating 1oss carryforwards .. .......oouuit i s 313 697
Foreign tax credits .. . ...ttt e e i e 44 1,281
AMT and General business Credits . . ... .vvvrete et e tnt e et 1,059 658
GrOsS AEfEITEd tAX BSSELS . .« .\ o e v e et e e e e e e e e 10,099 12,973
Valuation allowance . ... ...ttt e e e e (250) —
Deferred taX BSSES .. ...\ttt e e 9,849 12,973
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accumulated depreciation . . ... i e e (4,309) (3,490)
Intangibles .. ... e e e e - (1,608) (2,073)
Deferred tax Habilities . .. ..o v it e (5,917)  (5,563)
Net deferred 1aX @888 ..o\ i ittt et ettt ittt e e e e $ 3932 §$ 7410

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in the following balance sheet accounts:

2004 2003
OBNET CUITEIME ASSELS . o vttt t ettt ettt et et e e e et ettt e $7586 $9,679
DO BSSEES . . v ot vt et e e e e 170 —
Other current liabilities ... ........ o i (132) (148)
Other long-term liabilities .......................... e e e e e (3,692) (2,121)
TOtAl . oot e $3932 37410

During fiscal years 2004, 2003, and 2002 the Company recognized tax benefits of $338, $2,697 and $2,535,
respectively, related to differences between financial and tax reporting of stock option transactions. This
difference was credited to common stock.
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The Company establishes a valuation allowance for certain deferred tax assets, when it is more likely than
not that such deferred tax assets will not be realized. For fiscal year 2004 and 2002, the valuation allowance
increased $250 and $575, respectively. For fiscal year 2003, the valuation allowance decreased by $1,000. These
increases or decreases were due to changes in facts and circumstances related to the utilization of tax credit or
loss carryforwards.

At September 24, 2004 and September 26, 2003, the Company had foreign tax credits of approximately $44
and $1,281 respectively, available to reduce future federal tax. The carryforwards expire at various dates through
2009.

NOTE 10 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock at $.01 par value. At
September 24, 2004, no shares of preferred stock have been issued; however, 200,000 shares of Series D Junior
Participating Preferred Stock have been reserved for issuance in connection with the Company’s Shareholder
Rights Plan. Additional series of preferred stock may be designated and the related rights and preferences fixed
by action of the Board of Directors.

Stock options

In fiscal 1994, the Company adopted the 1993 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for the granting of
options to buy shares of Common Stock. These options are intended to either qualify as “incentive stock options”
under the Internal Revenue Code or “non-qualified stock options” not intended to qualify. Under the 1993 plan,
options issued prior to fiscal 2000 generally become exercisable 25% one year after grant and 6.25% per quarter
thereafter, and expire ten years after grant. Options issued after the beginning of fiscal 2000 through the end of
fiscal 2003 generally become exercisable 25% each six montbs after grant, and expire 4 years after grant,
Options issued during fiscal 2004 generally become exercisable 25% at each of the 30, 36, 42 and 48 month after
grant and expire ten years after grant. Certain options also have acceleration provisions based upon objective
performance criteria determined at the date of grant of the option which would generally accelerate the option to
be exercisable two years after grant. During fiscal 1997, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan
with the same provisions and guidelines as the aforementioned 1993 plan. During fiscal 1999, the Company
adopted the 1999 Non Qualified Stock Option Plan with the same provisions and guidelines as the
aforementioned 1993 plan.

The option price under all plans is the fair market value as of the date of the grant. Total shares reserved
under these plans are 4,465,000 shares.

The Company assumed stock options of 620,782 granted to former employees of DOME at the time of
acquisition. The options assumed were outside of the Company’s plans, but are administered as if issued under the
plans. All of the assumed options have been adjusted to give effect to the conversion under the terms of the
agreement between the Company and DOME. The assumed options generally are immediately exercisable and
expire ten years from the date of grant. No additional stock options will be granted under any of the assumed plans.

The Company also adopted a 1993 stock option plan for Nonemployee Directors that provides an automatic

annual grant to each outside director of the Company. Total annual grants under this plan cannot exceed 60,000
shares per year.
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Information regarding these option plans is as follows:

Number  Weighted Average
of Shares Option Prices
Options outstanding at September 28,2001 .. ......... ... e 2,048,745 $13.28
Gramted . .. oottt et e e e 1,017,289 20.68
BXOICIS O . vttt e e e e (536,499) 6.00
CanCeled i e e e e e (62,365) 20.50
Assumed in acquisition of DOME . ... ... ... . . e 620,782 5.79
Options outstanding at September 27,2002 . .. .. ... ... .. 3,087,952 15.40
L€ 11« O O P 540,160 19.85
BXOTCISEA .ttt e e e e e e e e (679,122) 9.10
Canceled . ..o e e e e (388,377) 20.19
Options outstanding at September 26,2003 .................... e e 2,560,613 17.34
L -1 3« OGSO 643,161 18.28
Exercised .......... P e (183,227) 15.56
Canceled ............... P (198,096) 19.46
Options outstanding at September 24,2004 .. ............. . . 2,822,451 17.52
Exercisable at September 24,2004 ... ... .. . 2,010,802 16.85
Exercisable at September 26,2003 . ... ... ... 1,751,787 15.90
Exercisable at September 27,2002 ............... . ... e e 1,841,122 12.82

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123

During 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation™ which defines a fair value based method of accounting for an employee stock option
or similar equity instrument. As is permitted under SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to continue to
account for its stock-based compensation plans under APB Opinion No. 25. The Company has computed, for
proforma disclosure purposes, the value of all options granted during 2004, 2003, and 2002 using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model as prescribed by SFAS No. 123 using the following weighted average
assumptions for grants: : :

2004 2003 2002
Risk freeinterestrate . ... ... ... ... ... o i 3.0% 2.6% 4.0%
Expected dividendiyield ........ ... .. .. — — —
Expected lives (In ¥ears) . . ... ..ottt i i e 42 4.2 4.2
Expected volatility ......... ... . ... 63.6% 68.8.% 71.8%

Using the Black-Scholes valuation method, the total value of options granted during fiscal 2004, 2003 and
2002 was $6,384, $5,743, and $10,734, respectively, which would be amortized on a proforma basis over the
vesting period of the options. The weighted average fair value of options granted during fiscal 2004, 2003, and
2002 was $9.93,$10.63 and $14.14, per share, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options and grants outstanding at September 24,
2004.

Options Cutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Number Average of Number of Shares
) Outstanding at Remaining Weighted Average Exercisable at Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Brices 9/24/04 Contractual Life Exercise Price 9/24/04 Exercise Price
$6.06-$8.00 ... ........ 329,508 4.8 $ 683 329,508 $ 6.83
$9.50-$14.25 .. ........ 487,166 5.0 12.29 315,621 12.33
$14.27-$2131 ...... ... 1,251,733 3.3 18.68 972,083 18.87
$21.50-$31.50 . ........ 754,044 4.8 23.66 393,590 23.84
$6.06-$31.50 .......... 4.2 $17.52 $16.85

2,822,451
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Performance restricted stock

The Company’s plans provide for the issuance of restricted stock to‘employees. The shares issued vest over
a two- to four-year period, based on the attainment of specified performance measures, the passage of time, or
both. In the event the performance measures are not met, any unvested shares would vest at the end of four years.
The value of these shares are being expensed over the vesting period. During fiscal 2004, the Company issued
9,275 shares of restricted stock to employees. No restricted stock has been issued to employees during fiscal
2003 or 2002.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In fiscal 1995, the Company adopted the 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which provides that eligible
employees may contribute, through payroll deductions, up to 10% of their earnings toward the purchase of the
Company’s Common Stock at 85 percent of the fair market value at specific dates. At September 24, 2004,
42,536 shares remain available for purchase through the plan and there were 433 employees eligible to
participate in the plan, of which 134 or 31%, were participants. Employees purchased 69,989 shares, at an
average price of $10.99 per share during the year. Total receipts to the Company were $769. Since the plan is
non-compensatory, no charges to operations have been recorded. The fair value of the purchase rights is
estimated on the first day of the offering period using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair value of
the shares issued in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $5.00, $4.45 and $7.08 per share, respectively. In fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, the risk free interest rate was 1.1%, 1.4% and 2.3%, the expected dividend yield was 0%,
0% and 0%, the expected lives were 0.5 years, 0.5 years and 0.5 years, and the expected volatility was 58.8%,
71.8% and 71.8%, respectively.

Shareholders Rights Plan

In February 1996, the Board of Directors approved a shareholder rights plan and declared a dividend of one
preferred share purchase right for each outstanding common share. Each right represents the right to purchase
one hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock, at an exercise price of $60.00, subject to adjustment. The rights are
only exercisable ten days after a person or group acquires, or commences a tender or exchange offer to acquire,
beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Subject to the terms of the
shareholder rights plan and the discretion of the Board of Directors, each right would entitle the holder to
purchase one share of Common Stock of the Company for each right at one-half of the then-current price. The
rights expire in February 2006, but may be redeemed by action of the Board of Directors prior to that time at $.01
per right.

NOTE11 COMMITMENTS

Most of the Company’s office and manufacturing facilities are subject to long-term operating leases. In
addition, regional sales offices and automobiles are subject to leases with terms ranging from one to twelve
months.

At September 24, 2004, the minimum annual operating lease payments are:

Fiscal year

ending in September

2005 $ 3,040

2006 .. e e e e 3,107

2007 o e e e e e 2,903

2008 e e e e e e e 2,587

2000 e e e e e 1,387

B 115 =7 112 S O OO 6,535
$19,559
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Total rent expense was $3,747, $3,995, and $2;817, and for the years ended September 24, 2004, September
26, 2003, and September 27, 2002, respectively.

NOTE 12 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is organized based upon the markets for the products and services that it offers. Under this
organizational structure, the Company operates in three main segments: Medical, Industrial and Commercial. The
Industrial and Medical segments derive revenue primarily through the development and marketing of
electroluminescent displays, liquid crystal displays and color active matrix liquid crystal displays. In fiscal year
2002, the Company also reported sales and operating income from its Transportation segment. In fiscal 2003, the
Company combined the Transportation segment with the Industrial segment. Fiscal 2002 amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current presentation. The Commercial segment derives revenue primarily through the
marketing of color active matrix liquid displays and plasma displays that are sold through distributors to end users.

The information provided below is obtained from internal information that is provided to the Company’s
chief operating decision-maker for the purpose of corporate management. Research and development expenses
consist of both research and Quantum program expenses and product development expenses. Research expenses
are allocated to the segments based upon a percentage of budgeted sales. Product development expenses are
specifically ‘identified by segment. Marketing expenses are generally allocated based upon a percentage of
budgeted sales while sales costs are specifically identified by segment. General and administrative expenses are
allocated based upon a percentage of budgeted sales. Depreciation expense, interest expense, interest income,
other non-operating items and income taxes by segment are not included or disclosed in the internal information
provided to the chief operating decision-maker and are therefore not presented separately below. Inter-segment
sales are not material and are included in net sales to external customers below.

‘ 2004 2003 2002
Sales to external customers (by segment):
Medical ....... ... i e $ 79,551 § 88,636 $ 78,968
Industrial ... ... 54,809 ~ 66,024 72,115
Commercial .......... .t e 121,836 97,267 54,846
Totalsales ................... e e e $256,196 $251,927 $205,929
Sales to external customers (by geography):
United States ... ..iiii e e $217,390 $204,027 $157,367
18111 S 38,806 47,900 48,562
Totalsales ... ..oovii i $256,196 $251,927 $205,929
Operating income (loss): '
Medical ..............ccoviiiin e $ 1,766 § 8,789 $ 12,149
Industrial ..o e 10,229 16,025 4,741
Commercial. .. ... .ot e 169 743 1,952
Impairment, restructuring and in-process research and development
Charges ... e - 640 (495) (22,221)
Total operating income (10S8) . . ..o v it ittt $ 12,804 $ 25062 $ (3,379

The assets and related capital expenditures of the Company are not reported by segment. Property, plant and
equ1pmem by geography is as follows:

2004 2003
us ........... . e e e e e e e e $13,810 §$16,225
1 (o} o 4,050 3,673
Tl ASSEES & o v ottt et et e e e $17.860 $19,898




Products sold within the Commercial and Medical segments to two customers comprised 31% and to one
customer comprised 19% and 19% of total consolidated sales for the years ended September 24, 2004,
September 26, 2003 and September 27, 2002, respectively.

NOTE 13 401(K) AND PROFIT SHARING

All employees in North America over 21 years of age are eligible to participate immediately in the 401(k)
savings and profit sharing plan. Employees can contribute up to statutory maximums. The Company maiches
5.5% of each participating employee’s eligible compensation, also subject to statutory maximums. Employer
contributions vest immediately. The 401(k) plan expense amounted to $799, $894, and $758 for the years ended
September 24, 2004, September 26, 2003, and September 27, 2002 respectively.

NOTE 14 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Comprehensive income (loss) and its components have no impact on the Company’s net income (loss).
Comprehensive income (loss) and its components were as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Net income (loss) (net of tax of $3,524, $8,577, and $(1,879), respectively) .. $ 9,278 $15202  3$(3,062)
Other comprehensive income (loss): :
Currency translation adjustment (net of tax of $521, $1,034, and $1,417,
TESPECHIVELY) .« .\ttt e 1,319 2,618 2,312
Unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities (net of tax of $90,
$(98), and $(88), respectively) ....... i 228 (248) (143)
Total comprehensive income (10SS) ........... .ot iiiieieiinianns $10,825 $17,572 § (893)
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Planar is one of the world’s most accomplished providers of application-driven flat-pane! display systems, with
a heritage of innovation that stretches over more than 20 years. We've progressed from producing display
components and stand-alone display systems to integrated solutions including software, hardware and services
that address needs in diverse yet complementary usage environments.

Planar's medical business is the leading provider of medical-grade display systems, providing the most complete
suite of healthcare-specific display solutions available. Planar’s industrial business focuses on collaborating with
customers in the development of market-specific display products ranging from EL-based display components
to new interactive marketing solutions for retail environments. In the four years since its inception, Planar’s
commercial business has built value from supply, logistics and channel relationships while solidifying its top-ten
ranking among providers of flat-panel desktop monitors for homes and offices in the U.S.

Underlying all of our businesses is Planar’s core culture of entrepreneurship. Within each of our business
groups this emphasis fuels new product initiatives and exploration of ways to address new markets
with established and emerging, commercially viable technologies. In this way, Planar leverages its unique
strengths within each business, systematically creating entrepreneurial opportunities in markets beyond those
already served.
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FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

Seeing the bigger picture means looking beyond particular technologies
to recognize opportunities they generate, connecting a technical under-
standing of pixels and systems to a business understanding of customers
and markets, It also means balancing near-term goals against the more
rewarding potential of the future.

In our continuing efforts to see the bigger picture, Planar reached an
important fork in the road in fiscal 2004. True to our culture of decisiveness,
we've very deliberately chosen one path, rejected the other, and set our
course for what | believe will be an exciting future of profitable growth.

The path we've chosen requires increased investments for the company
to prosper over the long run in major growth markets we've identified,
knowing those investments will moderate bottom-line profits in the
meantime. The alternative we did not choose, it's important to recognize,
was to continue running the company for maximization of near-term
profitability. 'm confident that making the necessary investments now is
our surest path to optimize profitable growth well into the future,

Effective execution of this strategy calls for an increased focus of my time
and energy on the growth initiatives of the company. This prompted
the creation of a chief operating officer position, and the promotion of
Steve Buhaly to realize the high expectations of the role, He has extensive
operations and general management experience, and he has served as
a highly collaborative chief financial officer for Planar over the last four
vears. | have great confidence in his ability to implement the strategies
underway in our three business units to deliver the results we depend on
and build lasting shareholder value.

With the ongoing operation of the company so ably managed, my focus
is more fully directed to setting Planar’s strategy and steering its course to
capitalize on the potential of the organization’s unique strengths. There's
no shortage of opportunities in the world, as flat-panel display technology
continues to proliferate into applications unimagined just a few years ago.
Replacing tube-style CRT displays, as well as fitting into uses no display
could before, flat-panels enable the promise of all kinds of networked,
“smart” machines-the promise of information when, where and how
people want it. The display is the essential human interface, so our bold
mission is to benefit every person on the planet with Planar displays.

Planar's entrepreneurial programs, under my strategic direction and
with increased investment in 2005, provide an energized system for
applying the company’s assets to pursue oppertunities being catalyzed
by display technology. Cne such initiative announced in 2004 addresses
unmet needs in the modern retail environment, where technology
has revolutionized operations behind the scenes but has yet to serve
customers directly when and where they need it most. Planar’s strategy is
both focused on the needs of these end-users seeking reliable information
at the point of purchase and centered on manufacturers and retailers with

vested interests in improving the delivery and effectiveness of such infor-
mation. By seamlessly integrating hardware, software and services into
products featuring appliance-like simplicity, | intend for Planar to be at
the forefrant of technology solutions for this large market and other
emerging prospects.

In the robust medical market, Planar is building on its leadership position
as the movement to digital images and electronic record-keeping accel-
erates across the healthcare enterprise. The rapidly changing competitive
environment in the digital imaging segment last year reflects both the
attractiveness of this expanding market and, ultimately, the resiliance
of our organization. We reacted quickly to make our premium products
more affordable and available, exploiting our volume advantage to drive
down costs and using our excellent relationships in the reseller channel to
improve customer access and simplify purchasing. A recent survey of
hospital administrators bodes well for our future: digital imaging for
radiology topped the list of areas targeted for capital expenditures in the

Financial Highlights
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next five years, followed by systems that enable electronic patient record-
keeping at the point of care. In both of these segments, Planar solutions
are second to none. :

Another important element of the investment being made in 2005 is
geographic expansion of our sales and marketing reach, for medical
products as well as our line of industrial display solutions. Europe
represents a market as large and important as North America, but our
far smaller penetration there means valuable opportunities remain to
be pursued. We've opened a new office in Munich, and deployed a senior
executive to drive our effort there, so | expect to see early returns on this
investment soon and important long-term value generated in future
periods. China, too, is a market of enormous growth potential for the
company, prompting our investment in a new Shanghai office.

Planar's commercial business unit also is expected to drive growth in 2005,
but with its focus on profit rather than sales growth, The market segment
in which we've established ourselves so well in just four years-primarily
serving business buyers of PC monitors through resellers in the online
channel-is forecast to slow from its once spectacular growth rate. We will
concentrate our effort on systematically improving operations to generate
quicker inventary turns and to defend against the kind of price volatility
that struck us in 2004, to create a stronger and steadier bottom line.
All along the way, this business realizes synergistic value for our other
businesses as well, through sugplier relationships that stem from high unit
volumes and by extending valuable partnerships we've established with
top players in this versatile sales channel.

The company’s culture and extracrdinary team of professionals have been
tested and strengthened by the difficult challenges of 2004, and remain

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Fiscal Year 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

OPERATIONS:
Sales §256,196 §$251,927 5205929 5207952 5174551
Gross profit 59,365 76,340 60,330 64,828 40,659
lncome (loss)

from operations 12,804 25,062 (3,379) 22,571 (2,160)
Net income {loss) 9,278 15,202 (3,062) 14,537 543
Diluted net income

{loss) per share S 062 § 104 5 (024 S 143§ 005

BALANCE SHEET:

Working capital $ 90,620 $ 73446 § 76433 $ 59,286 % 50,296
Assets 206,424 205,836 206,47 136,200 128175
Long-term liabilities 7,223 7.080 45,943 13,392 15,486

Shareholders’ aquity 165,528 150,839 124,355 96,089 73,268

the foundation of our aspirations for profitable growth beyond 2005.
Our corporate culture is highly intentional-the result of a decision making
process as thorough as that determining any of our strategies-and
characterized by three key pillars. One is quick decision making, with
the expectation that the company’s speed and agility create formidable
competitive advantages. Another cultural attribute is a focus of employee
recruiting and retention efforts on those from the top quartile of their
professions, believing that top pay for top performance is a very good
investment. A third pillar of Planar's culture is a philosophy of steward-
ship for the interests of other stakeholders, ensuring that those with less
influence over company performance receive their due before those with
more influence and responsibility.

At Planar, we see the bigger picture of people the world over seeking
to connect with information. With perspective and understanding that
ranges from tiny pixels to markets spanning the planet, Planar is uniquely
positioned to thrive along with the proliferation of display technology.
The challenges we faced in 2004 helped refine our strategy and
distinguish important tactical steps for 2005 and beyond. I'm confident
that investing now in our entrepreneurial potential and our geographic
reach will yield a more prosperous future for the company and maximize
lasting shareholder value.

Mast respectfully, iﬁl/)

Balaji Krishnamurthy
Chairman, President and CEO
November 10, 2004

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

The following table reflects the quarterly high and low closing prices ofthe company’s
common stock for the periods indicated, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market.

Planar common stock trades under the symbol “PLNR."

FISCAL 2004 HIGH LOwW
First Quarter $ 2630 $21.27
Second Quarter 25.85 12.69
Third Quarter 14.25 11.33
Fourth Quarter 14.14 11.05
FISCAL 2003 HIGH Low
First Quarter $21.73 §12.21
Second Quarter 2147 1259
Third Quarter 20.74 10.57

Fourth Quarter 24.49 18.68
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Planar welcomes inquiries from
its sharenolders and other
interested parties. Contact:

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Planar Systems, inc.

1195 NW Compton Crive
Beaverton, OR
87006-1992, USA

Phone: + 1.503.748.1100
Fax:+ 1.503.748.1541
Email:invest@planar.com

WEB SITE

Information on Planar products,
technologies, conference calls
and financial reports, plus a
press release archive, can be
found at www.planar.com.

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of
shareholders will be held
Thursday, February 3, 2005,

at 3:00 p.m. Pacific Standard
Time at 1195 NW Compton Dr.,
Beaverton, Oregon.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

The Company operates primarily in two business segments: retail grocery (including the real estate and store
development activities of the company) — Harris Teeter, and industrial thread (textile primarily).— American &
Efird. Harris Teeter operates a regional chain of supermarkets. American & Efird primarily manufactures sewing
thread for the apparel and other markets. The Company evaluates performance of its two businesses utilizing various
measures which are based on operating profit.

During fiscal 2004, the market environment that Harris Teeter operated in continued to be highly competitive,
characterized by competition from other supermarkets as well as other retailers such as discount retailers,
supercenters, club and warehouse stores and drug stores. Generally, the markets in the southeastern United States
continued to experience new store opening activity and aggressive feature pricing by competitors. In response,
Harris Teeter continued to differentiate itself with its product assortment and variety, and focus on customer service,
while driving customer traffic through the use of its Very Important Customer (“VIC”) loyalty card program. These
efforts have resulted in overall gains in market share within our primary markets.

Business conditions for A&E’s customers in the U.S. textile and apparel industry in general remained extremely
challenging in fiscal 2004 due to the continued rise in imports that has forced many of A&E’s U.S. customers to
close their plants or shift their production out of the United States. Additionally, A&E continues to face highly
competitive pricing in its markets. A&E management expects business conditions to remain challenging during the
next fiscal year, especially with the unknown future impacts that may result from the expiration of apparel import
quotas in 2005. A&E continues to proactively address these challenges by managing production schedules, growing
its non-apparel thread and yarn business and expanding its presence in foreign markets.

Results of Operations

Exit and Impairment Costs

The results of operations for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 included certain exit.and impairment charges
associated with the Company’s strategic initiatives to improve future operations. A summary of these events is
as follows:

o Fiscal 2004: During the first half of fiscal 2004 the Company recorded pre-tax charges of $384,000 ($238,000
after tax benefits) related to severance costs paid in connection w1th the closing of A&E’s thread yam
spinning plant in Maiden, North Carolina.

¢ Fiscal 2003: In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 a $580 000 pre-tax charge ($360,000 after tax benefits, or
$0.01 per diluted share) was recorded for the planned closing of A&E’s thread yam spmmng plantin Maiden,
North Carolina, which occurred in the first quarter of fiscal 2004.

o Fiscal 2002: In the third quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company realized $710,000 ($431,000 after income taxes,
or $0.01 per diluted share) of credits related to favorable experience of actual charges incurred compared
to costs originally estimated and recorded in fiscal 2001 for the sale of 26 Harris Teeter stores. Additionally,
the Company recorded in fiscal 2002 $7.8 million of pre-tax exit and impairment charges ($4.8 million after
tax benefits, or $0.10 per diluted share), related to the consolidation of two industrial thread dyeing and
finishing operations at A&E




Consolidated Overview

The following table sets forth the operating profit components by each of the Company’s business segments
and for the holding company (“Corporate”) for the 53 weeks ended October 3, 2004 (fiscal 2004), 52 weeks ended
September 28, 2003 (fiscal 2003) and 52 weeks ended September 29, 2002 (fiscal 2002). The table also sets forth
each of the segment’s net sales as a percent to total net sales, the net income components as a percent 1o total net
sales and the percentage increase or decrease of such components over the prior year (in thousands):

Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 % Inc. (Dec.)
% to ) % to %to  04vs 03 vs
" Total Total Total 03 02
Net Sales .
Harris Teeter .......... $2,572,367 89.7 $2,431,632 89.2 $2,349,650 88.9 5.8 35
- American & Efird. ..... 296,230 103 293,107 _10.8 294,548 111 . 1.1 0.5)
Total ............. .. $2,868,597 1000 $2,724,739 100.0 $2,644,198 1000 - 53 30
‘ %to . %to %t h
Net Net Net
: Sales Sales Sales ..
Gross Profit . ' _
Harris Teeter .......... $ 755921 2635 S§ 703,178 2581 § 677,668 25.63 75 3.8
American & Efird ..... 77,580 271 73,888 _2.71 77,151 292 5.0 4.2)
Total' ............ .. 833,501 29.06 777,066 28.52 754,819 28.55 7.3 29
| SG&A Expenses : , . »
Harris Teeter ....... .. 651,515 2271 609,556 22.37 589,605 22.30 69 34
American & Efird ..... 64,123 224 59,684  2.19 56,833 215 74 5.0
Corporate ............. 5,065 0.18 5,134 0.19 7466 ' 0.28 (L3) (31.2)¢
Total ....oovvennnn. 720,703 25.13 674,314 2475 653,904 24.73 6.9 3.1
Exit &iImpairment '
Chgs. (Credits)
Harris Teeter .......... — — —_ — (710) (0.03) n.a. n.a.
Ameridan & Efird .:... 384 0.0l 580 _0.02: 7.823 030 na. na.
Total ......oovinnn. 384 001 580 0.02 7,113 0.27 n.a. n.a.
Operating Profit (Loss) NI .
Harris 'Teeter .......... . 104,406 . 3.64 93,622 344 88,773 336 ..11.5 5.5
American & Efird ..... 13,073 046 13,624 050 12,495 047 (4.0 9.0
Corporate ............. (5,065 (0.18) (5,134) (0.19) (7.466) (0.28) 1.3 312
Total ......covunnn.. 112,414 392 102,112 3.75 93,802 355 10.1 8.9
" Other Exp. (Inc), net ... 11250 039 10020 037 . 12210 046 123 (17.9)
Income Tax Expense ..... 36505 127 32210 _1.18 29609 1.12 133 8.8

Net Income ............. $ 64,659 226 $ 59,882 2.20 $§ 51983 197 8.0' 15.2

Consohdatcd sales increased 5.3% in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 due primarily to sales increases
in the Harris Teeter supexmarket subsidiary resulting from strong comparable store sales increases and the additional
week of operations. The 3.0% increase in consolidated sales in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002 resulted
primarily from sales increases in the Harris Teeter subsidiary resulting from new store sales and comparable store
sales increases. The fiscal 2003 net increase was offset to some extent by sales declines at the Company’s A&E
textile subsidiary resulting from weak business conditions during fiscal 2003. Over the past several years, A&E
has pursuedla global expansion strategy. Foreign sales for fiscal 2004 represented 5.5% of the consolidated sales
of the Company, compared to 5.6% for fiscal 2003 and 5.2% for fiscal 2002, Refer to the discussion of segment
operations ujnder the captions “Harris Teeter, Retail Grocery Segment” and “American & Efird, Industrial Thread
Segment” for a further analysis of the segment operating results.




Gross profit as a percent to sales increased for fiscal 2004 as a result of improved gross profit margins at both
subsidiaries, with Harris Teeter realizing benefits from its effective promotional strategies and increased penetration
of its-private label programs and with A&E benefiting from production efficiencies gained from prior plant
consolidations. Gross profit as a percent to sales decreased slightly for fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002
resulting primarily from lower gross profit realization at the A&E subsidiary due to weaker manufacturing running
schedules in the United States, plus the continued pressure resulting from price competition and rising raw materials
costs. The 2003 decrease in gross profit as a percent to sales realized by A&E was offset, in part, by improvements
at the Harris Teeter subsidiary as a result of its effective promotional initiatives. Refer to the discussicn of segment
operations under the captions “Harris Teeter, Retail Grocery Segment” and “American & Efird, Industrial Thread
Segment” for a further analysis of the segment operating results.

Selling, general & administrative (“SG&A™) expenses as a percent to sales in fiscal 2004 increased as a result
of operating costs increases at both subsidiaries. SG& A expenses as a percent to sales in fiscal 2003 was relatively
consistent with fiscal 2002. Fixed costs leverage created by sales increases at Harris Teeter and cost reductions at
Corporate offset expense margin increases at A&E. Refer to the discussion of segment operations under the caption
“Harris Teeter, Retail Grocery Segment” and “American & Efird, Industrial Thread Segment” for a further analysis
of the segment operating results. Fiscal 2002 SG&A expense at Corporate included adjustments for the lowering
of rates used to dlscount benefit habﬂmes 4

Consohdated operating profit mcreased in ﬁscal 2004 and 2003 as a result of the sales and cost elements
described above and the previously discussed exit and impairment costs recorded in prior years.

Included in Other Expense (Income), net is interest expense, interest income, investment gains and losses, and
minority interest. Fiscal 2003 includes the recognition of $1.5 million of investment gains associated with
liquidating proceeds received in the fourth quarter. Net interest expense has declined over the prior two years as
a result of additional interest income earned on surplus cash and temporary investments.

The effective income tax rate was 36. I% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 35.0% in fiscal 2003 and 36.3% in
fiscal 2002. The lower rate in fiscal 2003 resulted from the favorable settiement with the IRS of matters relating
to prior years and certain tax savings associated with non-taxable life insurance proceeds.

Net income after income taxes in fiscal 2004 was $64.7 million, or $1.38 per diluted share, as compared to
$59.9 million, or $1.29 per diluted share in fiscal 2003 and $52.0 million, or $1.12 per diluted share in fiscal 2002.
As discussed in the “Exit and Impairment Costs” section above, fiscal 2004 included a pre-tax exit and impairment
charge of $384,000 ($238,000 after income tax benefits), fiscal 2003 included a pre-tax exit and impairment charge
of $580,000 ($360,000 after income tax benefits, or $0.01 per diluted share), and fiscal 2002 included net pre-tax
exit and impairment charges of $7,113,000 (54,394,000 after income tax benefits, or $0.09 per diluted share).

Harris Teeter, Retail Grocery Segment

The following table sets forth the consolidated operating profit components for the Company’s Harris Teeter
supermarket subsidiary for the 53 weeks ended October 3, 2004 (fiscal 2004), 52 weeks ended September 28, 2003
(fiscal 2003), and 52 weeks ended September 29, 2002 (fiscal 2002). The table also sets forth the percent to sales
and the percentage increase or decrease over the prior year (in thousands):

Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 ) Fiscal 1002 % Inc. (Dec.)

% to - ) " % to %to 04vs 03vs
Sales Sales Sales 03 02
Net Sales ............... $2,572,367 10000 $2,431,632 100.00 $2,349,650 100.00 5.8 35
Costof Sales ............ 1816446 7061 1,728,454 7108 1,671,982 71.16 5.1 34
Gross Profit ............. 755921 29.39 703,178 28.92 677,668  28.84 7.5 38
SG&A Expenses ......... 651,515 2533 609,556  25.07 589,605 25.09 6.9 34

Exit & Impairment Chgs. :

(Credits) .............. —_— — — — 710) (0.03) na n.a.
Operating Profit ......... $ 104,406 406 $ 93,622 385 § 88,773 378 115 55




.. . Sales increased 5.8% in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 as a result of strong comparable store sales
increases and the additional week of operations. The additional week in fiscal 2004 accounted for approximately
2.0% of.the total sales increase for the fiscal year. The 3.5% increase in sales in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal
2002 was driven by new store sales-and comparable store sales increases. During fiscal 2004 the company opened
7 new stores-(two of which were replacements) and closed 9 stores. During fiscal 2003 the company opened 4 new
stores and closed 7 stores. During fiscal 2002 the company opened 12 new stores and closed 6 stores. The company
did not open any replacement stores in either 2003 or 2002. Comparable store sales (see definition below) increased
2.97% ($71.3-million) for fiscal 2004 as compared to an increase of 0.98% ($22.0 million) for fiscal 2003 and a
decrease of 0.15%. ($3.2 million) for fiscal 2002. Comparable store sales continue to be negatively impacted by
the company'’s strategy of opening additional stores in its core markets that have proximity to several existing stores.
Management expects these close proximity stores, and any similar new additions in the foreseeable future, to have
a erategrc beneﬁt of enabhng Harris Teeter tocapture sales and expand market share as the markets itserves contmue

1o’ grow.

. Hams Teeter consrders its reportmg of comparable store sa]es growth to be effective in determmmg core sales
growth in times of changes in-the number of stores in operation, their locations and their sizes. While there is no
" standard industry definition of “comparable store sales,” Harris Teeter has been consistently applying the following
definition. A new store must be in operation for 14 months before it enters into the calculation of comparable store -.
sales. A closed store is removed from the calculation in the month in which its closure is announced. A new store
opening ‘withinian approximate two-mile radius of an existing store-with the intention of closing the existing store
is included as a‘replacement store i 'the comparable store sales measurement as if it were the same store, but only
if, in fact, the exrstmg store is concurrently closed. Expansions of the size of existing comparable stores are included
in the calculations of comparable store sales. Comparable store sales for fiscal 2004 was computed on a 53-week
basrs by addrng an additional week of sales to the fiscal 2003 period.

Gross profit as a percent to sales for fiscal 2004 and 2003 continued to improve as a result of Harris Teeter 3
effective retail; pricing and promotional spending programs and the increased penetration of its private label
programs. Improvements have also been realized from the continued emphasis that the company places on
productivity efforts, mcludrng waste control.

SG&A expenses as a percent to sales for ﬁscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 increased pnmanly asa result
of costs ‘dssociated with closing underperforming stores, increased bankcard fees, and employee pension and
incentive - benefits. SG&A expenses for fiscal 2004 included a $1.7 million charge (0.07% to sales} related to
leasehold improvements that were written off in the third quarter associated: with a lease that. was terminated and
renegotiated with the landlord. Sales-increases during fiscal 2003 provided the leverage to offset increased fringe
benefit costs driven largely by increased pension expense and, to a lesser extent, the shift in sales to more labor.
intensive departments, such as pharmacy and freshly prepared foods. R

The improvements in operating profit as a percent to sales for fiscal 2004 and 2003 resulted from the sales
and cost elements described above. The company continues to concentrate on its core markets, which management
believes have greater potential for improved returns on invéstment in the foreséeable future. The company had 138
stores in operation at October 3, 2004, compared to 140 stores at September 28, 2003 and 143 stores at September 29,
2002. The: compdny currently plans to open eleven new stores in fiscal 2005. On a routine basis Harris Teeter
periodically reviews its business strategy and-evaluates its existing store operations, and may from time to time
close or divest older or under-performing stores. It is presently anticipated that store closings related to replacement
properties and lease expirations for fiscal 2005 will be less than that experienced in fiscal 2004.

N
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American & Efird, Industrial Thread Segment

The following table sets forth the consolidated operating profit components for the Company’s American &
Efird textile subsidiary for the 53 weeks ended October 3, 2004 (fiscal 2004), 52 weeks ended September 28, 2003
(fiscal 2003) and 52 weeks ended September 29, 2002 (fiscal 2002). The table also sets forth the percent to sales
and the percentage increase or decrease over the pricr year (in thousands):

Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 % Inc. (Dec.)

% to % to % to 04 vs 03 vs

) Sales Sales Sales 03 02
Net Sales ............... $296,230 100.00 $293,107 100.00 $294,548 100.00 1.1 (0.5)
Cost of Sales ............ 218,650 73.8] 219,219 7479 217,397 7381 (0.3) 038
Gross Profit ............. 77,580 © 2619 73,888 2521 77,151 26.19 5.0 4.2)
SG&A Expenses ......... 64,123  21.65 59,684 2036 56,833 19.29 74 5.0

Exit & Impairment Chgs :

(Credits) ...........0.. : 384 0.13 . 580 0.20 7,823 2.66 n.a. na.

. Operating Profit ......... $ 13,073 441 °$ 13,624 465 $ 12495 424 (4.0) 9.0

- Sales increased 1.1% in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 primarily as a result of improved foreign sales
and the additional week of operations. For fiscal 2004, U.S. sales declined by 1.8% and foreign sales increased
by 3.7% as the company continues its global expansion strategy. The 0.5% sales decrease in fiscal 2003 as compared
to fiscal 2002 resulted from-a 10.1% decline in U.S. sales offset by a 10.5% increase in foreign sales. The U.S. sales
decline represents a continuation of the trend of customers shifting buying and production out of the United States.

Foreign sales for fiscal 2004 accounted for approximately 53% of total A&E sales as compared to
approximately 52% in fiscal 2003 and approximately 47% in fiscal 2002. Foreign sales have become an increasing
proportion of total A&E sales over recent years as a result of the shifting global production of its customers and
A&E’s strategy of increasing its presence in such global markets. Management recognizes that a major challenge
facing A&E is the geographic shift of its customer base and, as a result, the company will continue to pursue its
global expansion by way of joint ventures and other investments.

Gross profit as a percent to sales increased in fiscal 2004 when compared to fiscal 2003 primarily a$ a result
of the mix of products sold and production efficiencies gained from prior manufacturing plant closings. The 2004
improvement was offset, in part, by the continued intense price competition and rising raw materials costs. The
decline in gross profit as a percent to sales in fiscal 2003 when compared to fiscal 2002 resulted primarily from
weaker manufacturing running schedules in the. United States, price competition and rising raw materials
costs. Management continues to focus ‘on optmuzmg costs and manufacturing capacities at its domestic and
foreign operations.

SG&A expenses as a percent to sales increased in fiscal 2004 from fiscal 2003 as a result of additional costs
associated with the company’s global expansion strategies. The increase in SG&A expenses as a percent to sales
in fiscal 2003 from fiscal 2002 resulted primarily as a result of higher distribution costs.

A&E’s operating profit.in the U.S. market improved in fiscal 2004, while the operating profit for its foreign
operations declined primarily as a result of the company’s strategic initiatives to consolidate operations in the United
States and expand in foreign markets. During fiscal 2003, A&E’s operating profit in the U.S. market experienced
a decline as a result of sales declines and challenging economic conditions. The foreign operations of A&E
experienced improvements in operating profitability in fiscal 2003 as a result of added efficiencies from increased
sales and production. Foreign operations contributed approximately 40% of A&E’s operating profit in fiscal 2004
as compared to approximately 45% in fiscal 2003 and approximately 22% in fiscal 2002.

Outlook

While the performance of Harris Teeter has been strong, the economic conditions in A&E’s industry continue
to be challenging. At Harris Teeter, the consistent execution of productivity initiatives implemented at under-
performing stores, controls over waste, implementation of operating efficiencies that will offset the continued rising
costs for health care, pensions and credit card fees and effective merchandising strategies will dictate the pace at
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which its margins could improve. Additionally, promotional costs to drive sales in the presently intense competitive
environment could negatively impact operating margms and net income in future periods. Further, the intense
competitive environment for supermarkets is expected to continue in the foreseeable future. For A&E, the continued
increase of apparel imports in the textile and apparel market continues to negatively impact the domestic market.
A&E will find itidifficult to generate significant imiprovements in profitability in the absence of a more favorable
economic climate. A&E management remains focused on generating sales growth in global markets and on
managing costs and manufacturing capacities. Ruddick Corporation management remains conservative in its
outlook for fiscal 2005 given the complex factors currently impacting sales and costs at both subsidiaries and the
unknown future impacts that will resuit from the expiration of apparel import quotas in 2005. Further operating
improvement will be dependent on the Company’s ability to offset rising fuel and benefit costs, including pension
costs, with additional operating efficiencies and to effectively execute its global expansion plans.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Ruddick Cdrporation is a holding company which, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Harris Teeter and
A&E, is engaged in the primary businesses of regional supermarket operations and industrial sewing thread
manufacturing and distribution, respectively. Ruddick has no material independent operations, nor material assets,
other than the investments in its operating subsidiaries, as well as investments in certain fixed.assets, short term
cash equivalents; and life insurance contracts to support corporate-wide operations and benefit programs. Ruddick
provides a variety of services to its subsidiaries and is dependent upon income and upstream dividends from its
subsidiaries. Thére are no restrictions on the subsidiary dividends, which have historically been determined as a
percentage of nét income of each subsidiary. :

The Company seeks to limit long-term debt so that it constitutes no more than 40% of capital employed, which
includes long-term debt, minority interest and shareholders’ equity. As of October 3, 2004, this percentage was
23.0% compared to 27.3% at September 28, 2003. Long-term debt less cash and temporary investments amounted
to $59.2 million as of October 3, 2004 as compared to $67.5 million at September 28, 2003.

* The Company s principal source of liquidity has been cash generated from operating activities. As of October 3,
2004 the Company had current liquidity (cash, cash equivalents and temporary investments) of $107.1 million
compared to $121.6 million at September 28, 2003. During fiscal 2004, the net cash provided by operating activities
was $135.7 million, compared to $150.4 million during fiscal 2003 and $143.3 during fiscal 2002. Cash flow from
income (net income plus non-cash items included in net income) in fiscal 2004 was $141.7 million as compared
to $151.9 million in fiscal 2003 and $143.6 million in fiscal 2002. Investing activities during fiscal 2004 required
net cash of $111.4 million compared to $149.0 million during fiscal 2003 and $77.5 million during fiscal 2002.
The increase iniinvesting activity since fiscal 2002 was primarily due to increased investments in temporary and
other investments. The significant components of financing activities for fiscal 2004 included the payment of
dividends of $18.6 million and payment of long-term debt of $31.4 million.

. During fiscal 2004, capital eXpenditures totaled $92.1 million. Harris Teeter 'capital expenditures were
$83.9 million in fiscal 2004 compared to $64.4 million i in fiscal 2003 and $66.6 million in-fiscal 2002. In addition
to the capital expenditures, Harris Teeter has recogmzed opportunities to invest in the development of certain of
its new stores. During fiscal 2004 such development capital spending was $28.7 million, compared to $12.3 million
during fiscal 2003.and $2.2 million during fiscal 2002. A&E’s capital expenditures were $8.1 million during fiscal
2004 compared to $9.2 million in fiscal 2003 and $7.8 million in fiscal 2002. Total capital expenditures for fiscal
2005 are expecied to be approximately $115 million, with Harris Teeter’s program accounting for over 90% of the
total expenditires. In addition, during fiscal 2005 Harris Teeter expects to invest approximately $35 million in the
development of certain of its new stores. Harris Teeter anticipates that its capital for new store growth and store
remodels. will be applied in its existing markets in fiscal 2005 as well as the foreseeable future. A&E expects to
target further expansion of global operations. For both subsidiaries, these expenditures are for modernization and
expansion. Management expects that internally generated funds, supplemented by available cash balances if
necessary, will:be-adequate to finance such expenditures.

On May 14, 2002, the Company and three banks entered into a revolving credit facility for an aggregate amount
of up to $100 million, Borrowings and repayments under this revolving credit facility are of the same nature as
short-term cre@it lines. The credit agreement provided for 4 maturity of three years, plus two annual extensions
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of one year each if then granted by the banks. The two annual extensions have been granted, which establishes
a maturity date of May 14, 2007. The amount which may be borrowed from time to time and the interest rate on
any outstanding borrowings are each dependent on a léverage factor. The leverage factor is based on a ratio of rent-
adjusted consolidated funded debt divided by earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and
operating rents, as those terms are defined in the credit agreement. The more significant of the financial covenants
which the Company must meet during the term of the credit agreement include a maximum leverage ratio, minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio and tangible net worth requirements. As of October 3, 2004, the Company was in
compliance with all financial covenants. At October 3, 2004, no debt was outstanding under the revolving credit
facility, and no borrowings are needed or anticipated for the foreseeable future. In addition, the Company has the
capacity to borrow up to an aggregate amount of $37.9 miilion from two major U. S. life insurance companies
utilizing certain insurance assets as collateral.

Covenants in certain of the Company’s long-term debt agreements limit the total indebtedness that the
Company may incur. Management believes that the limit on indebtedness does not significantly restrict the
Company’s liquidity and that such liquidity is adequate to meet foreseeable requirements.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

_The Company has assumed various financial obligations and commitments in the normal course of its
operations and financing activities. Financial obligatiors are considered to represent known future cash payments
that the Company is required to make under existing contractual arrangements, such as debt and lease agreements,
The fotlowing table represents the scheduled maturities of the Company’s contractual obligations as of October 3,
2004: (in thousands):

Less than ’ More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

Long-Term Debt™ ................... $ 155225 -$ 8,275 $ 16,066 $ 15197 $115,687

Operating Leases™® ................ 917,015 . 64,887 130,137 125,574 596,417

Capital Lease Obligations®™® ... ... 11,062 373 - 451 491 9,747
Purchase Obligations —

Fixed Assets ....occvevnviiuieennnn. 50,265 50,265 . — — —

Purchase Obligations — : ’

Inventory ......oooviviiiiiiiniinnn. : 2,835 2,835 . — L — —
Purchase Obligations —

_ Service Contracts .......... PR 5,833 2,663 3,131 39 —

Other® ....... RS 22,174 1,705 3343 2971 14,155

Total Contractual Cash Obligations .. $1,164409 $131,003 §153,128 $144,272 $736,006

(1) For a more detailed description of the obligations refer to the Notes entitled “Leases™ and “Long-Term Debt”
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 hereof.

(2) Represents the minimum rents payable and includes leases associated with closed stores. Amounts are not
offset by expected sublease income and do not include various contingent liabilities associated with assigned

.. leases as discussed below. ‘

(3) Represents the projected cash payments associated with certain deferred compensation contracts. The net
present value of these obligations is recorded by the Company and included with other long-term liabilities
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

In connection with the closing of certain store locations; Harris Teeter has assigned leases to several other
merchants with recourse. These leases expire over the next 17 years, and the future minimum lease payments of
approximately $93.5 million, in the aggregate, over that future period have been assumed by these merchants. In
the highly unlikely event, in management’s opinion based on the current operations and credit worthiness of the
assignees, that all such contingent obligations would be payable by Harris Teeter, the approximate aggregate
amounts due by year would be as follows: $9.6 million in fiscal 2005 (35 stores), $9.2 million in fiscal 2006 (29
stores), $9.0 million in fiscal 2007 (27 stores), $8.6 million in fiscal 2008 (26 stores), $8.0 million in fiscal 2009
(25 stores) and $49.1 million in aggregate during all remaining years thereafter.

13




The Company utilizes various standby letters of credit and bonds as required from time to time by certain
programs, most significantly for self-insured programs such as workers compensation and various casualty
insurance. The total of such instruments was approximately $25.4 million as of October 3, 2004. :

Off Balance Sﬂi]eéa Arrangements

The Company is not a party to any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have;
a current or future material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Critical Accoummg Pohcles

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wnh generally accepted -accounting principles requires
management tg make estimates and -assumptions about future events that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. Future events and their
effects cannot be determined with absolute certainty. Therefore, management’s determination of estimates and
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities requires the exercise of judgment in the selection and
application of assumptions based on various factors including historical experience, current and expected economic
conditions and!other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from
those esumateq The Company constantly rev1ews the relevant mgmﬁcam factors and makes adjustments where
the facts and cu'cumstances dictate.

Management has identified the following accounting policies as’ the most crmcal in the preparation of the
Company’s financial statements because they involve the most difficult, subjective or complex judgments about
the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.

Vendor Reba_te‘vs, Credits and Promotional Allowances »

Consistent with standard practices in’the retail industry, Harris Teeter receives allowances from vendors
~ through a variety of programs and arrangements. Given the highly promotional nature of the retail supermarket
industry, the allowances are generally intended to defray the costs of promotion, advertising and selling the vendor’s
products. Exainples of such arrangements include, but are not limited to, promotional, markdown and rebate
allowances; cdoperative advertising funds; volume allowances; store opening discounts and support; and slotting,.
stocking and display allowances. The amount of such allowances may be determined on the basis of (1) a fixed
 dollar amount{negotiated with the vendor, (2) an amount per unit purchased or as a percentage of total purchases
from the vendor, or (3) amounts based on sales to the customer, number of stores, in-store displays or advertising.
The proper recognition and timing of accounting for these items are significant to the reporting of the results of
operations of the Company. The Company applies the authoritative guidance of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 101 (“SAFB No. 101”") — Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, Emerging Issues Task Force Issue
No. 02-16 (“EITF 02-16") — Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Considerations
Received fromi a Vendor, and other authoritative guidance as appropriate. Under SAB No. 101, revenue recognition
requires the prerequisite completion of the earnings process and its realization or assurance of realizability. Vendor
rebates, credits and other promotional allowances that relate to Harris Teeter’s buying and merchandising activities,
including lump-sum payments associated with long-term contracts, are recorded as a component of cost of sales
as they are eamed, the recognition of which is determined in accordance with the underlying agreement with the
vendor, the authoritative guidance and completion of the earning process. Portions of vendor allowances that are
refundable tolthe vendor, in whole or in part, by the nature of the provxszons of the contract are deferred from
recognition uitil realization is assured.

Harris Téeter’s practices are in accordance with EITF 02-16 and are based on the premise that the accounting
for these vendor allowances should follow the economic substance of the underlying transactions, which is
evidenced by, the agreement with the vendor as long as the allowance is distinguishable from the merchandise
purchase. Consistent with this premise, Harris Teeter recognizes allowances when the purpose for which the vendor
funds were intended and committed to be used has been fulfilled and a cost has been incurred by the retailer. Thus,
it is the Company’s policy to recognize the vendor allowance:consistent with the timing of the recognition of the
expense that the allowance is intended to reimburse and to determine the accounting classification consistent with
the economicisubstance of the underlying transaction. Where the Company provides an identifiable benefit or service
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to the vendor apart from the purchase of merchandise, that transaction is recorded separately. For example, co-
" operative advertising allowances are accounted for as a reduction of advertising expense in the period in which

the advertising cost is incurred. If the advemsmg allowance exceeds. the cost of advertising, then the excess is
. recorded agamst the cost of sales in the period in whlch the related expense is recognized.

There are numerous types of rebates and allowances in the retail industry. The Company’s accountmg practices
with regard to some of :the more typical arrangements are discussed as follows. Vendor allowances for price
markdowns are credited to the cost of sales during the period in which the related markdown was taken and charged
to the cost of sales. Slotting and stocking allowances received from a vendor to ensure that its products are carried
or to introduce.a new product at the Company’s stores are recorded as a reduction of cost of sales over the period
covered by the agreement with the vendor based-on the estimated inventory turns of the merchandise to which the
allowance applies. Display-allowances are recognized as a reduction of cost of sales in the period earned in
accordance with the vendor agreement. Volume rebates by the vendor in the form of a reduction of the purchase
price of the merchandise reduce the cost of sales when the related merchandise is sold. Generally, volume rebates
under a structured purchase program with allowances.awarded based onthe level of purchases are recognized, when
realization is assured, as a reduction in the cost of sales in the appropriate monthly period based on the actual level
of purchases in the period relative to the total purchase commitment.and adjusted for the estimated inventory turns
of the merchandise. Some of these typical vendor rebate, credit and-promotional allowance’ arrangements require
that the Company make assumptions and judgments regarding, for-example, the likelthood of attaining specified
levels of purchases, or selling specified volumes of products, the duration of carrying a specified product and the
estimation of inventory turns. The Company constantly reviews the relevant, significant factors and makes
adjustments where the facts -and circumstances dictate. - '

Irwentary Valuanon

The Company s inventories are valued at Lhe lower of cost or market with the cost of substannally all domestrc
" U.S. inventories being determined using the last-in, first-out (LIFQ). method. Forergn inventories and limited
categories of domestic inventories are valued on the weighted average and on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost
methods. LIFO assumes that the last costs in are the ones_that should be used to measure the cost of goods sold,
leaving the earlier costs residing in the ending mventory valuation. The  Company uses the “link chain” method
of computing dollar value LIFO whereby the base year values of beginning and ending inventories are determined
using a cumulative price index. The Company generates an estimatéd internal index to “link” current costs to the
original costs of the base years in which the company adopted LIFO. The Company's determination of the LIFO
index is driven by the change in current year costs as well as the change in inventory quantities on hand. Under
the LIFO valuation method at Harris Teeter, all retail store inventories are initially stated at estimated cost as
calculated by the Retail Inventory Method (RIM). Under RIM, the valuation of inveritories at cost and the resulting
gross margins are calculated by applying a ca'lc'nlated'COSt-;o—reteiiI ratio to the retail value of inventories. RIM'is
an averaging method that has been widely used in the retail industry due fo its practicality. Inherent in the RIM
calculation are certain significant management judgmerits and estimates; including markups, markdowns, lost
inventory (shrinkage) percentages and the purity and similarity of inventory sub-categories as to their relative
inventory turns, gross marging and on hand quantities. These judgments and estimates srgmﬁcantly impact the
ending inventory valuation at cost as well as gross margin. Management believes that the Company’s RIM provides
an inventory valuation which reasonably approximates cost and results in carrying the inventory at the lower of
cost or market. Management does not believe that the likelihood is significant that materially higher LIFO reserves
are required given its current expectations of on-hand inventory quantities and costs.

The. proper valuatron of inventory also requires management to estlmate the net realizable value of the
Company’s obsolete and slow-moving inventory at the ‘end of each period. Management bases its net realizable .
values upon many factors including historical recovery rates, the aging of inventories on hand, the inventory
movement of specific products and the current economic conditions. When management has determined inventory
to be obsolete.or slow moving, the inventory is reduced to its net realizable value by recording an obsolescence
reserve. Given the Company’s experiences in selling obsoléte and slow-moving inventory, management believes
that the amounts of the obsolescence reserves to the carrying values of its inventories are materially adequate.

With regard to the proper valuations of inventories, management reviews its judgments, assumptions and other
relevant, significant factors on a routine basis and makes adjustments where the facts and circumstances dictate.




Self-insurance Reserves for Workers’ Compensation, Healthcare and General Liability

The Company is primarily self-insured for inost U.S.: ‘workers compensanon claims, healthcare claims and
general liability! and automiotive liability losses. The Company has purchased insurance coverages in order to

establish certaini limits to its exposure on a pef claim basis. Actual claims in each of these categories are reported -

to the Company|by third party administrators. The third party administrators also report initial estimates of related
loss reserves injthe workers compensation, general liability and automotive liability programs. The open claims
and initial loss| reserves are subjected to examination by the’ Company’s risk management and accounting
management utilizing a consistent methodology which involves various assumptions, judgment and other factors.
Such factors inc;lude but are not limited to-the probability of settlement, the amount at which settlement can be
achieved, the ptobable duration of the claim, the cost-development pattern of the claim and the applicable cost
development faétor. The Company determines thie éstimated reserve required for U:S. worker compensation claims
in each accou'ntlng period. This requires that management determine estimates of the costs of claims incurred.and
accrue for such expenses in the period in which the claims are incurred. Management calculates the current period
costs based on actual claims, reviewed for the status and probabilities associated with potential settlement and then
adjusted by development factors from publlshed insurance industry sources and discounted to present values using
an appropriate dlscount factor. A similar methodology is used to evaluate gerieral liability and automotive liability
:accrual requiretnents. The Company constantly reviews the relevant, significant factors and makes adjustments
where the facts land circumstances dictate. Management does not believe the likelihood is significant that existing
worker compensanon claims, general liability claims’ and automotive llabxhty claims will be’ settled for materially

l’ugher amountsl than those accrued.

The variety of healthcare plans avallable 1o employees are pnmarzly self~znsured although some locatzons have
insured heaith mamtenance organization plans: The Company records an accrual for the estimated amount of self-

insured healthcare claims incurred by all participants but not yet reported. The most significant factors which i impact

on the determmanon of the required accrual are the historical pattern of the timeliness of claims processing, changes
in the nature or types of benefit plans, changes in the plan benefit'designs, employer-employee cost sharing factors,
and medical trends and ‘inflation. These reserves are recorded based on historical experience and industry trends,
which are contmually monitored, and accinals are adjusted when warranted by changes in facts and circumstances.
The Company beheves that ‘the total healthcare cost-accruals as of October 3, 2004 are reasonable and adequate

as of Ihat daze

i

Impazrmem of Zong ltved Assets and Closed Store Oblzgarrons

The Company assesses its long- llved assets for p0351ble lmpau-ment whenever events or changes in
circumstances mdlcate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverab1hty is measured by a
comparison of the: carrying amount to the net non- dlscounted cash- flows expected to be generated by the asset.
An 1mpa1rment[loss istecognized for any excess of net book value over the estimated fair value of the assetimpaired.
The fair value as estimated based on expected, future cash flows. .

The value of property and equ1pment assocrated with closed stores and facilities is adjusted to reflect
recoverable values based on the Company’s prior history of' dlsposmg of similar assets and current economic
conditions. Mal\agement continually reviews its fair value estimates and records impairment charges for assets held
for sale when maniagement determmes based on new mformauon Wthh it believes to be rehable that such charges

are appropriate. '
The, results of j 1mpa1rment tests are subject to management s esnmates and assumpnons of projected cash flows
and Operatmg results. The Company believes that, based on current conditions, materially differerit reponed results
are not likely to result from long-lived asset 1mpa1rments However, a change in assumptions or market conditions
could result mla change in estlmated future cash flows and the likelihood of materially dlfferent reported results.

The: Company records liabilities for closed stores that are under long-term lease agreements. The liability
represents an estimate of the present value of the remainiig non-cancelable lease payments after the anticipated
closing date, nlet of estimated ‘subtenant income. Thé closed store liabilities usually are paid over the lease terms
associated with the closed stores, unless settled earlier. Harris Teeter management estimates the subtenant income
and future cash flows based on its historical experience -and knowledge of (1) the market in which the store is
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located, (2) the results of its previous efforts to dispose of similar assets and (3) the current economic conditions.
The actual cost of disposition for these leases is affected by specific real estate markets, inflation rates and general
economic conditions and may differ significantly from those assumed and .estimated. ,

" Store closings generally are completed within one year after the decision to close. Adjustments to closed store
liabilities primarily relate to changes in subtenants and actual costs differing from original estimates. Adjustments
are made for changes in estimates in the period in which the change becomes known. Any excess store closing
lrablhty remaining upon settlement of the obligation is reversed to income in the period that such settlement is
determined. The Company constantly reviews the relevant, srgmﬁcant factors used in 1ts estimates and makes
ad]ustments where the facts and circumstances dictate. ' ‘

Retirement Plans and Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

‘The Company maintains certain retirement benefit plans for substantially all domestic full-time employees and

 a supplemental retirement benefit plan for certain selected officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. Employees

in foreign subsidiaries participate to varying degrees in local pension plans, which, in the aggregate, are not
sighificant. The qualified pension plans are non-contributory, funded defined benefit plans, while the non-qualified
supplemental pension plan for €xecutives-is an unfunded, defined benefit plan. The Company’s current funding
policy for its qualified pension plans is to.contribute annually the amount required by regulatory authorities to meet

* minimum funding requirements and an amount to increase. the funding ratios over future years to a level determined

by its actuaries to be effectrve in reducing the volatlhty of contrrbutrons

. The Company has certain deferred compensation arrangements whrch allow or allowed in prior years its
drrectors officers and selected key management personnel to forego the receipt of earned compensation for specified
periods of time. As of October 3, 2004, these plans were unfunded, except for a directors” compensation deferral
plan and a flexible deferral plan for executives which utilize a rabbi trust to hold assets designated to pay the
respective liabilities. For further disclosures regarding the Company’s pension and deferred compensation plans,
see the Note entitled “Employee Benefit Plans” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item § hereof.

The Company maintains a post-retirement healthcare plan for retirees whose sum of age and years of service

* equal at least 75 at retirement. The plan continues coverage from early retirement date until the earlier date of

eligibility. for Medicare or any other employer’s medical plan. The Company reqmres that the retiree pay the
estrmated full cost of the coverage. The Company also provides a $5,000 post-retirement mortality benefit to a small
number of retirees under a prior plan. The obligations and expenses assocrated with each of these benefit plans
are not material.

The determmatxon of the Company’s obligation and expense for pensron deferred compensation and other
post-retirement benefits is "dependent on certain assumptions selected by management and used by the Company
and its actuaries in calculanng such amounts: The more significant of those assumptions applicable to the qualified -
pension plan include the discount rate, the expected long-terin rate of return on plan assets, the rates of i increase
in future compensation and the rates of future employee turniover. Those assumptions also apply to determinations
of the obligations and expense of the following plans, except as noted: (1) supplemental pension —-no funded assets
to be measured, and (2) deferred compensation arrangement and post-retirement mortality benefit — no funded
assets to be measured and no dependency on future rates of compensation or turnover.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, actual results that differ from management’s
assumptions are accurnulated-and amortized over future periods and, therefore, generally affect the Company’s
recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods. While management believes that its selections
of values for the various assumptions are appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or significant
changes in the assumptions may materially affect pension and other post-retirement obligations and future expense.

-Recent Accounting Standards

The Company has adopted various new accounting standards that became effective during fiscal 2004. The
adoption of the new standards did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial
position or cash flows in the reported periods. Information about the new accounting requirements has been
incorporated into the Note entitled “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 hereof. :
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In January:2003. and December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46 and FIN 46-R; respectively. FIN 46.and
FIN 46-R address the consolidation of entities whose equity holders have either (a) not provided sufficient equity
at risk to allow the entity to finance its own activities or (b) do not-possess certain characteristics of a controlling
financial 1nterest FIN 46 and FIN 46-R require the consolidation of these entities, known as variable interest entities
- (“VIE’s") by the ‘primary. beneficiary of the enttty The primary beneficiary is the entity, if any, that i 1/ subject to
a majority of the risk of loss from the VIE’s activities, entitled to receive.a majority of the VIE’s residual refurng
or both. FIN 46 and FIN 46-R apply 1mmed1ately to variable interests in VIE’s created or obtamed after January 31,
2003. For variable interest in a VIE created before February I, 2003, FIN 46 and FIN 46- R apply to VIE’s no
. ‘Jater than the end of the first reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. Based on.management’s review of

the Company’s ivarious investments, management has concluded that the Company does not have any VIE’s that.

require consohdanon

. In November 2003 the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") confirmed as a consensus EITF Issue No. 03-10,

“Application of EITF Issue No. 02-16 by Resellers to Sales Incentives Offered to Consumers by Manufacturers” .
(“EITF 03- 10”) EITF 03-10 addresses the accounting for manufacturer sales incentives offered directly to ~

CONSUMmErs,, mcludmg manufacturer coupons. The Company’s accounting policies related to vendor coupons and
retmbursements are in accordance with the requirements of EITF 03-10. The adoption of this pronouncement had
no material impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position or cash flows i in the reported penods

In December 2003 the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), “Employers’ Dtsclosures about Pensions '

and Other Postretirement Benefits.” This statement requires additional disclosures regarding employers™ pension
plans and other postretirement benefit plans in annual and interim reports. Additional disclosures are required for
assets, obltgatzons cash flows and net periodic benefit costs. The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements
(refer to Note captioned “Employee Benefit Plans” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8
hereof). The adoption of this Statement required disclosures- only and dld not 1mpact the Company s results of
operanons -financial posmon or cash flows. |

Regarding Forward-Looking Statements- L

The foregomg discussion contains certain statements that may constitute “forward- -looking statements” within

the meaning of the federal securities laws These forward-looking statements relate-to, among other thmgs thé
Company’s strategic and business initiatives and plans for growth or operating changes; the Company’s financial
condition and results of operation; futire events, developments or performance; and management s expectanons,
behefs plans estrmates and pl’O_]CCIlO]’lS

. While management belteves these forwa.rd lookmg statements are accurate and reasonable uncertamtzes risks
~"and factors,, 1ncludmg those described below, could cause actual results to differ matenally from those reflected
in the forward “looking statements Readers are_cautioned not to place ‘undue reliance on these forward- lookmg
statements which reﬂect management s judgment only as of the date of this report. Neither the Company nor its
management undertakes an obligdtion to publicly revise these forward- -looking statements to reflect events and
circumstances that arise. after the date of thts report.

Factors that cou]d cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those antlcrpated in the forward-
lookmg statements in this report include the followmg :

e 'Generally adverse economic and mdustry condmons mcludmg a declme in consumer demand for apparel
’ products or s1gmﬁcant changes in consumer food preferences,

.» Changes in the competitive -environment for elther of the Company’s subsrdtanes mcludtng mcreased

competmon in the Company’s primary geographic markets, the entry of new competitors or changes in the

strategies-of current competitors and consolidation in the retail grocery industry; ) ' vt

.. Changes m federal state or local laws or regulahons affecting the manufacturmg, dtstrtbuuon or retaxlmg
~of food! and changes in food safety requrrements

e Changes in accounting standards or taxation requtrements mcludmg the passage of future tax legrslanon
or any regulatory or judicial position that could have an adverse impact on past, current or future tax beneﬁts
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e Economic or political changes in the countries in which the Company’s subsidiaries operate, adverse trade
- regulations, re<tnct10ns or tariffs or change< in import quotas

Cost and stability of energy sources;

Cost and availability of raw matenals;

Management’s ability to predxct accurately the adequacy of the Company s present hquldlty to meet
future requlrements,

Changes in the Company’s capital expenditures, costs for new store’ opemnos or store closings and other
business development or expansion costs;

¢ Continued solvency of dny third parities on leases the Company has guaranteed
¢ Management's ability to predict the requlred contributions to the pension plans of the Company,

¢ Changes in labor and employee benefit costs, such as increased health care and other insurance costs;

Ability to recruit, train and retain effective employees and management in both of the Company’s subsidiaries;

o The extent and speed of successful execution of strategic initiatives designed to'increase sales and
profitability of each of the Company’s subsidiaries and the ability to implement new technology; and

¢ Unexpected outcomes of any legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business of the Company.

Other factors not identified above also could cause actual results to differ materially from those included,
contemplated or implied by the forward-looking statements made in this report.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk on its fixed interest rate debt obligations. Generally, the fair
value of debt with a fixed interest rate will increase as interest rates fall, and the fair value will decrease as interest
rates rise. As of October 3 2004, the Company had no 51gn1ﬁcant foreign exchange exposure and no outstanding
derivative transactions.

The table below presents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity
dates for the Company’s significant fixed interest rate debt obligations ($150 million of Senior Notes due at various
dates through 2017):

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total Fai‘r Value

Fixed rate debt obligations ..... $7,143  $7,143  $7,143 $7,143  $7,143  $114,285  $150,000 $170,663
Weighted average interest rate .. 6.48% 6.48% 648% 6.48% 6.48% 7.49% 7.25%

For a more detail description of fair value, refer to the Note entitled “Financial Instruments™ of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 hereof.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Rudd1ck Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ruddick Corporation and subsidiaries as
of October 3, 2004 and September 28, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 3, 2004.
Our audits also included the financial statement schedule “valuation and qualifying accounts and reserves” for each
of the years in the three-year period ended October 3, 2004. These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated ﬁnancial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audlts in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(Umted States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An aundit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal! financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our oplmon

. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present faxrly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Ruddick Corporation and subsidiaries as of October 3, 2004 and September 28, 2003, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 3, 2004,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly,
in all material respects, the information set forth Lherem for each of the years in the three-year period ended
October 3, 2004.

s/ KPMG LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina.
November 2, 2004
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS -
RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(dollars in thousands)

: October 3, . i Séptember 28,
R ‘ T 2004 - - . 2003
ASSETS =~ | T ’
Current Assets . - : . . - o ~
- Cash and Cash Equivalents ........... e R PR $ 46,579 . S - 63222
" Temporary Investments ...... e, e, Cov 60471 - 58,343
- Accounts'Receivable, Net of Allowance ‘For Doubtful Accountsv‘ ' S .
of $3,170 and, $3, 962 . Ceeeeeenas e e PR “e.. .. : 70,007 - . 66,326
INVENLOTIES ...eoiiiiitiii e e e v e e, e S - 230,856 214,122
"Net Current Deferred ‘Income Tax Benefits ......... e ST - A 12,809 ‘ 12,251
Prepaid and Other Current Assets USSR . . 25,164 o 2'5}232 !
_ Total Current ASSELS oo e ST L 445886 0 _ 439496
Property ‘ : : , : ‘ . ' ‘ L
Land ....... PP P e o 29,898 - 32,217
Buildings and Improvements .............coviiiiiiiiiiiiiie - 185477 179,324
“Machinery and Equipment ...l v 671,198 0 .. 640,362
Lcasehold Improvements S e R e .- ‘278,839 . 253578
- Total, at Cost ... i s, R T e PO -7 L165412 - 0 1,105,481
Accumulated| Depreciation and Amomzatlon ....................... - 626,301 582,084
‘ Property, Net T SPTTTTRS P 539111 523397
INVESEMENtS ..o or o ee e, R 58,726 . - 33,706
Goodwill ...... e . 8,169 8,169
Intangible Assets .........coviviiiiiiii i, e ' 6,234 4,515
Other Long-Term ASSELS ........oo.ueuineiiiiiieitiieiae e aannn. ' 33,866 55,739
TOtal ASSELS .. ...vuvenieeieee e e 81,111,992 $1,065,022
LIABILITIES 'AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ' '
Current Liabilities ‘
Notes Payable ..o , $ 2588 $ 2,667
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt ............coiiiiiiiieenennn.. 8,648 31,596
Accounts Payable ........... ... 148,196 148,369
Federal and State InCOme TAXES .. .vuvereen e eeeeanenns 1,640 147
Accrued Compensation .................ooeeene. e 40,832 38,010
Other Current Liabilities ............cc.vcuvinvinviiiiinniiniiinnn, . 56,011 53,515
Total Current Liabilities ... voviivrriiiiiier et iiriiinreiireeens 257,915 274,304
Long-Term Debt ... oo e e 157,639 157,499
Net Long-Term; Deferred Income Tax Liabilities ......................... 24,589 29,282
Pension Liabilities ........cooiiiiiiiiiiii i i 60,028 60,808
Other Long-Term Liabilities ........... ..., 54,300 39,106
MINOTitY INEEIESt ..ottt ittt ie e e e s 7.811 8,758
Commitments and Contingencies ...............oeeviiriiieeiinreiieenn. — —
Shareholders’ Equrty
Common Stdck, no par value — Shares Outstanding:

2004 — 46 730 758; 2003 — 46,223,233 ..o 56,634 47,749
Retained Earmngs ..................................................... 535,188 489,135
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ........................... (42,112) ' (41,619)

Total Shareholders Equity ... SRR 549,710 495,265

Total L1ab11mes and Shareholders’ Equity .......................... $1,111,992 $1,065,022

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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* STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME
RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net Sates ............ ORI e e
Costof Sales .........ocooiiiiiiin
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ......
Exit and Impairment Charges ............... e
Operating Profit ..........................l

Interest Expense ....... Wi, S

Income Before Taxes .............c.oooiiiiiiinin.
Income Tax EXPENse ...........ocooiiiiiiiiiiiiin,

Net Income ........ e

Net Income Per Share:
Basic .............ooeel U
Diluted ...

Weighted Averagé Number of Shares of Common -

Stock Outstanding:

BaSIC vt et

Diluted .................. ST ;

53 Weeks
Ended

- . Qctober.3,

2004

$2,868,597

2,035,096
720,703
384

112,414
12,938
(2,271)

981)
1,564

101,164

36505
$ 64,659

See. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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32 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
September 28, September 29,
2003 2002
$2,724,739 $2,644,198
1,947,673 1,889,379

674,374 . 653,904

: 580 - 7,113
102,112 . 93,802
12,385 12,568
(1,417) (1,360)
(2,419) (1)

, 1471 1,013
- 92,092 - 81,592
32,210 29,609

$ 59,882 $ 51,983
$ 129 $  L12
$ 129 $ 112
46,385 46,402
46,463 . 46,578




STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES ;
(dollars in thousgnds, except share and per share amounts)

Balance at Septembc]r 30,2001 ,....

_Exercise of stock options, mcludmg
tax benefits of $204 e

Net earnings ..... e

Dividends ($0.36 a share) .........

Foreign currency translation
adjustment (net ofi tax of $0) ...

Minimum pension hablhty adjustmem
(net of tax beneﬁtlof $16,329) .. ..

Balance at Sep[embqr 29,2002 .....

Exercise of stock options, including
tax benefits of $102 ............
Shares purchased and retired .. .....
Net earnings ...............ooon.
Dividends (30.36 a share) .........

Foreign currency translanon
adjustment (net of tax of $0) .....

Minimum pension habxhty adjustment
(nct of tax benefitiof $2,739) .....
Balance at Septembgr 28, 2003 .....

Exercise of stock options,-including
tax benefits of $643 ... ... ...

Directors’ stock plan .............
Net earnmgs ....................
Dividends (30.40 a share) AR,

-Foreign currency trapslation .
adjustment (net of tax of 30) ... ..

Minimum pension liability adjustment
(net of tax benefit of $515) ......

Balance at October 3,2004 ..., ...

' : Accumulated
Common Stock : Other Total . :
Shares. . Common Retamed Comprehensxve Stockholders’ Comprehensive
(No Par Value) Stock Earnings  (Loss) Income Equity Income
.. 46319,696. 549549  $410,665 $(14,861) | $445,353
. 134,492 1,578 — . . 1,578
) - - 51983 . - o0 51983 . .$'51,983 °
o L= —  (16,708) . — (6708
. — _ — . 507 507 507 -
. i — — Q5025 (25025 (25,025 -
.. 46454188 51,127 445940 (39,379) - 457688 - $27.465
. 146,845, 1,824 — — 184
. (377,800) (5,.202) — — (5202 ,
. R— - 59,882 — 59,382 $ 59,882
. S— —~  (16,687) — -(16,687)
.. — — — 1,957 ‘ 1,957 1957
. - = — (4,197) @9 8197y
.. 46223233 47,749 489,135 (41,619) 495,265 $ 57,642
. 507,525 8,897 — — - 8,897
. - 12 - — R Lo
. - — 64659 - 64,659 . 364,659
.. C —  (85608) - (18,606) :
. T = — 131 - o130 1300
. — - = — {1,794) C794)  C (1,794)
.. 46,730,758 $56.634  $535,188 $42,112) $549,710 $ 64,166

See Notes'to Consolidated. Financial Statements. -
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STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(dollars in thousands)

53 Weeks’

52 Weeks

" 52 Weeks

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Ended - Ended Ended
- October 3, * September 28, September 29,
. . 2004 2003 2002
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: ' S Y
Net INCOME «..\vvveienise e e e e ee, e $ 64,659 © S 59,882 $ 51,983
Non-Cash Items Included in Net Income : ‘
Depreciation and Amortization ......................... 77,415 77.237 75,788
Deferred TAXES ..ovvvnieriiiir e iiinee s (4,736) 96 3,246
Loss on Sale of Property ................cooi ‘ 2,357 6,061 3,495
Other, Net ................. BT T 1,997 8,589 9,072
Decrease (Increase) in Acéqunts Receivable .............. (3,681) 1,973 (6,618)
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories ......... PR P . (16,734) 12,242 (12,081)
" Decrease {Increase) in Other Current Assets .............. 69 - 13 (3,550)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable ................. (174) - (12,980} 20,984
Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilites .......... 6,639 4,129 1,454 .
Increase (Decrease) in Certain Other LT Liabilities ..... - - 75918 _ (6,882) @71
Net Cash-Provided by Operating Activities. ............... 135,729 150,360 143,302
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: ‘ L
Capital Expenditures ...............cooees ET T (92,092) (73,581) (79,116)
Net Increase in Temporary Investments .......... P : ©(2,129) (48,823) {9,520)
Purchase of Other Investments ...................... U . (31,416) (22,669) (4,149)
Cash Proceeds from Sale of Property ...... PRI 12,017 - 2,669 17,055
COLL Net ..........cciiinnnn, e e S 910) 2,851) - (1,952)
Other, Net ........oooiveiivinines i i, 3,134 '(3,702) 141
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ................ e (111,396) (148,957) _(71,54])
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (Payments on) Proceeds from Short Term 7
~ Debt BOITOWINES ..vvviverneiil i, 1 . (79) 967 —
Net Repayments of Long-Term Revolver Borrowmgs ...... — — (900)
" Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings ...............0. e . 449 1,164 1,577
Payments on Long-Term Debt ................... e s (31,417) (708) (5,590)
-Dividends Paid ................... S sl (18,606) (16,687) (16,708)
Purchase and Retirement of Common Stock ...l i o= (5,202) —_
Proceeds from Stock Issued and .Other Net.ooovviennnn. 8,677 - 1,863 1,381
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities .................... (40,976) (18,603) (20,240)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ........ (16,643) (17,200} 45,521
Cash and Cash Equwa]ems at Beginning of Year ......... 63,222 80,422 34,901
Cash and Cash Equxvalents at End of Year ......... S $ 46,579 $ 63,222 $ 80,422 .
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES ‘OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
. CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR: , _ .
Interest ...... T SR e e $ 12,727 . $ 12,797 $ 12,616
Income TaXes v.vveireie e ineiaennnes PR - 39,962 29,275 33,401
NON-CASH ACTIVITY: ‘
Assets Acquired under Capital Leases .................. 8,383 2,689 —




RUDDICK CORPCRATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FENANCHAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OIF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTHNG POLICIES

‘ Prznczples of Consolzdauon

4 The accompanymg consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ruddick- Corporation and
. subsidiaries, including its wholly owned operating companies, Harris Teeter, Inc.'and American & Efird, Inc.,
collectively referred to herein as the Company. All material intercompany amounts have been eliminated. To the

“extent that non-affiliated parties held minority equity investments in Jomt ventures of the Company, such
investments are; classified, as minority interest.

- The Company reviews its investments in entities to determine if such entities are deemed to be variable interest
entities (VIE’ s).as defined by FIN 46 and FIN 46-R. The Company will consolidate those VIE’s in which the
Coimpany is the primary beneficiary of the entity. As of the fiscal year ended on October 3, 2004 the Company
concluded that it does- not have any VIE's that required consohdanon

F zscal Year

" The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest to September 30 Fxscal year 2004 mcludes 53 weeks
and ended on October 3, 2004, Fiscal years 2003 and 2002 each mclude 52 weeks, and ended on September 28
2003, and September 29 2002, respectively. . A

Use of Estzmates

The preparation of ﬁnancnal statements in conformity with oeneraily accepted accoummg prmcxples requrres :
managcment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contmgent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the repomng period. Actual amounts could differ from those estrmates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

“For purposes of the statements of consolidated cash flows, the Company c0n51ders all hlghly hqurd cash
investments purchased with a maturity of three months. or less_to be cash equwalents

Temporary Inv_‘eszments ] S ‘ Do

The Company has invested in various municipal and tax-exempt bonds and other similar investrnents in order -
to enhance its feturn on cash balancés. The Company selects specific investments based on certain Criteria, which |
include, but aré not limited to, suitable liquidity and credit quality requrrements ‘The tarrying amount of temporaxy
investments are recorded at their amortlzed costs which approximates thelr farr market values

Inventories . - ' : . - o P

The Company’s inv'entories are valued at the lower of cost or market with the cost of s‘ubstantial]y all domestic
U.S. inventories being determined using the last-in, first-out {LIFO) method. Foreign inventories and limited
categories of domestic inventories are valued on the weighted average and on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost
methods. Under the LIFO valuation method at Harris Teeter, all' retail. store inventories are initially stated at
“estimated cost as calculated by the Retail Inventory Method (RIM). Under RIM the va]uanon of inventories at
cost and the resullmg gross margins are calculated by applying a calculated cost-to-retail ratio to the retail value
of inventories. :

Vendor Rebatés, Credits and Promotional Allowances

Consistent with standard practices in the retail industry, Harris Teeter receives allowances from vendors
through a variety of programs and arrangements. These allowances are generally intended to defray the costs of
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RUDDICK CORPO_RATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

promotion, advertising and selling the vendor’s products. Vendor rebates, credits and other promotional allowances
that relate to Harris Teeter’s buying and merchandising activities,:including lump-sum payments associated with
long-term contracts, are recorded as a component of cost of sales as they are earned, the recognition of which is
determined in accordance with the underlying agreement with the vendor, the authoritative guidance and completion
of the earnirig process. Portions of vendor allowances that are refundable to the vendor, in whole or in part, by
the nature of the provisions of the contract are defefred from recognition until realization is assured.

Harris Teeter recognizes allowances when the purpose for which the vendor funds were intended and
committed to be used has been fulfilled and a cost has been incurred by the retailer. Thus, it is the Company’s policy
to recognize the vendor allowance consistent with the timing of the recognition of the expense that the allowance
js intended to reimburse and to determine the accounting classification consistent with the economic substance of
the underlying transaction. Where the Company provides an identifiable benefit or service to the vendor apart from
the purchase of merchandise, that transaction is recorded separately. For example, co-operative advemsmg
allowances are accounted for as a reduction of advertising expense in the period in which the advertising cost is
incurred. If the advertising allowance exceeds'the cost of advertising, then the excess is recorded against the cost
of sales in-the period in which the related expense is recognized. '

Vendor allowances for price markdowns are credited to the cost of sales during the period in which the related
markdown was taken and charged to the cost of sales. Slotting and stocking allowances received from a vendor
to ensure that its products are carried or to introduce a new product at the Company’s stores are recorded as a
reduction of cost of sales over the period covered by the agreement with the vendor based on the estimated inventory
turns of the merchandise to which the allowance applies. Display allowances are recognized as a reduction of cost
of sales in the period earned in accordance with the vendor agreement. Volume rebates by the vendor in the form
of a reduction of the purchase price of the merchandise reduce the cost of sales when the related merchandise is
sold. Generally, volume rebates under a structured purchase program with allowances awarded based on the level
of purchases are recognized, when realization is assured, as a reduction in the cost of sales in the appropriate monthly
period based on the actual level of purchases in the period relative to the total purchase commitment and adjusted
for the estimated inventory turns of the merchandise.

Property and Depreciation

Property is recorded at cost and is depreciated, using principally the straight-line methad, over the following
useful lives: '

Land improvements ..... P e, 10-40 years
Buildings ... e 1540 years
Machinery and equipment ....... B LT R NI 3-15 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lesser of the estimated useful life or the remaining term of
the lease: Assets under capital leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the estimated useful
life or the lease term. Maintenance and repairs are charged against income when incurred. Expenditures for major
renewals, replacements and betterments are added to property. The cost and the related accumulated depreciation
of assets retired are eliminated from the accounts with gains or losses on disposal being added to or deducted from
income. Property categories include $16,911,000 and $14,249,000 of accumulated costs for construction in progress
at October 3, 2004 and September 28,-2003, respectively. . ‘

Impairment of Long -lived Assets and Closed Store Obligations -

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144 “Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets,” the Company assesses its long-lived assets for'possible impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount to the net non-discounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.
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RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
\IOTES TO: CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

An impairment lossis recognized for any excess of netbook value over the estimated fair value of the asset impaired,
and recorded as an offset to the asset value. The falr value is estlmated based on expected future cash ﬂows or third
party valuations; if available. :

The. value Iof property and equipment aasoc:lated w1th closed stores and facnhttes 1s adJusted to reflect
recoverable values based on the Company’s. prior hxstory of disposing of similar assets and current economic
conditions. Management continually reviews its fair value estimates and records impairment charges for assets held
for sale when management detemunes based on new mformanon which it believes to be reliable, that such charges

are appropriate.

The Company records habllmes for closed stores that are under long-term lease agreements. The liability
represents an estimate of the present value of the remaining non-cancelable lease payments after the anticipated
closing date, net of estimated subtenant income. The closed store liabilities usually are paid over the lease terms
associated with the closed stores, unless settled earlier. Harris Teeter management estimates the subtenant income
and future cash flows based on its historical experience and knowledge of (1) the market in which the store is located,
(2) the results of its previous efforts to dispose of similar assets and (3) the current economic conditions.

i
Investments | : s _

The Compimy or its Harris Teeter subsidiary holds financial investments in certain developments, with a
managing partner or partners, ‘in which Harris Teeter, Inc. either operates or plans to operate a supermarket.
American & Efird has investments in various non-consolidated foreign entities in which they hold a minority interest
and a 50% ownershlp interest in a joint venture in China. These investments, depending on the state of development,
are accounted for either under the equity method of accounting or at cost. In prior years the Company made loans
to and equity investments in a number of emergmg growth companies, primarily through investments in certain
venture capital funds. Real estate and other investments are carried at the lower of cost or market and are periodically
reviewed for potentlal impairment in accordance SFAS No. 144 “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.”

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill and certain other
intangibles with mdeﬁmte lives are no longer amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annually,
or more frequently, if circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Intanglble assets with finite, measucable lives
continue to be amornzed over their respective useful lives until they reach their estimated residual values, and are
reviewed fori 1mpaxrment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impalrment or Dlsposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” | :

Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured for most U.S. workers compensation claims, healthcare claims, and general
liability and autt:)motive liability losses. The Company has purchased insurance coverage in order to establish certain
limits to its-exposure on a per claim basis. The Company determines the estimated reserve required for U.S. worker
compensation claims, genera) liability and automotive liability by first analyzing the costs of claims incurred and
then-adjusts such estimates by development factors from published insurance industry sources. The estimated total
expected costs of claims incurred is discounted to present values using an appropriate discount factor.

The Company records an accrual for the estimated amount of self-insured healthcare claims incurred by all
participants but not yet reported. These reserves are recorded based on historical experience and industry trends,
which are conti:nually monitored, and accruals are adjusted when warranted by changes.in facts and circumstances.

‘
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RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

Derivatives

The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivative instruments
(including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) entered into in the normal course of business
were not significant during any.-of the periods: presented

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from retail operations at the point of sale to its customers and from
manufacturing operations at the point of shipment to its customers, based on shipping terms.

Cost of Sales

The major components of cost of sales in the textile manufacturing and distribution segment are (a) the
materials and supplies, labor costs and overhead costs associated with the manufactured products sold, (b) the
purchased cost of products bought for resale, (c) any charges, or credits, associated with LIFO reserves and reserves
for obsolete and slow moving inventories, (d) the freight costs incurred to deliver the products to the customer from
the point of sale, and (e) all other costs requlred to be classified as cost of sales under .authoritative accounting
pronouncements.

The major components of cost of sales in the retail supermarket segment are (a) the cost of products sold
determined under the Retail Inventory Method (see “Inventories” above) reduced by purchase cash discounts and
vendor purchase allowances and rebates, (b) the cost of vartous sales promotional activities reduced by vendor
promotional allowances, and reduced by cooperative advertising allowances to the extent an advertising allowance
exceeds the cost of the advertising, (c) the cost of product waste, including, but not limited to, physical waste and
theft, (d) the cost of product distribution, including warehousing, freight and delivery, and (e) any charges, or credits,
associated with LIFO reserves and reserves for obsolete and siow moving inventories. Additionally, the costs of
production of product sold by the dairy operation to outsiders are included in cost of sales in the period in which
the sales are recognized in revenues. ' '

Selling, General and Admmzstrazwe Expenses

The major componems of selling, general and admlmstratwe expenses in the textile manufacturing and
distribution segment are (a) the costs of maintaining a sales force including compensation, incentive compensation,
benefits, office and occupancy costs, travel and all other costs of the sales force, (b) shipping and handling costs,
excluding freight, (c) the costs of advertising, customer service, sales support and other similar costs, and (d) the
costs of maintaining general and administrative support functions, including, but not limited to, personnel
administration, finance énd_ accounting, ‘treasury, credit, information systems, training, marketing, and
environmental, health and safety, to the extent that such. overhead activities are not allocable to indirect
manufacturing costs m cost of sales under generally accepted accounting prmcxp]es

The major components of selling, general and administrative expenses in the retail supermarket segment are

(a) the costs associated with store operations, including store labor and training, fringe benefits and inceative
compensation, supplies and maintenance, regional and district management and store support, store rent and other
occupancy costs, property management and similar costs, (b) édvertising costs, (c) shipping and handling costs,
excluding freight, warehousing and distribution costs, (d) merchandising and purchasing department staffing,
supplies and associated costs, (e) customer service and support, and (f) the costs of maintaining general and
administrative support functions, including, but not limited to, personnel administration, finance and accounting,
treasury, credit, information systemns, marketing, and environmental, health and safety, based on appropnate
classification under generally accepted accounting principles.

The major components of selling, general and administrative expenses in the corporate segment are (a) the
costs associated with a portion of compensation and benefits of holding company employees, and (b) certam other
costs that are not related to the operating companies.
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RUDDICK CORPORATION.AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

Advertising

Costs incurred to produce media advertising are expensed in the period in which the advertising first takes
place. All other advertising costs are also expensed when incurred. Cooperative advertising.income from vendors
is recorded in the period in which the related expense is incurred and amounted to $1,440,000, $1,634,000 and
$1,262,000 in ﬁgcal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Net ad»emsmg expenses of $22,731,000, $22,894,000, and
$22,715,000 wete included in the Company’s results of operations for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Foreign Currency

Assets and|liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the current exchange rates as of the end of the
accounting period, and revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange rates. The resulting translation
adjustments are;accumulated as a component of other comprehensive income in equity.

]ncome Taxes

Ruddick and its sub31d1ar1es filea consohdated federal income tax return. Tax credlts are recorded as a reduction
of income taxes|in the years in which they are generated. Deferred.tax liabilities or assets at the end of each period
are determined Using the tax rate expected to be in effect when taxes are actually paid or recovered. Accordingly,
income tax cxpénse will increase or decrease in the same period in which a change in tax rates is enacted.

Earmngs .Per Share ( “EPS”)

Basic EPS is based on the wexghted average outstanding common shares. Diluted EPS is based onthe welghted
average outstandmg common shares: adjusted by the dilutive effect of stock options. :

Stock Options .

" Aspermittéd by SFAS No. 123, “Accountmg for Stock-Based Compensatlon * and SFAS No. 148, “Accountmg
for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” the Company continues to record compensation cost
for stock optlon,p]ans in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. Accordingly, compensation
cost of stock optlons is measured as the excess, if any, of the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of
the grant over the option exercise price and is charged to operations over the vcstmg period. Income tax benefits
attributable to stock options, exercxsed are credited to capltal stock.

Other Compreh‘ensive Income

Other comprehenswe income refers to revenues, cxpcnses gains and losses that are not included in net earnings
but rather are recorded directly in stockholders® equity. The accumulated components of other comprehensive
income, net of taxes at October 3, 2004 were additional minimum pension liability of $42, 099 000 and forelgn

_currency Iranslatxon adjustments of $13,000. '

Reclassiﬁcatiorz‘s

To conform with classifications adopted in the current year, the ﬁnanc1al statements for the prior year reﬂect
certain reclassrﬁcauons which have no effect on net mcome

New Accounting Standards

The Company has adopted various new accounting standards that became effective durmg fiscal 2004. The
adopnon of the new standards did not have a material- impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial
position or casb flows in the reponed periods.

In January 2003 and December 2003, the FASB 1ssued FIN 46 and FIN 46-R, respectwely FIN 46 and FIN
46-R address the consolidation of entities whose equity holders have either (a) not provided sufficient equity at
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RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCI‘AL STATEMENTS — (continued)

. risk to allow the-entity to finance its own activities or (b) do not possess certain characteristics of a controlling

" financial interest. FIN 46 and FIN 46-R require the consolidation of these entities, known as variable interest entities
(“VIE's™) by the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary is the entity, if any, that is subject to
a majority of the risk of 10ss from the VIE’s activities, entitled to receive a majority. of the VIE’s residual returns,
or both. FIN 46 and FIN 46-R apply immediately to variable interésts in VIE’s created or obtained after January 31, .
2003. For variable interest in a VIE created before February 1; 2003, FIN 46 and FIN 46- R apply to VIE’s no
]ater than the end of the first reporting period ending after March 15, 2004, Based on management’s review of
the Company s vanous investments, management has concluded that the Company does not have any VIE's that
require consohdanon

In November 2003 the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) confirmed as a consensus EITF Issue No. 03-10,
“Application of EITF Issue No. 02-16 by Resellers to Sales Incentives Offered to Consumers by Manufacturers”
(“EITF 03-10"): EITF 03-10 addresses the accounting for manufactuser sales incentives offered din ectly to
_ consumers, including manufacturer coupons. The Company’s accounting policies related to vendor coupons and
reimbursements are in accordance with the requirements of EITF 03-10. The adoption of this pronouncement had
no matenal 1mpact on the Company s-results of operations, financial position or cash flows in the reported periods.

In December 2003 the FASB rssued SFAS No. 132, (revised 2003), “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensrons
and Other Postretirement Benefits.” This statement requires additional disclosures regarding employers’ pension’
plans. and other postretirement benefit plans in annual and interim reports. Additional disclosures are required for
assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic benefit.costs (refer to Note captioned “Employee Benefit Plans™).
“The adoption of this Statement required disclosures only and did not 1mpact the Company's results of operations,
ﬁnancral position or cash flows. \

' INV EN TORIES

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost or market with the cost of substantially all domestic U S. mventones
bemg determined using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. The LIFO cost of such inventories was $15,706,000
“and $18,012,000 less than the first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost method at October 3, 2004 and September 28, 2003,
respectively. Foreign inventories and limited categories of domestic inventories, totaling $61,782,000 for fiscal 2004
and $54,203,000 for fiscal 2003, are valued on the weighted average and on the FIFO cost methods. At October 3,
2004 (September 28, 2003) the value of finished goods inventory was $206,521,000 (8193,779,000), work in
progress was $5,211, 000 ($4 ,002 000) and raw materials and supplies were $19,124, OOO ($16,341,000).

GOODWILL

Goodwrll is recorded by the Company s Aimerican & Efird textile subsrdrary In accordance wrth SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company has reviewed goodwill for possible impairment, and as a
result, there was no impairment charge required in fiscal years 2004 and 2003. Amortization of goodwill during
fiscal 2002 rmpacted operating proﬁt (net income, EPS) by $924,500 ($57O 000, $0.01 per diluted share).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The’ carrymg amount of intangible assets at October 3, 2004 and September 28 2003 was as follows
(in thousands)

. : 2004 2003
Non-‘Amortizi‘ng Intangibles — Pension related intangible assets ........... - $3,318 $3,407

. Amortizing Intangibles — Customer lists, trademarks and other contracts .. 2916 1,108
’ ' s $6,234 $4.515
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RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continiied)

Amortizing intangibles are recorded by the Company’s American & Efird textile ‘subsidiary;. and the
non- amorﬁzing intangibles are recorded by the respective corporate and.subsidiary companies..In accordance with
SEAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company has-reviewed non-amortizing rmangrble
assets-for-possible 1mpa1rmem ‘and as a result, there have been no impairment charoes requrrcd ,

COMPANY OWNED LIFE INSURANCE (COLI)

" The Company thas purchased life insarance pohcres to fund its obhganons under certam beneﬁt plans for
officers, key emplovees and directors. The cash surrender value of these policies is recorded net of policy loans
and included with other long-term assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The cash’ value of the
Company’s life insurance policies were 844,115,000 at Qctober 3, 2004 and $44,793,000 at- September 28 2003,
and no pohcy loans were outstanding at: either date. . SRR

IMPAIRMENT AND EXIT COSTS .

Durmg the first half of fiscal 2004 the Company recorded pre-tax charges of $384, 000 ($238 0()0 after tax
benefits) related. to severance costs paid in connéction with the cIosrng of A&E s thread yarn spmmng ‘plant in
Maiden, North Carolina. .

During fiscal 2003 the- Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $580 000 ($360 000 after income tax beneﬁts)

. related to the anndunced closing of A&E’s thread yarn spinning plant in Maiden; North Carolina, whiéh occurred

in the ﬁrst quaner of fiscal 2004 The charge related to the 1mpa1rment of the manufactunng plant bemg closed

Durmg ﬁsca] 2002 the Company s textile subsrdlary, American & Efird (A&E) recorded a pre- tax charge of
$7,823,000 (34, 825,000 after income taxes) for exit arid impairment costs related to the consolidation of industrial
thread dyeing and finishing operations into its plant in Mt. Hoily, North Carolina and the closing of its dyemg and
finishing operations in Gastonia, North Carolina. The pre-tax charge was composed of $7,443,000 for the
rmparrment of the building; machinery, and equrpmem and $380,000 for the costs of severance beneﬁts {which were
settled by the end of fiscal 2003) . . .

: LEASES

N The Company leases certain equrpment under agreements expmng daring’ ‘the next 7 years. Hams Teeter leases
most of its stores under leases that expire during the next 28 years. It is expected that such leases will be renewed
. by exercising options or replaced by leases of other properties. Most store l¢ases provrde for additional rentals based
on sales; and certain store facilities are sublet under leases expiring during the next 15 years. Certain leases also
contain rent escalation clauses (step rents) that require additional rental amounts in the later years of the term: 'Rent
expense for leases with step rents is recognized on a straxght -line basis over the minimum lease term. Rent expense
for the ﬁscal years was, as follows (in thousands):

: : 2004 2003 2002
© Minimum;, et of sublease inCOMe ©... ... o...rv..roemree $64,369 °  $65,333  $67,932
Contingent ............ccoeeiiiiiiiiiie OPTRR 1,204 1215 1,329

T evnereiieeeereeeininen UTETRSR $65,573  $66,548 . $69,261 .
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Future minimum lease commitments (excluding leases assigned — see below) and total minimum sublease

rental income to be received under non-cancelable subleases at October 3, 2004-were as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital
. . Leases - Subleases Leases
2005 ......... ..................................... $ 64887 $(1,895) § 1,551
2008 e e i U 65,842 (1,798} 1,405
2007 ...l B SO e 64,295 (1,725) 1,419
2008 . e e - 63,351 (1,430) 1,433
2009 ...l S O N e 62,223 (901) 1,448
Later Years ...oovuinni et e 596,417 (5,792) 25,426 -
Total minimum lease obligations (receivables) ............... C$917.015  $(13,541) 32,682
Amount representing interest ...... (21,620)
Present value of net minimum obhgatmn (included with Iong -term debt) T Ve $ 11,062

In connéction with the closing of certain store locations, Harris Teeter has assigned leases to other merchants
with recourse. These leases expire over the next 17 years and the future minimum lease payments totaling
$93,535,000 over this period have been assumed by these merchants.

LONG-TERM DEBT ,
Long-term debt at October 3, 2004 and September 28, 2003 was as follows (in thousands):

, 2004 2003

6.48% Senior Note due $7,143 annually March 2005 through 2011 ....... $ 50,000 $ 50,000 .
7.72% Senior Note due April, 2017 ..., 50,000 50,000
7.55% Senior Note due July, 2017 ................. N . 50,000 50,000
~ Lease financing obligation, variable interest rate, paid off March, 2004 — 30,364
"Capital lease 0bHGALONS ... ...euivniti v . 11,062 3,044
Other obligations ............ [ PRI 5,225 5,687
Total ....... TR PR .. 166,287 189,095
Less current portion ............. e e e, 8,648 31,596
Total long-term debt .............. e + $157,639  $157,499

Long-term debt maturities {including capital lease obligations) in each of the next five fiscal years are as
follows: 2005 — $8,648,000; 2006 — $8,393,000; 2007 — $8,124,000; 2008 — $7,936,000; 2009 — $7,752.000.

In the second quarter of 2004, the Company exercised its option to purchase certain real property of primarily
three Harris Teeter stores, which .were maintained under & leasing arrangement, for $30.4 million. The lease
.arrangement, with an original expiration date of September 13, 2004, was between the Company and a non-related
national bank as owner-trustee and two additional banks as lenders. The total financing costs for these properties
was $214,000 in fiscal 2004 and $547,000 in fiscal 2003.

In.2002, the Company and three banks entered into a new revolving credit facility for an aggregate amount
of up to $100 million to replace an existing credit facility. Borrowings and repayments under this revolving credit
facility are of the same nature as short-term credit lines. During the period from inception to October 3, 2004, there
have been no borrowings under the credit facility. The facility has a maturity of three years, plus two annual
extensions of one year each if then granted by the banks. As of October 3, 2004, the three banks granted the two
annual extensions of the credit facility and thereby established a maturity date of May 14, 2007. The amount which
may be borrowed from time to time and the interest rate on any outstanding borrowings are each dependent on
a leverage factor. The leverage factor is based on a ratio of rent-adjusted consolidated funded debt divided by
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and operating rents as those terms are defined in the credit
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agreement. The:more significant of the financial covenants which the Company must meet during the tertn of the
credit agreement include a maximum leverage ratio, minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and tangible net worth
requirements. As of October 3, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants. The Company
is charged a variable commitment fee based on the unused balance net of trade and standby letters of credit which
were $21,181,000 at October 3, 2004. The commitment fee rate based on the net unused balance was 0.225%, 0.25%
and 0.25% for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectwely ,

In fiscal 2002, the amount outstandmg on the previous credit facility was 5900 000 from the beommng of the
year through the repayment date in May, 2002. The daily weighted average interest rate (a variable rate related
to the current published CD rate) was 2.4% through the repayment date in fiscal 2002, Acomnutment fee of 0 15%

of the unused line was charged dunng 2002.

As indicated above, various loan agreements provide, amono other thmos for the mamtenance of minimum
levels of consolidated tangible net worth, as -defined in- the respective agreements. The required minimum
consolidated net worth, as defined under the most restrictive provision, was approximately $460.6 million as of
October 3, 2004 Consolidated tangible net worth, as defined, exceeded this required minimum by approximately
$78:0 million as of October 3, 2004. Future required mmxmum consohdated tangxble net worth is subject to annual
increases of 40% of consolidated net income for such year: :

Total interest expense on debt and capnal lease obhganons was $12 938 OOO 512 373 OOO and $12, 135 000
in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respecuvely .
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS L .

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally
of cash‘equivalénts and receivables. The Company limits the amount of credit exposure to each individual financial
institution and places its temporary cash into investments of high credit quahty Concentrations of credit risk with
respect to recewablcs are limited due to their dlsperswn across various’ compames and geographies.

The carrym g amounts for certain of the Company S ﬁnanc1al 1nstruments including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and notes recejvable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of their
short maturities. The fair value of variable interest debt is equal to its carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of the Companv s significant fixed interest debt obligations ($150 million of Senior Notes due at various dates
through 2017) outstanding as of October 3, 2004 was $170,663,000 as compared to its carrying amount of
$150,000,000. This estimated fair value is computed based on borrowing rates currently available to the Company
for loans with 51m11ar terms and maturities. .

CAPITAL STOCK

" The capital stock of the Company authorized“at Qctober 3, 2004 was 75,000,000 shares of no- par value
Common Stock, 4,000,000 shares of Preference Stock (non:cuimulative votmg '$0.56 convertible Preference Stock,
$10 liquidation value), and 1,000,000 shares of Additional Preferred Stock. No shares of Preference Stock or
Additional Preferred Stock were issued or outstanding at October 3, 2004.

One preferred share purchase right is attached to each outstandmg share of common stock, which r1°hts exp1re
on November 16, 2010. Each right entitles the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of a-new Series
AJunior Participating Additional Preferred Stock for $60. The rights will become exercisable only under certain
circumstances related to a person or group acquiring or offering to acquire a substantial portion of the Company’s
commion stock. If certain additional events then occur; each right would entitle the rightholder to acquire common
stock-of the Company, or in some cases of an acquiring eritity, having a value equal to twice the exercise price.
Under certain circumstances the Board of Directors may extinguish the rights by exchanging one share of common
stock or an equivalent security for each qualifying right or may redeem each right at a price of $0.01. There are
600,000 shares of Series A Junior Part1c1patm° Addmonal Preferred Stock resened for issuance upon exercise of
the rights. ' . ' “ .
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The Board of Directors adopted a stock buyback program in 1996, authorizing, at management’s discretion,
the Company to purchase and retire up to 10% of the then outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock
for the purpose of preventing dilution as a-result of the operation of the Company’s stock option plans. The stock
purchases are effected from time to time and it is not expected that the Company will purchase a material number
of shares in any quarterly or annual fiscal period. During fiscal 2003, the Company purchased and retired 377,800
shares at a total cost of $5,202,000, or an average price of $13.77 per share. There were no stock purchases during
fiscal 2004 or 2002.

STOCK OPTIONS

. At October 3, 2004, the Company. has 1988, 1993, 1995, 1997, 2000 and 2002 stock option plans, which were
approved by the Company’s shareholders and authorized options for 6,300, 000 shares of common stock. Under
the plans, the Company may grant to officers and management personnel incentive stock options which generally
become exercisable in installments of 20% per year at each of the first through fifth anniversaries from grant date
and which expire seven years from grant date. Under certain stock optlon plans, the Company may grant incentive
stock options to employees or nonquahﬁed stock options to employees and outside directors. Historically and
pursuant to the terms of certain plans, the Company grants a single, one-time nonqualified stock option of 10,000
shares, génerally vested immediately, to each of its outside directors at the time of their initial election to the Board.
Under each of the stock option plans, the exercise price of each stock option shall be no less than the market price
of the Company’s stock on the date of grant, and an option’s maximum term is ten years. At the discretion of the
Company, under certain plans a stock appreciation right may be granted and exercised in lieu of the exercise of
the related option (which is then forfeited). The plans also allow the Company to grant stock awards such as
performance shares and restricted stock. Under the plans, as of October 3, 2004 the Company may grant additional
options or stock awards for the purchase of 1,995,000 shares.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans as of October 3, 2004, September 28, 2003 and
September 29, 2002, changes during the years ending on those dates and related wenghted average exercise price
is presented below (shares i in thousands) .

2004 2003 2002
. . ‘ _ Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year ..... 2,279  $16.07 2,089 $16.15 1,797 $15.88
Granted ...t 622 16.89 464 14.44 575 15.84
Exercised .......ooiiiiiiiiiiiie (530) 16.33 (163) 11.98 (161) 11.17
Forfeited .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiienns {42) 16.18 111y 1675 - (122) 17.43
Outstanding at end of year ............ 2,329  $16.23 2279  $16.07 2,089 $16.15
Options exercisable at year end ....... 972  $17.08 1,138 $17.21 933  $16.77

The following table summarizes options outstanding and options exercisable as of October 3, 2004, and
the related weighted average remaining contractual life (years) and weighted average exercise price (shares
in thousands):

Options Outstanding ' Options Exercisable
. Shares Remaining Shares
Option Price per Share Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$11.50 to $15.58 ...l 651 4.6 $13.43 216 $13.05
1558t0 1688 ... ..., 1,038 5.6 16.43 - 169 15.93
168810 20.28 ......occveevreinnnnl . 640 1.8 18.76 587 18.89
$11.50 10 $20.28 .....ooiiiiiiiii 2,329 4.3 16.23 972 17.08
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The weighted 'average fair value at date of grant for options granted-during fiscal 2004; 2003 and 2002 was

$4.00, $3.50 and $4.09 per option, respectively. The fair. value of options at date of grant was est1mated using the
Black Scholes model with the following wexghted average assumptlons -

S 2004 2003 2002
Expected life (years) ........ P O TN e e 5.4 5.1 B |
Risk-free INTEIESt TALE ... vvirreeetre e etierieerennnenns e 3.25% 3.14% 3.71%
Volatility .........oooviiiiiin, e O, 27.63% 29.61% 30.33%
Dividend vield ..o 2.33%. 2.30% 2.30%

The Company has adopted tlie disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” ‘and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure.”
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for the stock options granted in fiscal 2004, 2003 or 2002.
Had compensation cost been determined based on the fair value at the grant date consistent with the provisions
of these statements, the Company s pro forma net income and basic and diluted net income per share would have
been as follows (in thousands, except per share data): .

. . o 2004 2003 2002
Net Income — as reported ............... Tieeriiiiea, e $64,659  $59,882  $51,983 -
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation ,
expense determined under the fair value based , S
'  method, net of taxes ................. R e _(1136) 991y (1,031
. Net Income — proforma ..........:...... S U - $63,523 . $58,891  $50,952
Net Income Per Share — : _
Basic — as reported ............... U e 8139 -8 129 0§ 1112
, — pro forma .............. e veee o 137 127 110 -
Diluted —asreported ........oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, - 1.38 . 1.29 1.12
— pro forma ............ s ' 1.36 1.27 1.09

The pro forma effect on net income for prior years is not necessarily representative of the pro forma effect
on net income in future years:

INCOME TAXES

The provi_éion for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
CURRENT _ ‘ _
Federal' ....:....... S e Soan). 831,928 0 $22.845  $21.832
State and Other .. .......oooe it il -9.313 9,269 4,531
A 41,241 32,114 26,363
DEFERRED . . :
Federal ... i i e PSS (2,609) 1,357 2,514
State and other ............ creeeliien, e (2,127 (1,261) 732

‘ v ‘ _(4,736) . 96 3,246
Provision for income taxes .................................. ... $36,505  $32,210  $29,609
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Income from forei gn operations before income taxes in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $4,724,000, $4,207,000

and $1,010,000, respectively. Income taxes provided for income from foreign operations in fiscal 2004, 2003 and
2002 was $1,576, OOO $1, 546 000 and $699,000, respectively, including the minority interest in such taxes.

Income tax expense dtffered from an amount computed by applymg the statutory tax rates to pre-tax income
as fo]lows (in thousands)

2008 2003 . 2002

Income tax on pre-tax. income at the statutory o . o
federal rate of 35% ©........... P 335,407 .. $32,232  $28,557

Increase (decrease) attributable to: . :
State and other income taxes, net of federal

INCOME 1aX BENERT .. .v\. ieeeerereseeeeeeeeeieeiens 4,663 3512 3486
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) .............. s (1,404) (1,065) (843)
“COLI...oiiiiiines e e e . (1,388) - .(974) (943)
Other items, met ..o e {(773) (1,495) . (648)
Income tax expense e ............... e s $36 505 . - $32, 210 $29,609

The tax effects of temporary differences givmg rise to the Company’s consohdated deferred tax assets and
liabilities at October 3, 2004 and September 28, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003

Deferred Tax Assets (no valuation allowance considered necessarv) _ ,
Employee benefits ............ooovireeisrieinitien it iireieen e $20,868. $ 20,501
Reserves not currently deductible ................. PR eieeeen . 13,111 14,376
Vendor allowances ........ e e e e o 5,795 6,322
Rent obligations ............i.......e. e b S . 12,198 9,502
Other ..oovveieen.s. e, e S 3,456 . 2,614

" Total deferred tax SSels .......oovoiienens [T "$55428  $53,315

Deferred Tax Liabllmes ' . L ‘

Property, plant and equipment e L 8(57,540)  $(57,953)
Undistributed earmngs of foreign subszdiaries ..... EE T P TI. (3,915)  (4,859)
COther L. IR OO e _(583) T (1.534)

Total, deferred tax liabilities ..... e e, T $(67,208) $(70,346)

Undistnbuted earnings of the Company s foreign subsrdiaries amount to approx1mate1y $23.2 million at
October 3, 2004. Of those earnings, approximately $12.8 million are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and
accordingly, no provision for U.S. federal and state income taxes is required to be provided thereon. If those earnings
were distributed, the Company would be subject to U.S. federal taxes and withholding taxes-payable to the various
foreign countries of approximately $4.8 million (less any applicable U.S. foreign tax credits).

lNDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates primarily in two businesses: mdusmal thread (textile primanly) — American & Efird,
and retail grocery (mcludmg the real estate and store development activities of the Company) — Harris Teeter.
American & Efird primarily manufactures sewing thread for the apparel and other markets. Harris Teeter operates
a regional chain of supermarkets The Company evaluates performance of its two businesses utilizing various
measures which are based on operattng proﬁt
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Summanzed financial mform_atlon for ﬁscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as-follows (1n millions):

Industria) Retail ... T

Thread Grocery . Corporate(1) - Consolidated
2004 B
Net Sales :........ e, $296.2  $2,5724 - '$2,868.6
Gross Profit ........o'eveiiineeiiiiieiianenens - 77.6 7559 _ 833.5
Operating Profit (LOSS) .............iv....iivee, 131 1044 $° (5L - 1124
Assets Employed at Year End ..... e e 265.1 6975 - 1494 - 1,1120
Depreciation and AMOrtization .................. 17.5 58.5 14 - 774
- Capital Expenditures ........................ 8.1~ 839 01T e 921
‘Net-Sales «..oovvnnnnnnn SRR $293.1  $2,4316 - . . $2,7247
Gross Profit- ............. e cdiee..o 13907032 o e 777
Operating Profit (LOSS) ...v.....vvvverrerseese, 13.6 936 % (5.1 . 1021
Assels Employed at Year End ......... e, 259.1 660.1 ~  148.0- 1,067.2
Depreciation and Amortization :............... o 179 - 578 1.5 g2
Capital EXPenditures .....oco.oevveeriennenaine, - 92 . 1644 0T 736
Net Sales ......ooocoieeniiininiloniennn, (S29450 823497 - 52,6442
Gross Profit ..:....uuoeuiiieceiees, e TI1 - 6777 ST 7548
Operating Profit (Loss) ............ PO e 125 | 88:8 $ (’/'5) - 938
Assets Employed'at Year End ................... 279.4 684.4 751 1,038‘.9
Depreciation and Amortization ........... e - 194 - 550 14 75.8
Capital Ex?penditures . SOUTUP 7.8 - 66.6 ' 4.7 ‘ - 791

(1) Corporate : Operanng Profit (Loss) mcludes a portion of compensation and beneﬁts of holdmg company
employees and certain other costs that are not related to the operatlng compames Operatmg profit of the
, operating ¢ompanies ‘include all direct expenses and the common expenses incurred by the holding company
‘on behalf of its operating subsidiaries. Corporate Assets Employed include property, ‘equipment, cash and
1nvestment assets, and net cash surrender value of Company -owned hfe 1nsurance S .

) Geographlc mformanon for the Company’s fiscal years is based on the operatmg locanons where the xtems
were produced ior dzsmbuted as fonows (in thousands)

2004 2003 2002 ...

Net Revenues — Domestic Umted States 1.0........ e L0 82,711,164 - $2,572,987 $2-,506,805 ‘
Net Rcvenues,—- Foreign .......: P - 157,433 151,752 - '137,393.

. - $2,868,597 $2,724,739 $2,644,198
Net Long-Lived Assets — Domestic Umted States e - 3 519,862 $ 505,102 § 511,562 o
Net Long—leed Assets — Foreign ....................... 31,252 ° 32,924° - 30836

$ 551,114 S 538,026 - § 542,398
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all domestic full-time employees of the Company and its subsidiaries pzirticipate in non-
contributory defined benefit pension plans. Employees in foreign subsidiaries participate to varying degrees in local
pension plans, which, in the aggregate, are not significant. The Company also has an unfunded, non-qualified
supplemental executive retirement plan for certain officers. Employee retirement benefits under the various plans
are a function of both the years of service and compensation for a specified period of time before retirement. The
Company’s current funding policy for its qualified pension plans is to contribute annually the amount required by
regulatory authorities to meet minimum funding requirements and an amount to increase the funding ratios over
future years to a level determined by its actuaries to be effective in reducing the volatility of contributions.

The Company uses September 30lh as the measurement date for its Company-sponsored defined benefit
pensmn plans. : -

The following table sets forth the change i in benefit obligation and plan assets as well as the defined benefit
plans’ funded status and amounts recognized in the Company’s consolidated ‘balance sheets at October 3, 2004 and
September 28, 2003 for the pension plan and the supplemental retirement plan (in thousands):

Pension Plan Suppiemental Plan
. 2004 2003 2004 2003
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at the beginning of year ... $220,078 $189,649° $23402 $ 19,747
TSETVICE COSE Luvvveanrtoeeiiieee e liaeennn 10,947 8,982 481 552
INterest COSt ,vvvvvenenniienieeniiiininns s 13,260 12,188 1,329 1,327
Plan change .................... e — — 258 —
Actuarial 1085 .. .vveviiii i 14,490 17,754 1,996 2,921
Benefits paid .......cooiiiiiie {8,104y _ (8,495 (1,261) (1,145)
Pension benefit obligation at end of year ... 250,671 220,078 26,205 23,402
Change in plan assets: . ,
Fair value of assets at the beginning of year .. - 148,949 120,631 — —
Actual return on plan assets .................. 12,838 15,857 — —
Employer contribution ... 22,200 22,000 1,261 1,145
Benefits paid ... (8,104) (8,495) (1,261) (1,145)
Non-investment BXpenses ..................... {1,325) (1,044) — —_
Fair value of assets at end of year .......... 174,558 148,949 — —
Funded status ..... e U (76,113)  (71,129)  (26,205)  (23,402)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss ............... /102,780 93631 8.421 6,762
Unrecognized prior service cost ............... 1,169 1,384 2,149 - 2,023
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost ................. $ 27,836 % 23,886  $(15,635) $(14,617)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated »
Balance Sheets consist of:
Accrued benefit liability ............. ..l $(40,924) $(42,170) $(19,104) $(18,571)
Intangible pension asset ................oeeunns - 1,169 " 1,384 2,149 2,023
Accumulated other comprehensive income ... 67,591 64,672 1,320 1,931
Net amount recognized ...............ovves $ 27836 $ 2388  $(15,635) $(14,617)
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The Company’s pension plans had accumulated benefit obligations in excess of the fair value of plan assets.
Selected information concerning these plans is a follows (in thousands):

Pension Plan Supplemental Plan
: o 2004 2003 2004 2003 °
Projected benefit obhgatton ceeddl 8250671 3220078 $26,205 23,402
Accumulated benefit obligation G 215,482 191,119 - 19,105 18,571
Fatrvalueofp]anassets.......................I.. 174,558 . 148,949 — —_

A minimum pension liability adjustment is required when the accumulated benefit obligation exceeds the fair
value of plan assets and accrued pension liabilitiés. This adjustment also requires the elimination of any previously
recorded pension assets. The minimum liability adjustment, less allowable intangible assets, net of tax benefit, is
reporied as a compenent of other comprehensxve income and included in the Statements of Consolidated
Stockholders eq.uty and Comprehenswe Income

Net periodic pension expense for defified benefit plans for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 mcluded the following
components (m thousands):

Pension Plan

2004 2003 2002
Service COSt ......iuuerenn PP ... $10947 § 8982 S 6,787
TS F o ST T U 13,260 12,188 11,323
Expected return on plan assets .............. PO (13,229) (11,976) (10,831)
Amortization of prior service cost .......... R L 215 168 243
Recognized net actuarial loss ............... e 7,056 4,203 1,665
Net periodic pension expense .......... e . e $18,249 $13565 $ 9,187

' . . - Supplemental Plan

2004 2003 2002 -
Service cOSt ............... e e . ..$ 481 § 552. § 367
TALETESE COST v vvvvnveerneneenenaenannnns RO 1,329 . 1,327 1,378
Amortization of prior service cost ..., 133 - 131 134
‘Recogmzed net actuarial loss .......... e 337 202 - 557
Net periodic penSton expense .......... I $.2,280 $ 2212 $ 2,436

Net penodlc pensmn expense for defined benefit plans is determmed using assumptions as of the beginning
of each year. The pro;ected benefit obligation and related funded status are determined usmg assumpttons as of
the end of each year. The following table summa.nzes the assumptions utilized:

2004 2003 . 2002

Weighted Average Discoum'Rz’ne (both Plans) .......... 5.75% 6.00% 6.50%
Rate of Increase in Future Payroll Costs: R ‘ ’
Pension PIan. .........oviereriiiiieiiiiiann 35%-4.0% 3.5%4.0% 3.5%-4.0%
Supplemental Plan ..........oovviiiiiii i 6.0% C60% . 6.0%
Assumed Long-Term Rate of Return on Assets _ _ '
(Pension Plan only) ... 825% ~  825% 8 25%

Discountirate’s are based on the expected timing and amounts of the expected employer paid beneﬁts Expected
long-term return on plan assets is estimated by asset class and is generally based on historical returns, volatilities
and risk premiums. Based upon the plan’s asset allocation, composite return percentiles are developed upon which
the plan’s expected long-term is based.




RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

The supplemental plan is unfunded, with benefit payments being' made from the Company’s general assets,
Assets of the pension plan are invested in directed trusts. Assets in the directed trusts as of the fiscal year end were

invested as follows:

Asset Class .

Fixed INCOME . ... ...cooiii i i U ...
Large cap domestic eqQUILIES .. ......\uviieruuetrereiiiiieeie e iinnaiann,
Small cap domestic eqQUItIES .........oviiiiiiiei i e
International equUities ............oiiiiiiiiii i e PR
Tactical asset allocation fund ...........ooiviiiiiiiiiiiii i
Guaranteed investment CONITACTS .. .vvreiivnvenerienirnenrenernansnn e
Cash equivalents ....... ...t e

2004
38.6%
334
11.2
5.7
8.7
0.8
16

100%

2003

46.0%
35.0
11.2
54
0.9
15

0o

Investments in the pension trust are overseen by the Retirement Plan Committee which is made up of officers
of the company and directors. The plan assets are split into two segments: the Strategic Allocation segment over
which the Committee will retain responsibility for directing and monitoring asset allocation, and the Tactical
Allocation segment which will be directed by an appropriate advisor selected by the Committee. The Tactical

Allocation assets are targeted at approximately 8% of total plan assets.

The Corﬁpé'ny has developed an Investment Policy Statement based on the need to satisfy the long-term
liabilities of the Company’s pension plan. The Company seeks to maximize return with reasonable and prudent
levels of risk. Risk management is accomplished through diversification across asset classes, multiple investrnent
manager portfolios and both general and portfolio-specific investment guidelines. Asset guidelines for the Strategic

Allocation segment (or approximately 92% of the plan assets) are as follows: '

- Asset Class : Exposure
Investment grade fixed income and cash equivalents ............. 40.0%
Domestic BQUILIES: .. ... iiiii il - 35.0

Large capvalue................oooueen. e 5.0
Large cap growth ..ot 3.0
B0 g e o Il ) - . 6.0
Small cap value.......oooviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinien e © 00
Small cap growth ............. e s 0.0
International equities:........................... TP ' 0.0
International growth.............ooiiiiiciien i 0.0
International value ...ttt 0.0

Minimum'

Maximum

Target Exposure

50.0% 60.0%
45.0 55.00
15.0 250
8.0 18.0
12.0 18.0
5.0 10.0
5.0 10.0
5.0 10.0
2.5 5.0
25 5.0

Managers are expected to generate a total return consistent with their philosophy, offer protection in down
markets and achieve a rate of return which ranks in the top 40% of a universe of similarly managed portfolios and

outperforms a target index, net of expenses, over rolling three year periods.

The Investment Policy Statement contains the following guidelines:

- — Categorical restrictions such as limiting the average weighted duration of fixed income investments,
limiting the aggregate amount of American Depository Receipts (ADRs), no direct foreign currency
speculation, limited foreign exchange contracts, and limiting the use of derivatives;

— Portfolio restrictions that address such things as investment restrictions, proxy voting, and brokerage

arrangements; and

— Asset class restrictions that address such things as single security or sector concentration, capitalization

limits and minimum quality standards.
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RUDDICK.CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES _
INOTES TO CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS — (conti‘nu'ed)
- Since the lCompany"s supplemental plan is.unfunded, the contributions to this plan is equal to the benefit

payments made during the.year. The Company expects to contribute $20.0-million for the pensmn plan and
approximately $1.3 million for the supplemental plan during fiscal 2005. . Cle

The fol lowmg benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid
by the Company’s defined benefit pension plans.(in thousands): . .

"“Pension  ‘Supplemental

. ) . . Plan . - - -Plan
2005 s e TR ST $ 8,541 - $1,294
2006 ...t SR S e L9112 1,339
2007 ov i s e SR 9,767 - 1,326
2008 .0 e TR S e .. 10,534 1,310
2009 .. e . 11,268 1,293
Years 201’0-20‘14 ........................................................... 73,151 7 293

| The Company also has an Employee Stock OWHCI‘Shlp Plan (“ESOP”) for ehglble employees Under the ESOP
the Company provides cash contributions, as determined,by the Board of Directors, to a trust for the purpose of

purchasing shares of the Company’s common, stock on the open-market. Such contributions are based on the

Company’s net income for the fiscal year as a: percentage of average shareholders’ equity. The: total amount
contributed is compnsed of a base contribution of 1.5% of participants’ ehglble compensation and an additional
conmbuuon of up to 3.5% of ehgxble compensation. At October 3, 2004, approx1mately 17% of the Company s
common shares outstandmg were owned by employees ds part1cxpants in the ESOP '

The Company also sponsors the RUddle Savmgs Plan Wthh s a deﬂned conmbunon retirement plan that'

was authorized|for the purpose of providing retirement benefits for employees of the.Company. The Ruddick Savings
Plan is a salary deferral plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company provides a
matchmg conmbunon based on the amount of eligible compensation contributed by the assomate

- The Company has certain. deferred compensation arrangements which allow, or allowed in prlor .years, its
directors, officérs and selected key management personnel to forego the receipt of earned compensation for specified
periods of timé. These arrangements include (1) a directors’ compensation deferral plan, fundedin a rabibi trust,
the benefit and payment under such plan being determined by the Company’s common stock, (2) a key management
deferral plan, unfunded, the benefit liability under such plan determined on the basis of the performance-of selected
market investment indices, and (3) other compensation deferral arrangements, unfunded and only: available to
directors and select key management in pnor years, the benefit liability for which is determined based on fixed
rates of 1nterest :

The Company’s textile subsidiary maintains a profit sharing plan for most of its domestic employe'es. American
& Efird provides discretionary cash contributions, as determined by its management and board based on annual
profitability measures, to a trust for the benefit of the partxcnpants who may -elect to. withdraw such beneﬁt at
any time. , T : . Lo RN

Expenses under the ESOP, as well as the profit shanng, deferred compensauon and other plans, were as follows
(in thousands): _ IR R LA o . X
L e e 2004 2903 _ 2002
ESOP ........ SEOTIUPR pavrieses e CS8T1T ST3TL. $8,059
Profit sharing and other ..... FUT et A T =) B 3,518 8,573




RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The following table details. the computauon of EPS for ﬁscal 2004 2003 and 2002 (in thousands except per
share data): S

2004 2003 2002

Basic EPS: ‘ T
S NELINCOME o ooiee et T e, $64,659 - $59,882 $51,983

Weighted average common shares outstanding .......... 46,489 46,385 46,402
- Basic EPS ................. SO fipeeeeio 8 139008 120§ 112
Diloted EPS: D |

Net INCOME ... .oviiiiiiiiiiiie e eranees e $64,659 $59,882 351,983
' Weighted aVeragc common shares outstanding R 46,489 46,385 46,402
. +Potential common share equivalents .................... ) 362 78 176
- Weighted average common shares outstanding ........... 46,851 46,463 46,578

Diluted EPS .. ... e $ 138 $§ 129§ 1.2
Calculation of pdtential common share equivalents: -

‘Options to purchase potential common shares ........... 2,007 - 805 1,118

Potennal common shares assumed purchased ............ (1,645) (727) (942)

* Potential common share equivalents s e 362 78 176

Ca]culanon of potential common shares assumed purchased thh potential proceeds

. Potential proceeds from exercise of opnons to

purchase COMMON SNATES .......cvvvevrenrernrnenannn $31,482  $10,585 $15,329
Common stock price used under the treasury ,
“ostock method L. il SRR 5 19.14 $ 1455 $ 16.27
Potennal common shares assumed purchased TR ' 1 645 ' 727 942

. Outstandmg opnons to purchase shares excluded from potential common share equivalents (optlon price
exceeded the average market price during the period) amounted to 512,000 shares, 1,511,000 shares and 1,008,000
shares for the years ended October 3, 2004, September 28, 2003 and September 29, 2002, respectively.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

. The Company is invelved in various lawsuits and environmental and patent matters arising in the normal course
of business. Management believes that such matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations of the Company.

See “Leases” above in this Item 8 for additional commitments and contingencies.

43



RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES _
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {continved)

QUARTERLY INFORMATIONV (UNAUDITED)

The Companyis stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The following table sets forth
certain financial information, the high and low sales prices and dmdends declared for the common stock for the
periods indicated (in millions, except per share data):

First . Second Third Fourth
) o ' Quarter Quarter - Quarter Quarter
2004 Operating Results ' B o
Net Sales ..op.evernieneeneen.nn BT, e $692.4 $700.8 $702.7 $772.7
Gross. Profit ................ 196.0 . - 2073 206.1° - 2241
Net Income™ ... .. - 138 ° 159 17.0 17.9
Net Income Per Share .............ccooooeeenne. 0.30 0.34 036 038
Dividend Per Share ............ RTINS S U000 0.10 0.10 0.10
Market Price Per Share ......c..ccvvvvivvenn... ' : : <
THIZh vt 1799 © 2048 -+ 2227 2245
CLOW et AT 15.50 17.66 1952 - ..18.56
2003 Operating Results . o o
NEt SaleS .ivevevnrrinieeerieiiirnenananenss . $678.4 . . $685.2 $6850.  .$676.1
Gross Profit ......co.coevivivneiiieniiinienn, L1918 T 1961 1940 1952
Net Income® ..ot - o130 144 16.1 164
Net Income Per Share® ......................... 028 031 0.35 0.35
Dividend Per Share .......... o009 009 L0099 009
Market Price Per Share ............... e o ; . .
High oo PRI 116.06 1430 1600 1722
Low,....... SRR 13.40 11.95° 1230 1549

(1) Inclydes the effects of pre-tax exit and impairment costs totaling $384,000 ($238,000 afier tax benefits) in
the first quarter of 2004 as more fully described in the note “Impairment and Exit Costs.”
2) Inclides the effects of pre- -tax exit and lmpalrment costs totaling $580,000 ($360,000 after tax beneﬁrs, or
$0.01 per diluted share) in the founh quarter of-2003, as more fully described in the note “Impamnent and
- Exit Costs > :




Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

" Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(@)

(b)

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. As of October 3, 2004, an evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13(a)-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) was performed
under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in its reports that it files
or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
penods spemﬁed in the Securities Exchange Commission rules and forms. -

Changes in internal control over financial reporting. During the Company s fourth fiscal quarter of 2004,
there has been no change in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably

likely to materially affect, the Company’ s internal controls over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART HI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Oﬂ‘icérs of the Registfant

For information regarding executive officers, refer to “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Item 4A hereof.
Other information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Election of
Directors,” “Corporate Governance Matters” and * Secnon 16(a) Beneficial Ownersmp Repomng Comphance in
the Registrant’s Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission w1th respect to the
Reglstrant s 2005 Annual Meefing of Shareholders (the “2005 Proxy Statement”). ‘

‘ Code of Ethics and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Company has adopted:a written Code of Ethics (the “Code of Ethlcs”) that apphes 10 our: Pres;dent and
Chief Executive Officer, Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer and our Vice President and Treasurer.
The Company has also adopted a-Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code of Conduct™) that applies to
all employees, officers and directors of the Company as well as any subsidiary company officers that are executive
officers of the Company. Each of our operating subsidiaries maintains a code of ethics tailored to their businesses.
The Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct are avaxlable on the Company’s website, www.ruddickcorp.com, under
thie “Corporate<Govemance caption, and print copies are avallable to any shareholder that requests a copy. Any
amendments to the Code of Ethics or Code of Condiict, or any waivers of the Code-of Ethics, or any waiver of
the Code of Conduct for directors or executive officers, will be disclosed on the Company’s website promptly
following the date of such amendment or waiver. Informauon on the Company’s website, however, does not form
a part of this Form 10-K.

" Corporate Governance Guidelines and Committee Charters

In furtherance of its Iongstandiﬁg goal of providing effective governance of the Company’s business and affairs
for the benefit of shareholders, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved Corporate Governance
Guidelines. The Guidelines contain general principles regarding the functions of the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Guidelines are available on the Company’s website referenced above and print copies are available to any
shareholder that requests a copy. In addition, committee charters for the Company’s Audit Committee,
Compensation and Special Stock Option Committee and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee are
also included on the Company’s website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Election
of Directors — Directors’ Fees and Attendance” and “Executive Compensation” in the Registrant’s 2005
Proxy Statement.
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Item 12. Security 0wnerskzp of Certain Beneﬁcuzl Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
' Matters

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of October 3, 2004 regardmg the number of shares of Common
Stock that may be issued under the Company’s equity compensation plans.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to be -  Weighted-average . future issuance under
issued upon exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans
- outstanding options, outstanding options, - (excluding securities
warrants and rights - warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

Plan category (1) (a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation »
plans approved by : ' C :
security holders ........ eien 2,328,763 $16.23 1,994,750
. Equity compensation :
plans not approved by
security holders ............ -0- - —0- —0-

Total.........oooovnnn . . 2,328,763 $16.23 - 1,994,750

(1) The table does not include information regarding the Ruddick Corporation Director Deferral Plan, which
permits the deferral of the payment of the annual fee and the regular board meeting fees. The deferred fees
are converted into a number of shares of common stock with a fair market value equal 10 the value of the retainer

or fees deferred, and such number-of shares are then credited to the director’s account (along with the amount

of any dividends or stock distributions) in the form of phantom stock units. At the time a participant in the
plan ceases to be a director, shares of common stock or cash, in the discretion of the Compensation Cormittee,
will be distributed to the participant or a designated beneficiary. On October 3, 2004, there were 62,831 phantom
stock units aliocated pursuant to this plan.

Additional information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled
“Principal Shareholders” and “Election of Directors-Beneficial Ownership of Company Stock™ in the Registrant’s
2005 Proxy Statement. .

Item 13 Certam Relationships and Related Transachons . '

The mformatxon required by this item is. 1ncorporated herem by reference to the section enm]ed “Certam
Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Registrant’s 2005 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servzces "

The information required by this item is incorporated- herem by reference to the section entitled “Selection
of Independent Public Accountants” in the Registrant’s 2005 Proxy Statement.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule.
(a) The following documents are ﬁled as part of thrs report
(1) Financial Statements , S ) ' ... Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - 21
Consohdated Balance. Sheets October 3, 2004 and September 28, 2003 , 22
Siatements of Consolrdated Income for the ﬁscal years ended October 3, 2004,
September 28, 2003, and September 29, 2002 o 23
Statements of Consolidated Stockholders’ Equity and Cornprehensive Income for the
fiscal years ended October 3, 2004, September 28, 2003, and September 29, 2002 24
Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended October 3, 2004,
September 28, 2003, and September 29, 2002 ‘ 25
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . _ , 26

@)

3)

Exhibit
Number

.PART IV

Einancial Statement Schedules: The following report and financial statement schedules.
are filed herewith:

Schedule I — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves ' . S-1.

All other schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or o
the information is presented in the consoltdated ﬁnancral statements or related
notes thereto.”

Index to Exhibits: The following exhibits are ﬁled with this report or, as noted
incorporated by reference herein.

Description of Exhibits

31*

3.2%

4.1*

4.2%*

Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, dated December 14, 2000, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
October 1, 2000 (Commission File No. 1-6905).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exlu'blt 32 of tlle'
registrant’s ‘Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for. the quarterly penod ended December 29, 2002
(Commission File No. 1-6905).

Credit Agreement for up to an aggregate of $100,000,000 entered into as of May 14, 2002, by and
between the Company and each of Branch Banking and Trust Company and RBC Centura Bank as
lenders and Wachovia Bank,-National Association as lender and administrative agent, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
périod ended March 31, 2002 (Commission File No. 1-6905).

$50,000,000 6.48% Series A Senior Notes due March 1, 2011 and $50,000,000 Private Shelf Facxllty
dated March 1, 1996 between Ruddick Corporation and The Prudential Insurance Company of America,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 1996 (Commission File No. 1-6905).
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibits

4.3%

$50,000,000 7.55% Senior Series B Notes due July 15, 2017 and $50 000,000 7.72% Series B Senior
Notes due April 15, 2017 under the Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement dated April 15, 1997
between Ruddick Corporation and The Prudential Insurance Company of America, incorperated herein

. by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yedr period
" ended September’ 28, 1997 (Commission File No. 1- 6905)

10.1%

10.2*

10.3* |

10.4* -

10.5%

10.6%

10.7%

10.8*

The Company has other long-term debt but has not filed the instruments ev1dencmg such debt as part
of Exhibit 4 as none of such instruments authorize the issuance of debt exceeding 10 percent of the

‘total consolidated assets of the Company. The Company agreesto furnisha copy of each such agreement

to the Commission upon request.

Description of Incentive Compensatlon Plans, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the

registrant’s Annual Report. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 29, 1996 (Commission
No. 1-6905).%*

Supplemental Executzve Retirement Plan of Ruddick Corporatlon as amended and restated,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended Septemnber 30, 1990 (Commission File No. 1-6905).**

Resolutlons adopted by the Board.of Directors of the Company and the Plan’s Administrative

“Committee with respect to benefits payable under the Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement

Plan to Alan T. Dickson and R. Stuart Dickson, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 29, 1991 (Commxssmn

.- File No. 1-6905)**

Deferred Compensation Plan for Key Employees of Ruddick Corporation and subsidiaries, as amended
and restated, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1990 (Commission File No. 1-6905).**

1988 Incentive Stock Option Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the registrant’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 2, 1994 (Commission File No.1-6905).%*

1993 Incent_we Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Rights Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 3, 1993
(Commission File No. 1-6905).%*

Description of the Ruddick Corporation Long Term Key Management Incentive Program, incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 29, 1991 (Commissipn File No. 1-6905).%*

Ruddick Corporation Irrevocable Trust for the Benefit of Participants in the Long Term Key
Management Incentive Program, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the registrant’s

_ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1990 (Commission File

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

No. 1-6905).%*

Rights Agreement dated November 16, 2000 by and between the Company and First Union National
Bank, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended October 1, 2000 (Corumission File No. 1-6905).

Ruddick Corporation Senior Officers Insurance Program Plan Document and Summary Plan
Description, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended September 27, 1992 (Commission File No. 1-6905).**

Ruddick Corporation Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement Between the Company and Edwin B.
Borden, Jr., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 29, 1996 (Commission File No. 1-6905).**
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibits

10.12*

10.13*

10@4*

10.15%
10.16%
10.17*

10.18*

-~ Ruddick Corporation \Ionstatutory Stock.Option Agreement Between the Company and Roddey Dowd, -

Sr., incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 10.4 of the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

: for the quarterly penod ended December 29, 1996 (Commrssron File No. 1-6905).%* -
'Ruddlck Corporaoon Nonstatutory. Stock Option Agreement Between the Company and James E.S.

Hynes, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the. quarterly period.ended December 29, 1996 (Comm1ssron File No. 1-6905).%* ~

“'Ruddick Corporatron 1995 Comprehensrve Stock Option Plan (the “1995 Plan™), mcorporated herein
"by reférence to Exhibit 10. 1 of the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter]y period

ended June 30, 1996 (Commrssron File No. 1-6905).**
Ruddrck Corporanon 1997 Comprehenswe Stock Option and Award Plan (the “1997 Plan”), -

' mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

the quarterly period ended December 28, 1997 (Commission File No. 1-6905).**

Ruddlck Corporanon Director Deferred Plan 1ncorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
regrstrant s Quarterly’ Report on Form 10- Q for the quarterly penod ended March 29 1998 (Commission
File No. 1- 6905) * ok .

Ruddlck Corporation Senior Officers Insurance Program mcorporated herein by reference to Exhrbrt

© 10.3 of the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Forrn 10- Q for the quarterly period ended March 29, 1998
(Commrssron File No 1- 6905) **

Ruddick Corporatron 2000 Comprehensrve Stock Option and Award Plan (the 2000 Plan™),
1nc0rporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

| " the quarter]y period ended Apnl 1, 2001 (Commrssron File No. 1 6905) o

10.19*
- 10.20*

10.21*

1022*

10.23*
10.24*
10.25*

10.26+

Description of retirement arrangement between the Company and each of Alan T. Drckson and R. Stuart
Dickson effective May 1, 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarterly penod ended June 30, 2002 (Commrsswn File No.
1- 6905)** .

Ruddrck Corporanon Flexible Deferral Plan, 1ncorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the
registrant’s’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 29, 2002 (Commission
File No 1-6905).**

Ruddick Corporanon 2002 Comprehensrve Stock Option. and Award Plan (the “2002 Plan™),
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended March 30, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-6905)**

Formof Ruddick Corporatron Non Employee Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for use -

in connection with the 1995 Plan 1997 Plan, 2000 Plan and 2002 Plan, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s ‘Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 17, 2004 (Commission
File No 1-6905) **

Form tof Ruddick Corporation Incentive Stock Optron Award Agreement for use in connection with the
1995 Plan 1997 Plan, 2000 Plan and 2002 Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Current Repon on Forrn 8-K dated November 17, 2004 (Commission File No. 1-6905).**

Form of Ruddick Corporauon Nonquahﬁed Stock Optron Agreement for use in connection with the
1995 Plan 1997 Plan, 2000 Plan and 2002 Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 17, 2004 (Commission File No. 1-6905).**

Form of Ruddick Corporation Restricted Stock Award Agreement for use in connection with the 1997
Plari, 2000 Plan and 2002 Plan, 1ncorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10:4 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 17, 2004 (Commission File No. 1-6905).%*

Summary of Executive Bonus Insurance Plan.**
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibits

10.27+
21+
23+
311+

31.2+

32.1+

322+

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation.**
List of Subsidiaries of the Company.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 '

* anorporafed by reference. . .
** Indicates management contract or compeﬁsa[dryl plan required to be filed as an Exhibit.
+ - Indicates exhibits filed herewith and follow the 'signature pages. 4
(b) Exhibits ‘ ' o
See (a) (3) above.
(c) Financial Statement Schedules
. See (a) (2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant |
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

RUDDICK CORPORATION
(Registrant) .. . .

Dated: Novernber 30, 2004 ; " By: /sy THOMAS W. DICKSON
' : ’ Thomas W. Dickson, - .
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements.of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

fsf THOMAS ‘W. DICKSON President and Chief Executive Officer ' November 30, 2004
Thomias W. Dickson . and Director (Principal Executive Officer) ‘
/s/ JOHN B. WOODLIEF * Vice President — Finance and, Chief , November 30,.2004
John B. Woodlief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) :
s/ RONALD H VOLGER ‘Vlcé Présidenl and Treasurer . November 30, 2004
Ronald H. Volger (Principal Accounting Officer) ‘ .
/s/ JOHN R. BELK Director ~‘November 30, 2004
John R. Belk '
/s/ EDWIN B BORDEN, JR. Director November 30, 2004
Edwin B. Borden, Ir. .
/s/ JOHN P. DERHAM CATO Director November 30, 2004
John P. Derham Cato
/s/ ALAN T. DICKSON Chairman of the Board November 30, 2004
Alan T. Dickson and Director
/s/ R. STUART DICKSON Chairman of the Executive November 30, 2004
R. Stuart Dickson Committee and Director ‘
s/ JAMES E' S. HYNES Director ' November 30, 2004

Jamés E. S. Hynes

Js/ ANNA S. NELSON Director - . ‘ November 30, 2004
Anna S. Nelson '

/s/ BAILEY W. PATRICK Director ' November 30, 2004
Bailey W. Patrick :

/s/ ROBERT |H. SPILMAN, JR. Director .~ | ) Novemb;r 30, 2004
Robenft H. Spilman, Jr.

/s/f HAROLD C. STOWE Director ~~ November 30, 2004
Harold C. Stowe

/s/ ISAIAH TIDWELL Director : November 30, 2004
Isatah Tidwell :
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SCHEDULE 1

RUDDICK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES v
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
For the Fiscal Years Ended '

September 29, 2002, September 28, 2003

and October 3, 2004 (in thousands)

COLUMN A - COLUMN B COLUMNC COLUMND COLUMNE
- ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT CHARGED TO BALANCE
‘ BEGINNING OF . COSTS AND AT END
DESCRIPTION ] FISCAL YEAR ~ EXPENSES - DEDUCTIONS OF PERIOD

Fiscal Year Ended September 29, 2002:
+ Reserves ‘deducted from assets
. to which they apply —

_ Allowance For Doubtful Accounts .......... . S2,933 $1,263 $ 710* $3,486
Reserves For Exit Costs ........ et ire e, $6532 8 (710 $5010  § 812

Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2003:
Reserves deducted from assets to
which they apply — :
Allowance For Doubtful Accounts .......... $3,486 $1,436 $ 960* $3,962

Reserves For Exit Costs ........coovviviiiinnnnene.. $ 812 — $ 444 $ 368

Fiscal Year Ended October 3, 2004:
Reserves deducted from assets
to which they apply — .
- Allowance For Doubtful Accounts .......... - $3,962 $ 953 . §1,745* $3,170

Reserves For Exit Costs ........ e $ 368 — $ 230 $ 13

o0

* Represents accounts receivable balances written off as uncollectible, less recoveries.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification Pursuant to Sectxon 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
for the Chief Executive Officer

I, Thomas W. Dickson, certify that:

1.
2.

Date: November 30, 2004

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Ruddick Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such

.+ statements were made, not misleading wrth respect to the period covered by thrs report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in thls report, falrly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the. reglstram

as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other cemfymg officers and I are ‘responsible for estabhshm g and mamtammg disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, pamcularly during the
penod in which this report is belng prepared : , .

_(b) [Intentionally omitted.]

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of
the périod covered by this report based on such evaluation; and ‘

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial repomn g that occurred
dunng the reglstrant s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matena]ly affect, the regrstrant s internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have dxsclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record process,
summanze and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

/s! Thomas W. Dickson

Name: Thomas W. Dickson
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
" for the Chief Financial Officer

1, John B. Woodlief, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Ruddick Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statermnent of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly

_present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant

as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared; ' :

(b) [Intentionally omitted.]

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and .

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 30, 2004

/s/ John B. Woodlief

Name: John B. Woodlief
Title: Vice President — Finance and Chief
Financial Officer
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7048738404
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Ofesr confrming that the Company hes
complied with dhe NYSE corporase
governenss standers.
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Chardeie, NC

Sherebelder/Shares

As of Qeushber 8, 2004, Ruddidk had
spprosimensly 14,600 benefcl] commeon
shasehelders (Induding employes/owners) and
appresdmately 46,7 millen dhares cutsmnding.
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Ruddidk Compuretion mainteins & Dividend
Relmvestmnent and Stock Purdhase Plan for dharcholders
of regord. [nformtion on this plan may be obtined by
calling Ruddick Cemparatiun 80 704-572-8404,
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Sharehelders are cordially inviesd to atmend.
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Investor Reladons Deperament, Ruddick Comporeden,
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fuddick Corporation

HARRIS TEETER - AMERICAN & ZFiRD
301 S. Tryon Street Suite 1800 Charlotte, NC 28202
704-372-5404 www.RuddickCorp.com

Ruddick Corporation is a holding company with two wholly-owned oparating subsidiaries—~
Hamis Teeter, a leading regional supemarket chain, and American & Efird, one of the world's largest
manufacturers and distributors of sewing thread for industrial and consumer markets.




